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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC, Cancellation No. 92/049,264

Petitioner, Reg. Nos. 761,883; 1,432,069; and 2,924,744

v. Marks: SLIP 'N SLIDE; YELLOW SLIDE

DESIGN, and YELLOW and BLUE SLIDE

WI-IAM—O, INC., DESIGN

Respondent.

 

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Trademark Trial and Appeal Board
P.O. BOX 1451

Alexandria, VA 22313-1451

RESPONSE TO BOARD'S ORDER DATED JUNE 11 2008 

In its Order dated June 11, 2008, the Board directed petitioner AW Computer Holdings

LLC to provide: 1) a copy of the pleadings, notice of appeal, and statement of the current status

of Civil Action No. CVO6—1382 RSWL (CWX); 2) a copy of the pleadings and statement of the

current status of Civil Action No. CV08-01281 PSG (Ex)‘; and 3) a brief explanation of the

relationship between the foregoing civil actions. Petitioner hereby submits its response.

1. SLB Toys USA, Inc. V. Wham-O, Inc., et al, United States District

Court for the Central District of California, Civil Action No. CV06-

1382 RSWL ]CWX[

On or about October 1 1, 2007, the jury in the above—referenced action (the "First Action")

rendered a verdict in favor of respondent Wham—O, Inc. ("Respondent") and against SLB.

1 Petitioner notes that this case was, at some point, transferred to the judge Who handled the Case No. CV06—1382
RSWL (CWX) and that the case number was changed to reflect this transfer to CVO6—1382 RSWL (CWX).
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Thereafter, on or about December 5, 2007, judgment was entered in the First Action in favor of

Respondent and against SLB.

In or around November of 2007, Petitioner acquired from SLB certain assets, as well as

the appellate rights in the First Action, and on March 5, 2008, Petitioner and SLB filed a Notice

ofAppeal ofthe judgment and orders entered in the First Action. The appeal in this matter is

currently pending. The parties have received a briefing schedule, but have not yet received a

hearing date. The opening brief is currently scheduled to be filed on or before August 18, 2008.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the Complaint filed by SLB. Attached hereto

as Exhibit B is a copy of Respondent's Answer to the Complaint and Counterclaim and attached

hereto as Exhibit C is a copy of SLB's response to Respondent's Counterclaim. Attached hereto

as Exhibit D is a copy of the Notice ofAppeal filed by Petitioner and SLB.

2. Wham-O, Inc. v. AW Computer Holdings LLC, et 111., United States

District Court for the Central District of California, Civil Action No.

CV08—01281 RSWL §CWX)

The operative pleading in the above—referenced civil action (the "Second Action") is the

Second Amended Complaint filed by Respondent on April 21, 2008 (the "SAC"), against

Manley Toys, Ltd, Izzy Holdings, LLC, Aquawood, LLC, AW Computer Holdings, LLC, Brian

Dubinsky, Samson Chan, Lisa Liu, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., Target Corp., Toys "R" Us, Inc., and

KMART Corporation.

AW Computer Holdings, LLC ("Petitioner") has not yet filed its Answer to the SAC in

the Second Action. However, only one cause of action in the SAC - the seventh cause of action -

is alleged against Petitioner and, on or about May 16, 2008, Petitioner, together with defendant

Aquawood, LLC, filed a Motion to Dismiss the Seventh Claim for Relief in the Second

Amended Complaint Based Upon (A) Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction Under Rule 12(b)(l)

and (B) The Failure to State a Claim Upon Which Relief Can be Granted Under Rule l2(b)(6),
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and to Strike Portions of the Prayer Under Rule 12(f). Motions to dismiss the SAC have also

been filed by defendants Chan and Liu, defendant Dubinsky, and defendant Izzy Holdings, LLC.

Defendants Manley Toys, Ltd., Toys "R" Us, Inc., Target Corp., and KMART

Corporation, have each filed their Answer to the SAC, as well as Counterclaim(s) against Wham-

0, Inc. KMART Corporation has also filed a Cross—Claim against Manley Toys, Ltd. Manley

Toys, Ltd. has also filed a First Amended Counterclaim against Respondent. Respondent has

filed its answer to the counterclaim filed by Toys "R" Us, Inc., but has not yet filed an answer or

other document in response to the other counterclaims.

Additionally, Manley Toys, Ltd. has filed a Motion for Preliminary Injunction against

Wham-O, Inc. and Target Corp. has also filed a Motion for Summaiy Judgment to Dismiss the

SAC against Target Corp.

Manley Toys, Ltd. 's Motion for Preliminary Injunction, as well as each ofthe above-

referenced motions to dismiss, are currently set to be heard on July 1, 2008.

The Board has requested copies ofthe pleadings in the Second Action. Accordingly,

Petitioner attaches hereto, as Exhibit E, the SAC filed by Respondent. Additionally, although

not technically a pleading, Petitioner attaches hereto as Exhibit F, Petitioner's Motion to Dismiss

the SAC.

Because so many ofthe pleadings and other documents filed in this matter were filed by

entities and individuals who are not involved in the matter currently pending before the Board,

Applicant has not submitted copies of any other pleadings or documents filed by those parties.

Should the Board determine that it would like copies of any or all of those pleadings and

documents, Petitioner will obtain copies thereof and provide them to the Board.
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3. Relationship Between the Civil Actions

As noted above, judgment was entered against SLB in the First Action. Respondent was

also awarded attomeys' fees in the First Action. Wham-O alleges generally in the Second Action

that certain defendants therein, including Petitioner, are alter egos of and/or successors in interest

to SLB and seeks to impose on them the judgment against SLB on that basis. Wham-O has also

brought claims against certain defendants, not including Petitioner, for, among other things,

infringement and dilution of the Yellow Slide Design and Yellow and Blue Slide Design.

4. Additional Cases

The Board also asked Petitioner to identify any other proceedings to which Respondent

and Petitioner are parties or which involve the marks at issue in the instant cancellation

proceeding. Respondent has amended its complaint in Alameda County Superior Court Case

No. RG 07329828, Wham—O Inc. V. Sefchick et al, to name Petitioner as a party, but as of
 

today's date, has not yet served Petitioner with a copy of the summons and complaint. Petitioner

is unaware of any proceedings, other than those previously identified, to which both Petitioner

and Respondent are parties or which involve any of the registrations at issue in the instant

proceeding.

Respectfully submitted,

 
 

Dated: June 26, 2008 By: ’

Rod S.1man, Esq.
Brian . Kasell, Esq.

Jessica C. Bromall, Esq.

JEFFER MANGELS BUTLER & MARMARO, LLP

1900 Avenue of the Stars, Seventh Floor

Los Angeles, California 90067

(310) 203-8080

Attorneys for Petitioner AW COMPUTER
HOLDINGS LLC
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ELECTRONIC FILING CERTIFICATE

I hereby certify that this paper (along with any paper referred to as being attached

or enclosed) is being submitted electronically through the Electronic System for Trademark

Trials and Appeal ("ESTTA") on the date shown below:

 Date: W
Bromall

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that one (1) copy ofthis document is being deposited with the

United States Postal Service as First Class Mail, postage affixed, in an envelope addressed to:

Beth M. Goldman

Heller Ehrman LLP

333 Bush Street

San Francisco CA 94104-2878

Date: (9 I W 0  

Jeffer, Mangels, Butler & Marmaro llp

1900 Avenue ofthe Stars, Seventh Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067

Phone: (310) 203-8080

Fax: (310) 203-0567

WvvW.jmbm.com
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6 Al.'l'.OIT1E8'S for Plaintiff , 1"=“1

SLB T YS USA, INC. l '1-,--,',_?s ,:E: E3
7 l ;s::.‘ at
8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT E ca
9 CENTRAL DISTRICT or CALIFORNIA ‘

10 1 as CV06-1"382RSb°L G‘)/V
SLB TOYS USA, INC., a New York Case No.

1 1 Corporation,

COMPLAINT FOR _
12 Plaintiff‘,

1. Trademark Infringement (Section
13 v. 43(a of Lanham Act);

2. Tra e Dress Infringement (Section
14 WHAM:O, INC., a Delaware. 43(a of Lanham Act ;

co‘1}%orat1on, CORNERSTONE 3. Tra emark Infringement under
15 O RSEAS INVESTMENTS LTD. a Common Law;

Hon Kon entitg CHARTERHOUSE 4. Breach of Confidential andGRCIUP, INC. a elaware co oration; Fiducia Relationship;
TRAXI, LLC, a New York en ity; and 5. Unfair om etition;

  
17 DOES 1~l0, inclusive, 6. Declaratory elief ____#__________—~r
13 Defendants. ' '

19

20 Plaintiff SLB Toys, Inc. (“SLB”) alleges as follows:
21 JURISDICTION AND VENUE
22 1. This is a civil action arising under the United Sates Trademark Act of
23 1946, as amended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051, etseq. (the “Lanham Act”), for infringement in

violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a), and for related

rights under the statutory or common law of the State of California.

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of this action pursuant to 15

U.S.C. § 1121 and 23 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1:133, 2201, and 22112, as 1: involves Tenn.
-1-
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arising under the Lanham Act. This Court has supplemental subject matter

jurisdiction over all other claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367, because they are so

related that they form part of the same case or controversy.

3. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants in that they are

doing business in the State of California and are committing the acts hereinafter

alleged in this State. ,\

4. Venue in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, in that the

parties are located in or transact their affairs in this district and because a substantial

part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claims occurred in this district.
I PARTIES

5. Plaintiff SLB is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of

the State of New York, with its principal place of business located in Los Angeles

County, California. SLB does business as Toy Quest, a toy company which promotes,

advertises and sells toys to retailers throughout the United States.

6. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant

Wham-O, Inc. (“Wham-O”) is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of

business located in Emeryville, California. Wham-O is a toy company which

promotes, advertises and sells products that compete with the products and services of

SLB. g

7. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant

Cornerstone Overseas Investments Ltd. (“Cornerstone”) is a Hong Kong entity which

has at all relevant times conducted business in California. Cornerstone recently

purchased Wham-O from defendant Charterhouse Group, Inc. and, on information and

belief, provides manufacturing facilities and other services or assistance to Wham-O

in connection with the manufacture and distribution of its toys.

8. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant

Charterhouse Group, Inc. (“Charterhouse”) is a Delaware corporation, with its

-2-
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principal place of business located in New York, which has at all relevant times

conducted business in California. Charterhouse is a private investment group or

equity fund which recently sold its interest in Wham-O to Cornerstone in or about

January of 2006.

9. SLB is informed and believes and based thereon alleges that defendant

Traxi, LLC (“Traxi”) is a New York entity, with its principal place of business located

in New York, which has at all relevant times conducted business in California. Traxi

promotes itself as a special situation advisory or consulting firm and represented

Wham-O and Charterhouse in connection with the sale of‘Whahm—O and related
negotiations.

10. SLB is unaware of the names and true capacities of defendants, whether

individual, corporate or otherwise, named herein as DOES 1 through 10, inclusive,

and therefore sues them by their fictitious names. SLB will seek leave to amend this

complaint when their true names and capacities are ascertained. SLB is informed and

believes, and based thereon alleges that said defendants and DOES 1 through 10,

inclusive, are in some manner responsible for the wrongs alleged herein, and that at all

times referenced each was the agent and servant of the other defendants and was

acting within the course and scope of said agency and employment.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

11. SLB is an innovative and dynamic toy company located in Los Angeles

County, California with product lines in multiple categories including preschool,

plush, plastic, wood, inflatables, water and pool toys, battery-operated, radio control,

plug and play, musical instruments, and youth electronics. SLB has over thirty years

of experience in the toy industry and has achieved considerable success including top

selling toy products such as Teknc The Robotic Dog (awarded Toy of the Year). SLB

has been honored with awards such as Vendor of the Year by Toys ‘R Us and has

earned the right to include its products with McDonald’s Happy Meals. SLB has

-3-
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fostered an excellent reputation among its peers and customers and relies on this

reputation in its business.

12. SLB currently markets a line of popular water slide toys that are known

as the Banzai Falls water slides. These water slide toys include the Banzai Falls

Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai Falls In-Ground Pool Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega

Racer, and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross (collectively the Banzai Falls Water Slides).

True and correct photographs of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai

Falls In—Graund Pool Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and the Banzai Falls Criss

I Cross are attached hereto as Exhibits A, :13, C and D, respectively‘, and are
E incorporated herein by this reference. 0

13. In or about March 2003, SLB began marketing Banzai Falls Quick Set

Water Slide to the toy trade. The product, which was designed and developed by and

is an original creation of SLB, is a puncture proof, rapidly inflating water slide that

' children (and adults for that matter) can use in their own back yards. A blower motor,

included with the product, keeps the inflatable water slide continuously inflated and

the water comes from an average garden hose. The material used also allows the slide

to be used dry.

14. Retailers such as Toys ‘R Us and Wal~Mart were immediately interested

in the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide and SLB began production in earnest

shortly after its initial presentation. Shipment of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water

; Slide to the United States from production facilities in China began in or around

i December 2003 for sale in the 2004 Sununer season. The Banzai Falls Quick Set '
Water Slide was an instant success and quickly became a popular toy product

‘ receiving an award as one of the top ten toys for 2004.

15. SLB continued to market and sell the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide

in 2005, and it has been nominated for Toy of the Year for 2006. In addition, in 2005,

SLB undertook to build upon the success of the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide

-4-
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and extend the product line to include the Banzai Falls In«Graund Peal Slide, the

Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross. The Banzai Falls In-

Graanci Peel Slide was released at the beginning of 2005 for the 2005 Summer

seaS0n,..,n-tad the Banzai Falls Mega Racer and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross were

released at the end of 2005 in preparation for the 2006 Summer season. These slides,

like the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, also share the fanciful and ornamental

design of the Banzai Falls arch over the top of the slide in which a Vertical stitching or

seam pattern is used to create the appearance of multiple vertical tubes comprising the

arch (the ‘f,Banzai Falls Arch Mark”). See Exhibits A through hereto. All of these

slides also share the fanciful and ornamental design of the Banzai Falls side panels in
which the stitching or seam pattern is used to create the appearance of three horizontal

tubes that run along side the slide, with two top tubes of equal size and a bottom tube

that is thicker, and a center triangle shape beneath the arch with the top of the triangle

squared off with horizontal line and a logo in the center of the triangle (the “Banzai

Falls Side Panel Mark”). Ibid.

16. The Banzai Falls Quick Sei Water Slide, Banzai Falls In-Ground Peal

Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer, and Banzai Falls Criss Crass additionally share

the unique features comprising a common, non-functional trade dress which include

the silhouette, shape, profile, size, configuration and dimension, as well as placement

of elements such as the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark

(collectively the “SLB Trade Dress”). Other elements comprising the SLB Trade

Dress include:

(a) Climbing wall in the back to reach top of slide with the look of

horizontal tubes created by two seams;

(b) Arch over the top of the slide with the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and

containing the water nozzle for spraying onto the slide;

(c) Steep slide starts under the arch;

-5-
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(cl) Side of slide with the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark that is

primarily blue in color;

(e) Orientation of water spray from top of the arch;

(f) Waterbags attached to the slide under the triangle;-

(g) Yellow blower motor and tube for inflating the slide.

In addition, the Banzai Falls Quick Set Water Slide, the Banzai Falls Mega Racer and

the Banzai Falls Criss Cross each include a splash pool for landing at the end of the

slide with a. horizontal seam depicting horizontal tubes above the floor of the pool and

an indentation in the top two rails on side of splash pool for exit about halfway
forward in splash pool. Also, the color of the vertical slide for each of the Banzai

Falls In-Ground Pool Slide and the Banzai Falls Criss Cross is yellow.

17. SLB has spent millions of dollars promoting its Banzai Falls Water

Slides, primarily through production and airing of advertising for the Banzai Falls

Quick Set Water Slide on network television featuring the unique features forming the

Banzai Falls Arch Mark, the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark and the SLB Trade Dress

for its Banzai Falls Water Slides. SLB has developed a reputation as the leader in the

toy industry for inflatable water slides through such advertising and the success its

sales of the Banzai Falls Water Slides. The Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai

Falls Side Panel Mark are inherently distinctive and are further associated through
such advertising and the success of SLB’s sales of the Banzai Falls Water Slides with

a particular source, particularly SLB. Likewise, the SLB Trade Dress is also

inherently distinctive and further is associated and has acquired secondary meaning

through such advertising and the success of SLB’s sales of the Banzai Falls Water

Slides with a particular source, particularly SLB.

18. Meanwhile, in or about October 2005, SLB entered into confidential

discussions with Charterhouse, Traxi and Wham-O in connection with a possible

merger or acquisition by SLB involving Wham-O. Charterhouse was looking to sell

-5-
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all or a substantial part of its interest in Wham—O, and Traxi was advising

Charterhouse and Wham—O in connection with a potential sale of Wham—O. As part of

those discussions, SLB disclosed in confidence its product line for 2006 to

Charterhouse and Traxi, both of which weretalso acting on behalf of Wham—O, and the

information so disclosed in confidence included SLB’s plans for release of the Banzai

Falls Criss Cross as the next generation or extension of its Banzai Falls Water Slides

for the 2006 season. Charterhouse, Traxi and Wham—O, and each of them, knew and

understood that SLB had disclosed this information to them in confidence, that the

information was not to be used for any reason other than for the purpose of evaluating

a potential merger or acquisition of Wham-O by SLB and that they could not use this

information for any other purpose, including for the purpose of creating, producing or

selling a competing product or otherwise for use in competition with SLB.

0 19. On or about January 19. 2006, Wham-O announced that Cornerstone had

acquired the company from Charterhouse. As a result of the transaction, according to

the press release, Wham-O’s management, Vendors and customers will benefit from

Cornerstone’s size, financial stability and operational assistance, including the

production, manufacture or distribution of Wham-O products through Cornerstone’s

facilities in China or elsewhere. The press release also confirmed that Wham—O had

been advised in the transaction by Traxi.

20. In late February 2006, SLB received a letter from Wham-O’s legal

counsel purporting to accuse SLB of infringing upon Wham-O’s trademarks with

respect to its water toy products. Through correspondence with Wham—O’s legal

counsel, SLB learned that Wham—O had undertaken to release its own Version of the

Banzai Falls Criss Cross in 2006, a Virtual l<nock~off which Wham—O calls the Super

Splash Tunnel Slide. A true and correct copy of the Wham—O Super Splash Tunnel

Slide, as depicted in communications received from its counsel, is attached hereto as

Exhibit E and is incorporated herein by this reference.

-7-
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21. Incredibly, in its letter, Wham-O’s legal counsel claimed that SLB had

misappropriated Wham-O’s design for the Super Splash Tunnel Slide. To the

contrary, however, it is apparent, at least to anyone with knowledge of the underlying

facts, that made its-assertion as a preemptive strike in an attempt to conceal

that the fact that Wham-O, Charterhouse, Traxi and now Cornerstone, have engaged in

an unlawful conspiracy in which they purposefiilly conspired with each other and gave

substantial assistance and encouragement to one another to wrongfully violate the

confidence in which SLB had disclosed its plans for the Banzai Falls Criss Cross and

to unlawfully and unfairly compete with SLB in connection with the production and
release of the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide. Among other things, in addition to

the flagrant breach of confidence, the Wham—O Super Splash Tunnel Slide wrongfully

uses and infringes upon the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel

Mark, and each of them, as well as the SLB Trade Dress. Compare Exhibits A-D and

Exhibit E. The Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide uses virtually the same stitching

pattern comprising the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark,

and the appearance and dimensions the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide are

virtually the same in all material respects to the SLB Trade Dress, including height,

length and slope ofthe slide, size of splash pool, orientation of water spray, use of

yellow blower motor and hose, blue coloring of side panels, and use and location of

water bags. Ibid.

22. Wham—O and its co-conspirators and/or aiders and abettors, including

Charterhouse, Traxi and Cornerstone, purposefully conspired with each other andlor

gave substantial assistance and encouragement to one another to wrongfully produce,

market and sell Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide, and to deceive consumers as to

its purported association with SLB and to trade off its goodwill from the success of its

Banzai Falls Water Slides, all for the purpose of profiting or enriching themselves at

the expense of SLB. Among other things, while Wham-O and Cornerstone gain or

-3-
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stand to gain from the illegal and illicit profits resulting from sales of the Wham-O

Super Splash Tunnel Slide, Charterhouse and Traxi profit or stand to profit from their

realization of the sale of Wham—O and use of its release of “new” products like the

_._,,.u;;--‘PP.-. ..Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide to facilitate the sale of the company.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 431:1] OF
THE LANHAM ACT]

23. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 22 as

though set forth fully herein. g _

24. Defendants are wrongfully using and/or aiding and abetting or

contributing to the use of the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel

Mark, and each of them, in connection with, without limitation, the manufacture,

importation, sale, offering for sale, distribution and/or dissemination of the Wharn-O

Super Splash Tunnel Slide, in order to capitalize on the good name, notoriety,

reputation and goodwill of SLB with respect to its Banzai Falls Water Slides.

25. Defendants’ acts as alleged above are unlawful and constitute

infringement and/or aiding and abetting or contributory infringement by, among other

things, creating and/or permitting or assisting others to misrepresent the nature,

characteristics, qualities, or origin of Defendants’ goods, services, activities or

information and/or to unlawfully compete in a manner which is likely to cause

confusion, or cause mistake, or deceive customers as to the affiliation, connection, or

association between Defendants and SLB, or as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval

by SLB of Defendants’ goods, services and/or activities, in violation of the Lanham

Act, 15 U.S.C. §l125(a).

26. Defendants’ conduct has caused and, if not enjoined, will continue to

cause irreparable harm to one or more of the Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai

Falls Side Panel Mark, as well as to SLB’s good name, reputation and goodwill, in a

-9-
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manner that cannot be calculated or compensated in money damages. SLB has no

adequate remedy at law.

27. As a result of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illic,it..profits and wrongful gains.

28. Defendants’ conduct is willful, deliberate and malicious, so as to entitle

, SLB to treble or exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

TRADE DRESS INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 43 a OF

THE LANI-IAM ACT]

 

29. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 28 as

though set forth fully herein.

30. Defendants have adopted and continue to make use of a non-functional

trade dress on the Wham-O Super Splash Tmmel Slide that is confusingly similar to

the SLB Trade Dress.

31. Defendants’ acts as alleged above constitute infringement and/or aiding

and abetting or contributory infringement of the SLB Trade Dress and are likely to

3 cause confusion, or cause mistake, or deceive customers as to the affiliation,

connection, or association between Defendants and SLB, or as to the origin,

, sponsorship, or approval by SLB of Defendants’ goods, services and/or activities, in

violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §l l25(a).

32. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, SLB has suffered, is

. suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are

restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB

has no adequate remedy at law.

33. As a result of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

-10-
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34. Defendants’ conduct is willful, deliberate and malicious, so as to entitle

SLB to treble or exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT]

35. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 34 t as

though set forth fully herein.

36. The aforesaid acts ofDefendants constitute infringement andlor aiding

and abetting or contributory infringement under common law of one or more of the

Banzai Falls Arch Mark and the Banzai Falls Side Panel Mark...

37. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, SLB has suffered, is

suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are

restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB

has no adequate remedy at law.

38. As a result of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

39. Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is willful, deliberate and

malicious, and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[QREACH OF CONFIDENTIAL AND FIDUCIARY RELATIONSHIP}

40. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 39 as

though set forth fully herein.

41. At all relevant times herein, there was a mutual understanding between

SLB, on the one hand, and Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi, on the other, that the

information disclosed in confidence to them, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans

for release the Banzai‘ Falls Criss Cross, was to be used solely for purposes of

-11-
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evaluating a potential merger or acquisition of Wham-O by SLB, and SLB reposed

- trust and confidence in Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi that they would not use such

information for any other purpose. Accordingly, a confidential or fiduciary

7 relationship existed between SLB, on the one hand, and Wham—O, Charterhouse and

Traxi, on the other, that they would not use information disclosed in confidence to

them, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai Falls Criss Cross,

for any purpose other than to evaluate a potential merger or acquisition of Wharn—O by

SLB.

42. Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi, and each of them, wrongfully

breached and conspired with each other to breach their respective confidential and

I fiduciary obligations to SLB by, among other things, using information disclosed to

them in confidence, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai

Falls Criss Cross, for purposes of producing, assisting, aiding and abetting or

facilitating in the production of the Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide for sale in

; competition with SLB. Cornerstone knew that SLB had disclosed such information to

Wham-O, Charterhouse and Traxi in confidence, and of their respective confidential

and fiduciary obligations restricting the use of such information, and wrongfully

joined in the conspiracy and aided and abetted Wham-O in the manufacture and

I exploitation of Wham-O Super Splash Tunnel Slide in violation of Wham—O’s

confidential and fiduciary obligations to SLB and to substantially assist Wham-O in

unlawful and unfair competition with SLB.

43. By reason of Defendants’ acts as alleged herein, the SLB has suffered, is

5 suffering, and will continue to suffer irreparable harm and, unless Defendants are

If restrained from continuing their wrongful acts, the harm to SLB will increase. SLB

has no adequate remedy at law.

44. As a result ofthe foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

. received and/or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongfill gains.

-12-
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45. Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is willful, deliberate and

malicious, and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION)

46. SLB repeats and realleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 45 as

though set forth fully herein.

47. Defendants by virtue of their acts as alleged above, have willfully,

, knowingly, n1alieia.usly-andiintentionally engaged in acts of unfair-competition tame "L

the common law of the State of California, including, without limitation, palming off,

and/or attempting to palm off, and/or enabling others to palm off Wham-O Super

' Splash Tunnel Slide as a product made by, sponsored by, or authorized by SLB and

breaching, conspiring to breach and aiding and abetting in the breach of confidential

and fiduciary obligations to SLB in using the information that it had disclosed in

confidence, including SLB’s disclosure of its plans for release the Banzai Falls Criss

Cross, for purposes other than of evaluating a potential merger or acquisition of

Wham-O by SLB.

48. Defendants’ conduct has caused and, ifnot enjoined, will continue to

cause irreparable harm to SLB in a manner that carmot be calculated or compensated

5 in money damages. SLB has no adequate remedy at law.

49. As a result of the foregoing, SLB has been injured, and Defendants have

, received or, if not enjoined, will receive illicit profits and wrongful gains.

50. Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein is Willfill, deliberate and

malicious, , and constitutes fraud, oppression or malice, so as to entitle SLB to

'4 exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at trial.

-13-
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Declaratory Relief)

51. SLB repeats and re-alleges the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 50 as

though fillly set forth herein.

52. In late February 2006, SLB received a letter from Wham—O’s counsel

demanding that SLB immediately cease the marketing, sales and distribution of its

water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, based on Wharn—O’s

claim to exclusive use the colors yellow and blue for all water toy products. SLB

q dispu_tes_s_ contentions and cont.e_n_ds that SLB may continue markeutigtghfl M W p_..._,,__.. _ _ W -up ~_-,.,,,...-..-.....—.--

selling and distributing its water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water

Slides, to the public as they are currently marketed, sold and distributed to the public.

53. There is a currently an actual and justiciable controversy between SLB

and Wham-O as to whether Wham-O’s alleged trademarks on the colors yellow and

blue with water toys preclude SLB from marketing, selling and distributing its water

slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, as they are currently

marketed, sold and distributed to the public.

54. A declaratory judgment in this controversy will settle the dispute between

SLB and Wham-O thereby eliminating the necessity of further legal action on this

matter by both parties.

55. A declaratory judgment is necessary at this time to preserve SLB’s rights

with regard to the marketing, sale and distribution of its water slide products,

including the Banzai Falls Water Slides.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff SLB requests the following judgment against

Defendants:

1. For preliminary and permanent injunctive relief providing, among other

things, that Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, parent,

-14-
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subsidiary and affiliated companies and all persons acting for, with, by, through, under

or in concert with them, and each of them, be enjoined and restrained from using in

any manner any of the SLB marks and trade dress, or any marks or trade dress likely

to cause confiision therewith, or mistake or deception, in connection with the

importation, sale, manufacture, distribution, advertising or promotion of their

products, including, but not limited to, Wham-O Super Splash Turinal Slide, and from

otherwise engaging in any activity constituting an infringement of SLB’s trademarks

or trade dress or violation of the confidential and fiduciary obligations owed to SLB

aaaadlvan the infsanationaisclosed in confines: SL1iresar<_1ias .iFS..busimas ..-and . ,.

products;

2. That Defendants be required to account and pay over to SLB all profits

realized by Defendants by reason of their unlawful acts alleged herein, as well as

compensatory damages according to proof at trial, and that such amounts be trebled as

provided by law;

3. For exemplary damages against Defendants, and each of them, according

to proof at trial and as provided by law;

4. For a declaration that SLB’s products do not violate any trademarks or

rights claimed by Wham-0 and that SLB may continue marketing, selling and

distributing its water slide products, including the Banzai Falls Water Slides, to the

public as they are currently marketed, sold and distributed to the public.

5. For an award to SLB of its costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in this

action as provided by law;

6. For interest, including prejudgment interest, as provided by law; and

_ 1 5-
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,g—|. DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff SLI-3 TOYS USA, INC. hereby demands trial of this action by jury.

Dated: March 6, 2006 LAGER WEINGARTEN LLP

  eingalten

Attorneys for Plaint1 LB Toys, Inc.

EEEEEBBEEESEEEEEI
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Defendant and Counterclairnant Wham-O, Inc. (“Wl:iarn~O”) herehii answers the

Complaint ‘against it by Plaintiff SLB Toys, Ina, doing business as Toyqneiit, (“SL3”), as
follows: K I

l
!

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. P_£’tI'Elg1't1pi'1 1 states a legal conclusion to which no response is reqiujng-,d_ To gm,
extent a response is required, Wharn—Cl admits the allegations ofParagraph -1.

2. Paragraph 2 states a legal conclusion to which noiresponse is reciuired. To the
etgtent a reépoiisle is required, Wham-O admits that this Court has subject matter jurisdiction
of this action asit pertains to SLB’s claims under Section 43 (a) of the Lanharit Act and as-to

SLlEi?s claim for Declaratory Relief. .Exceptdas specifically admitted, denies the
remaining factual allegations of Paragraph 2. I "

3. Paragraph-3 states a legal conclusion to which no response is reciuired. To the
extent a response is required, Wham-O_admits' that its principal place of business is in the

State of Califot_'nia.- Except as specificslltr admitted, Wl1aJn~O denies the rerlqaining facmgj

4. Paragraph 4 states a. legal conclusion to which no response is required. To the
extenta response is required, Wham-O denies that it is located in this district or that a,
substantial portion of the events or omissions alleged in the Complaint oicctn-red in this
district. ' i - . _ I l

~
i

"i

~ PARTIES

5. _ Whatn-O lacks knowledge and infonnatien sufficient to form a iielieflf as to" the
allegations contained in Paragraph 5 and on that basis denies them. E-I

' 5. Whain-O admits that it is a. Delaware corporation with its lpfiricipal placg of
business locatedin Etneryville, California. Wham-O admits that it ptomotegi advertises and
sells toys, some of which compete with products soldby SLEH. Bxceptias'- specifically
admitted, WhaJ:'n¢O denies the remaining factual allegations ofParagraph 6,

answer. me couzarsactnnvts sou rsanstraan INFRING1gt.1gm_-
. _1_ ,
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l 1 7. Wham-0 admits that Defendant Cornerstone Overseas Inveitrnents, Ltd.
‘ . 2 (~=comerstone”) ptirchased an equity interest in WhatnnO. Wham-C.) lacks lcliowledge and
! 3 information sufficient to form a belief as to the remaining I allegations conta1'3.ed- in
' 4 Paragraph 7 and on that basis denies them.
l 5 8. Wham-D admits that Charterhouse Group, Inc. (*.‘Charterhouse") sitld its interest
l in Wham-O to Cornerstone in or about January 2006. Wharn—O lacks kiiowledge and

7 information‘ sufficient to fonn a belief as to the remaining allegations icontained in
8 Paragraph Band on that basis denies them. * t___ _

‘ -9 9. ‘ Wham-D admits that Traxi, LLC (“Traxi") represented Wham-D fin connection
l 10 with the sale of Charterhouse’s equity interest in and related negotiaifiions. Wham-
| 11 O lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form a belief as to the remaining allegations
I 12 contained in Paragraph" 9 and on that basis denies them. '

Hgwlppgkg 13 10. Wharn—C) lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form a blelief as to the
N? 1 14 allegations _contained in Paragraph 10 and on that basis denies them.

-or 15 ‘ ' :

l 16 oananaa aLLaoarIoNs e .

H I 17 ll. Wham-'0 lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form a bielief as to thep 18 allegations contained in Paragraph 11 andcn that basis denies them. '
E 19 12. ‘Wham-D_ admits that SLB is marketing and selling water slide toyi products that '

2.0 infringe and dilute Wham~O's trademark" and trade dress rights. The water Flide toys that
« 21 Wham-O is currently aware of that infringe and dilute Wham—O’s trademarl<s'inclnde the

22 “Banzai Falls Speed Slide,” the “Banzai Falls Irl—C‘rround Pool Slide," the l“Banaai Falls
23 Mega Racer” ‘and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross." Wham-O lacks _l{:rE1owledge and
2_4 information safiicient to form a belief as to The remaining. allegationsl contained in
25 Paragraph 12 and on that basis denies them. i

l 26 13. Wham-O lacks knowledge and information sufficient to form a tielief as to the
% 27' allegations contained in Paragraph 13 and on that basis denies them,

28
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14. Wham-O lacks knowledge and information sufficient to forin a liclief as to the
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allegations contained in Paragraph 14 and on that basis denies them.
15. Wham-O admits that SLB is marketing and sellingwater slide toyir products that

infringe and dilute Wham-O‘s trademark and trade dress rights. The water ilide toys that
Wl:tarn—O is currently aware ofthat i11f1'iI1ge_a11d'tii1ute, Wham~O’s tcadernarlts include the
“Banzai Falls.Speed' Slide,” the “Banzai Falls In~Ground Pool Slide,“-tl1el‘*Banzai Falls
Mega Racer" and the . “Banzai Falls Criss Cross." I I

information sufficient to form a belief as to the remaining allegationsl contained in‘

16. Whatnnf) admits that SLB is marketing and selling water slide to}?! products thatI

infringe and dilute Wharn~O’s trademark and "trade dress rights. The water :slide toys that
Wham-O is currently aware of that infringe and dilute Wliam-O’s trademarlts include the
“Banzai Falls Speed Slide,” the “Banzai Falls In—Ground Pool Slide,” thei“Banzai Falls p
Mega Racer" and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross.“ Wham-O laelts lcltowledge and

flinfotmation sufficient to form, a belief as to the rernainirrg allegations; contained. in
Paragraph 16 and on that basis denies them. -

.17. _ Wham-Cl lacks lcnowledge and information sufficient to form a lielief as to the
allegations contained in Paragraph 17 and on that basis denies them.

18. Wham-D admits that in or about October 2005, SLB entered iaito discussions
with Charterhouse, Traxi and Wham-‘D ' in connection with the poshihle sale of
Charterhouse's equity interest in Wham-O. Wham-O further admits thait prior to the
provision of ‘confidential information to SLB, SLB executed a confidential
whereby SLB agreed to certain restrictions on SLB‘s use of certain informatigirn disclosed to
SLB.by Wharn~O and/or Traxi. Wham-O further admits that Traxi was advisiiig Wham-D in
connection with the sale of Charterhouse's equity interest in Wl'tnm—Cl. Except as

a1jag,rap'h 13.

19. Wham-O admits that it issued a press release on January 19, 200:6, and that the
specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the remaining factual allegations of P

press release announced that an affiliate of Cornerstone had acquired Whaim~O fioni the
private equity iimd which had previously owned it. Wharr‘1—C) admits that this press release

answna AND connrsactanrs sea TRADEMARK ntsamestaanr
-71..
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1_.a also described many benefits to -Wham-O and its vendors and‘ customers from “tihc acquisition
by Cornerstone and that Whafn-Cl had been advised in the transaction by Traiti. Except as

- specifically admittedapvfllram-O denies the remaining factual allegations of Partigraph 19.

20. Wham-O admits that counsel for‘Whain-O sent a letter ‘to 5iLB'-5 tiounsel in late
February 2006, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibii 1. Whan_1~O
"further admits that, in later email correspondence between counsel for Wham-"!O and counsel
for SLB, the image of a Wharnwfl product included in Exhibit E was sent to ootimsel for SLB.

Paragraph 20. '

Expo-e~.c;:~»Ln~l=-U4t-l
21. Wham-O admits that SLB’s Banzai Falls Criss Cross slide produeit: shares many

'11 elements common to- the Wham-O Super Splash Ttmnel slide product jhecause SLB
12 improperly and illegally misappropriated these elements from Wham-O°s prtiidnct. Except

He no 13' -as specifically admitted, Wha1n—O denies the remaining factual allegations of liaragtaph 21.
22. Wharn~0 admits that it receives revenues from the sales of its prodrictss Wham-O

fiirther admits that Cornerstone owns an equity interest in Wham-O. Except as specifically
admitted, Wham-O denies the remaining factual allegations ofParagraph 22. E

: srasr cLn51M son RELIEF
(TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT IN VIOLATION or

15

16

17 t ,
18 ;

19 SECTION 43(n) so THE LANHAM ACT) ,-
20

21 at length herein.

I
lI

22 24. Denied. ' , '

I . 23 I 25. Paragraph 25 states legal conclusions to which no response is retiuired. To the
24 extent a response is required, Wham-O denies the allegations of Paragraph 25

25 .26. Denied. t _ I ,
26 27. Denied.

I 27 . 2s. Denied. 'answen nnn connranetnnas sea rt-omsmatnc. 1INFRINGEM'.El\lT
_ri E

Except as specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the remaining factual 'ial1egations_ of _
. _ ' . - g .

23. Wham-O repeats its responses to Paragraphs l-22 of the Cotnplaini as if set forth
. _ . !
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

SECTI0l‘~l‘43(A) so THE LANHAM -ACT} I

29. What-n~Q repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-23 of the Complaint as if set forth
at length heroin.

30. Wham-O admits that SLB's Banzai Falls Criss Cross slide produdt shares many

elements. common to the Wharndj Super Splash Tunnel slide product iheoause SLB
improperly and illegally rriiaappropriated these elements fi.-om Wham—O’s protluct, that SLB

"adopted and continues to use these common elements in order to cause corifiision among,

customers as to the source or sponsor of SLB‘s product‘ and that SLB is of unfair

competition and false designation of originpursuant to Section_d»3(a) of Lanharn Act.
Except as specifically admitted, Wham—O denies the remaining factual lallegations of
Paragraph 30. i 0

31. ‘Paragraph 31 states legal‘ conclusions to which no response is recluired. To the
extent a response is req_uired,Wha:n1—O denies the allegations of Paragraph

32. Denied. I E

33. Denied.

34. Denied.

THIRD CLAIM FDREELIEE
(COMMON Law TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT) 0

35. Wham—D repeats its responses. to Paragraphs 1-34 of the Complaint-as if set forth
at length-herein. I I It

I
l
1
I

36. Paragraph 36-states legal conclusions to which no response is repaired, . To the
_ extent a-response isrequired, Wham-O denies the allegations of Paragraph 36,5

37. Denied.
as. -Denied.

z
39- Denied. 'iJ

answsa ano.ooLntraacLAat1s sea TE.aDB.MAtLt<:. INFRINGEMENT I
L. l
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(BREACH OF CONFIDENTIAL AND FIDUCIARY §
' RELA'I‘I_ONSHIP} . E

.

FOURTH CLAIM son RELIEF ‘t A

3 . i - . .

3 40. Wham-O repeats its responses to Paragraphs 1-739 ‘of the Conrplaini as if set forth
4 at length herein. ’ M E

5 41. Wham-O admits that in or about October 2005, SLB entered inito discussions

5_ with Char-terhousc, Traxi. and Wham-O in connection i with the posisible sale of
7 Charterhouse’s equity interest in Wharnét). ‘Wham-0' further admits prior to the
3 provision of confidential inforrnation to SLB, SLB eiteettted a eonfidentiaiit-yn agreement"
9 whereby SLE agreed to certain restrictions on SLB’s use of certain. informatiiin disclosed to

I 10 SLB by Whan1—C| and/or Traxi. Wham-O further admits that Traxi was advisihg Wharn-O in
1] connection with the sale of Charterhonsc’s eqnity interest in Except as

i 12 specifically admitted, Wham-O denies the remaining factual allegations of i'arEagraph 41.
" H1 N) 13 M 4%. Denied.

43. Denied.- ' ‘- i
44. Denied. ‘ I

45. Denied. 
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(COMMON LAW UNFAJR C01V.[PE'fiTION)
19 - t r .

46. Wham-O repeats its responses t_o Paragraphs 1-45 of the Cotnp1a'rit as if set forth
20 ‘ i. '

- at length herein. ' '
21 » '

47. Denied, - ' i
22 ' _ ' ‘

' 43. Denied.

23

49, Denied.
24 - ,

50. Denied.

25 i

so p ‘
% . _ SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

27a _ (DEQLARATORY RELIEF) : n
2.3 t 51- Wham-0 Icpeets its responses to Paragraphs I-50 of the Cornplaiiit as if set forth

_ I ANSWER AND CCIUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK 11*1FIi.[t\iGEI\rfE_l~I'lI‘::
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at length. herein. _
52. Wham-O admits that cotlnsclfor Wham-O sent a letter to SLBi’s thouusel in late.

February 2006, a true. and .eaarect copy_ of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. WhsrnsO

lacks knowledge and infcntiaticn sufficientpto a belief as to the remaining allegations
contained-in Paragraph 52 and on that basis denies them. ' c _-

53. -Wham-O admits that there is currently an actual and justifiable controversy
between SLB and Wham-0 as is result of SLl3’s infringement and dilutionflfiof Wham-O’s
trademarks and trade dress. Except as specifically admitted, Whan1~D denies} the remaining
factual allegations of Paragraph 53. _ I _ _

54. lacks lcnowledge and-infcnnatien sufficient to form. a liclief as to the
3

allegations eotitained in Paragraph 54 and on that basis denies them.
55. Denied. i M

_ asstsiusrrvs oarswsss
Wham-O sets forth its ‘separate and affirmative defenses to "the Cotiaplaint below,__:.._a_—.—--u—— -u——— I-I—I

without conceding that the btirdeufof proof rests with waiin-o riith respect io_tlieshe_ issues. ‘
Wham-0 reserves the right to assert such other separate and sffirrnstiiie defenses as

. _ _ _ I .

continuing intrestigation and dislcoverjr may disclose. _
1. SLB’s claims fail to state clan-irns upon which relief may be granterli

l

2. SLB’s claims for relief are batted, in whole or inpart, by the doetiine of implied
_ _ . |and!or express waiver- - ' =

. _ I !

3. SLB‘s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the doeniine of estoppel
and/or acquiescence. ' '

4. _SLB’s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the docti-ine of unclean
hands. I I

5.

E
i

SLB's claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the doctrine of laches.

6. SLB’s claims for relief are barred, in whole or in part, by the dccti:ine- of implied
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7, p SLB has suffered no damages or economic harm as a result of the rn]'atters alleged
in the Complaint. ' I I

8. SLB is not entitled to recover the alleged damages, if any, beeriuse they _are
~uncet'tai_n, contingent, and speculative. _ '

9. - SLB has failedito limit and mitigate its d_arnage_s, if in fact any "damages have

COUNTERCLAIM or wuaivcoianc, ron raaoamanri
INFRINGEMENT, TRADEMARK DILUTION AND UNFA

coiurarirron ‘

Defendant Counterclaimant Wham-D, Inc- (hereafter “Wharr1-D”)- by and for its

complaint against Plaintiff and Counterdefendant SLB Toys, Inc, doingi business as

2 INTRODUCTION - _
1. ' This "action is brought. to restrain SLB from continuing its tielilieripte scheme to

infringe and dilute Wham-D's trademarks and trade dress associated with writer slide toys.
Prior to engaging in this activity, SLB had‘ notice of Wham-O’s trademark trade dress

- 2 I 1

rights, and 31.13 knowingly infringed these rights. Wham—D’s has federal trademark. .
registrations for color marks for the color yellow on flexible .plastic Water slides andthe
colors yellow and blue on ‘flexible plastic water slides with bumpers. Wliarn-O and its

predecessors have marketed water slide toys using these marks for decades since their
introduction. in 1961,‘ and this line of toys is beloved (and famous) ainong several

_ generations. SLB. has taken several deliberate steps toinfringe and udiluéte Wham-O’s
trademarks and_~trade dress including, without limitation, (1) selling a corripetilng water slide
toy in packaging that copies and infringes Whatn~O’s distinctive trade dress! and infringes

W1iarn—D's color marks by depicting a yellow slide with a" blue bumper [ns'spiEi;e the fagt that
the toy itself -is actually orange and blue) and (2) introducing a line of_seve:i1al'water slide
toys with yellow slides and blue bumpers. SL13’s marketing andsales of thesis products and

ANSWER AND counrsaeranurs res TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT I
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use of this packaging is causing immediate and inoperable injury to Wharnatl
hereby seeks to enjoin SLB’s infringement and dilution of its marks and trade,I dress and to

- . I

recover the damages- caused by SLB’s unlawful actions. ...l.-.-. . ..
I

I1
i
I
i

,_ THE PARTIES . 5
2. C‘.ountercle_i1nantWl1am-O, Inc. is a corporation organized and exisfiéing under the

laws of the State of Delaware and has a principal place of business at 5903 Chiiistie Avenue,
Erneryville, casromrs sasos. I

.___ _ _. _. .-I. ..___ _ ' * I

3. Upon information and belief, Counterdefendant SLB Toys USAI, Inc, doing
. . I

Business as Toyquest, is a corporation organized and existing under the lawsqif the Sttttc of

New York with its principal. place of business at .2223 Barry Avenue, Fos Angeles,
‘California 90064. L I I

II

NATURE OF CASE

4. Thisis an action for infringement "of aregistered trademark in violation of
Section 32(1) of the Lanhain Act, 15 U.S.C. §1ll4(l); for unfair competition violation of-
Section 43(a) of theILat1ham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a); for-dilution invioiatiion of Section
43(0) of the Lanhain Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(c).

II

ii
.

i
5

JURISDICTION AND VENUE. _

_ 5. This Court has suI:tj ect matter jutisciiction over this action pursuaniz to 15 U,S,Q.
§1121 and 23 U.S.C. §§l33l and 1333. Venue is proper within this ciistiict under the
provisions of28 U.S-.C. §l39l(b) and (C). I

i
i

wnaM—o*s warren sLtDE MARKS AND TRADE rinses p I
5. - For many years and long prior to SL1?-‘s acts cornplainecl of l1erein,§ Wl1atn—C) and

its predecessors -in interest have continuously engaged in the business of mcnliifactniing and
marketing in interstate comtnerce toys called “water-slides” sold under the tr'frclemarl<: SLIP

ANSWER mo COUN‘I‘BR.C'I.AIMS son TRADEMARK INFRJINGsrunrrr I
In
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- slides fiornthose of other manufacturers. , i

r “ T-64! P.il-2/SEN F-303

‘N SLIDE. The water slide portion of Wham-Ola SLIP ‘N ‘SLIDE waterislide toys is

colored yellow, and that color has long served to identify and distinguish" Whjtrrt-O’S water
slides front those of others. Thellannpcr portion of Whatn«O‘s water slide to)Jl$ i3 typically

' colored blue, and that color has also served to identify and distinguish Wham~O’s water

7. A color mark for a water slide of the color yellow was duly re%giatcred as a
trademark in the United States Patent and Trademark Office on March _19S7 and

; Wl1art:t—0 is the owner of Reg. No. 1,432,069 for thatuniarltj A copy of a priiitout from the
. ,

USPTIQ database reflecting this registration is attached as -Exhihitz. Registration No.
i 1,432,069 was assigned to Wharn—0 in-1997. As ,a result of lengthy use arid compliance

I I 1 . I l - 1 -

"with statutory requirements, this mark has attained incontestable status; |That mark 15
referred to herein as the ysttow waraa SLIDErnarl~:. ‘ i

E. A color mark for a water slide of the color yellow with the color bltie on bumpers

at the end of the slide was duly registered as ‘a trademark in the United Stages Patcnt_ and
' Trademark Office on February 3, 200.5 and Wharr1~O is the otvner of Reg. No.|.2,924,74rt for
- that mark. A copy of a printout from the _USP_TO database reflecting this ,hegi.stration is

1 attached as Exhibit 3, That mark is ‘referred to herein as the YELLOW/Bl!.UE WATER _
. _ I

SLIDE rnarlc. ' r ' 1.l

. r ' . I

9. The YELLOW WATER SLIDE mark" and the YELLOW/BLUE WATER SLIDE
rnarlc are referred to .herein collectively as _the WI-IAM-O COLOR MARKS.

10. The SLIP ‘N SLIDE yellow Water slide toy was first introduced atfi: least as early
as 1961, was promoted and sold for decades by Wham-O’s predecessors, anpli the goodwill
associated with such prornotion and sales was duly -assigned to Whar'p~O with the
registrations. Wham-O first began using the product in May 1998, and first Udell the product

in interstate commerce infieeernber 1993." I I _ '

11. Upon its acquisition of the marks and-associated goodwill, Wham? engaged in "a
substantial investment to completely redesign and testthe product. This re-design included,

1 among other things, the addition of a. blue scalloped bumper to one end oéf the SLIP ‘Nl .

answer. auo couursnctattus 1=oarsnnsMaart'ntran-toarasnr E
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I I SLIDE yellow water slide toy product. The bumper was designed to prevent iniury by safely

. 2 StDpP~i_flg the forward movement of a child sliding across the surface of the toyflr. As a result
3 and--"its substantial investment re-design " and testing of the toy, Wharnvtili obtained the
4 approval of the Consumer Products Safety Commission for its SLIP ‘N SLIDEg yellow water

' 5 slide toy. ' y

_ 6 lil. Wham-D has widely promoted the redesigned SLIP ‘N SLIDE yell iw water slide

7 _ toy since December 1993,. including significant expenditures on marketing effprts, including
3 television advertising. The product has been 3Ql.(l.._lI!Y all of the nation’s' laigest discount

'9 _ retailers, including, among others, Wal-lv1art® and Target®. It is regularly gne of the top
' 10 - five ranked toys according to The MPID Group,'lne., the leading toy rnonitoripg and market ' i

11 research firm. Over more than four decades of use, and in the last five yeard of promotion
12

from Wham-C).

27'

and sales by W'ham—O, the WHAl\/1-0 COLOR MARI<’.$ have acquired strorig comntercial .
significance. Indeed, Wharn-(T5 market research reveals unanimous unaided awareness of
the yellow water slide as a SLIP ‘N SLIDE toy. I ' ,

13. In addition to the WHHAM-C) onion Manna, Wham—O has also iieveloped and
established distinctive trade dress the design and configuration. of its vgfirater slide toy
packaging. Examples of this trade dress are attached as Exhibit 4. As dirnonstrated in

Exhibit 4, Wham-0'3-trade dress makesprominent use of color pictures oi later slide toys
bearing. the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS..- The trade dress also contains numlierous common
graphic design elements. Taken together, these elements form the WHAM-O WATER

SLlDE TRADE. DRESS. This trade dress is distinctive, it" has become wellland favorably

knovvn throughout the-United States and it has achieved secondary meaning. lbs purchasing
public has some to the WHAM40 wares suns TRADEIDRESS with dare: slide toys

l . u

_ l4._ In sum, Wham-O"s toy water slides are well and favorably icnown by the
purchasing public under the wnaweo cores MARKS and the wnalcco warm
suns TRADE DRESS; indeed, an-. SLlP_‘N suns YELLOW warnnsrrns toy has

28 become an iconic child’s'toy, a symbol _of summer fun in hot weather, anii is famous to

answer: awn COUNTERCLAIMS son TRADEMARK nsrriutcsmsnr l
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children and adults (particularly those who played with it in their childhood) alilce.

15. Wl1aIt1—O has provided riotice that the WHAM~Cl COLOR MARKS flare federally~
registered by displaying the letter R enclosed within a circle, thus addition, on
information and belief, SLB had actual_notice that the WHAM-O COLOR l:y[ARKS were
federallyeegistered.

ll

f
lJ1I

COUNT-ERDEFE'Nl)ANT’S INFRINGING ACTIVITIES i
p 16. SLB mannteomres an_d_nt_tgl_;et,s_ riva1_water_slide toys. In Matcheelltilflfi, Wham-D

learned that SLB had nienufaetured and sold a water slide toy in packaging ithat infringed _l
both the Wnnivt-o coma MARKS es the WHAM4) WATER suns Tntxne DRESS.
SLB‘s packaging depicted a yellow Water slide with a blue bumper, thereby lirifringing the
wnam-o COLOR MARKS and the WHAM-O WATER Stine men 1§pRnss. This
packaging. also misled customers because the actual water slide inside waslarange rather

_ . l

than yellow. A color copy of this packaging from 2005 is attached as Exhibit
17. Shortly after learning of infringement, Wharn~O notified SL-E {ind demanded

that SLB cease and desist.’ A. copy of Wham-O’S letter to SLB is attached as Blrhihit 6.
18. In response to this letter, counsel for SL1?» communicated with couniael for Wham.

0. During these communications, counsel for SLB represented that SLB had sold all of its

inirentory in the infringing. packaging and that it would not use the mfiinging packaging in
. i 1the future; i

19. In February 2006, Wham-O-learned; that SLB is marketing and selling water slide _
toys in paclctaging. identical to that in ‘Exhibit 5 "(except that the UN} code infonnation

. ' M . |

contained 2005 date coding infonnaflon). E

' 20. Additionally, in February 2005, Wharn—O learned am: 31.13 is fnarketing and
selling new water. slide toy prodnctsthat infringe and dilute the WHA;M-_O COLOR
MARKS and infringe the _WI-IAM-O WATER SLIDE rnnne DRESS. “Rise water slide _

' - - ‘ R !

toys that Wham-O is currently aware of that .infringe and dilute W'ham—Cii’s trademarks
include the "Banzai Falls Speed Slide,” the “Banzai Falls lu~CiroundPc1'ol Slide,” the‘\

ANSWER. -AND COLTNTERCLAIEVIS FDR. TRADEIVIABJ:-’L I1‘lFRINGEMElflT I
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. “Banzai Falls Mega Racer” and the “Banzai Falls Criss Cross.” Color dopies of the, l

packaging of these products are attached as Exhibit 7. i I1

' 21. After learning of SLB’s renessnri-.,and expanded infringement, '_Wliam~0 sent ti
new cease and desist letter. Acopy of this letter is attached as Exhibit 1. SLB has refused to

. - " i

stop its infringing actions. I '
. I .

322. SLB’s use of the colors yellow and blue in connection with the |manufacture,, . I .

advertisement, distribution and sale ofWater slides damages the Value of Vifhani-O’s rights in -- I

the VWI-lAM—C)_ COLOR MARICS and is likely to injure the business reputation if-.f Wharn—0. ,
23. Wham-_O.is informed and believes that SLB is lcnowledgeahle regariiing the fame

and strength of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS among the consumers ofwate" slide toys.

-24. Wham-O_is informed and helieves that SLE has used the color prellow on the
slide portion of its slides and the color blue on the burnperportions with the intent to benefit
from Wham-{Ts goodwill and reputation in the water slide toy market," to deceive the public

as to the source or origin of SLB*'s.geods, and to profit from the demand crejited for goods
identified by the WHAM-O cores. MARKS. ' i

25. Whain-D is informed and believes that SLB has also used nurnero l elements of

l the itvnAM~o, warns suns TRADE oases with the intent to benefit rtttht wrath-o=s
goodwill and reputation in the water slide top market, to deceive the public ad to the source
or origin‘ ot‘tSLEt’s goods, and to profit from the demand created "for goods idtinrified by the

_ - | _

_Wl-IAM-O warns suns TRADE nasss. t ~ ‘ ! p

25. As a direct result of SLB’s ‘infringing’ activities, Whain—O- will line irreparahly I
in_iured_by' the confusion likely to occur, bit the damage to the trains of Whani-O”'s rights in
the Women Cohen MARKS the the WI-IAM-O WATER suns TR,aD11iDRBSS, and

_ by the likely injury to the business reputation of Wharn4O. SLlEi’s eontintied use" of the
colors yellow and blue on water" slides and infringing packaging will riiaterially and

' negatively affect the business, reputation and goodwill of Wharn—D.- E
i

375 In Sum. SLB's marketing, advertising, sale and promoting the "sale "of -its water

. slides colored yellow and blue and in its infringing packaging will create a lillpelihood that a
awswsn AND <:ooNrnacLhJMs roa rrutnismaan Ibtsanioatvrsrtr1-'1
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i
2 false and unfair -association will be made between the water slides of SLl3 iand those of

Wham-O because the purchasing public is likely to believe that SLB’s waist slides are
conn§g,:_Qsg_with, produced or sponsored by Wham-O. I i

l

i

nra,sT_cL.«i1t\rt non RELIEF ‘
(Infringement of RegistcredMeIk) :

g ‘ '(1sU.s.e. §'1114') i
283"“ The allegations "of paragraphs 1 through 27 are incorporated herein '3! reference.

29. I Wham-0's registered WI-IAM-IO COLOR MARKSM have acquizrpd secondary
meaning. Purchasers associate the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS only with} WHAM-O's

, ‘water slide" toy products. This is aresult of extensive advertising and sales tfiiroughout the
United States ofgccds hearing the WHAMO COLOR MARKS. ,

30-. SLB, by using the colors yellow andfor yellow and blue in corrneciftion with the

advertisement, distriubutionfl and sale of competing water slides, has used arid intends-to1 continue to use, in commerce an imitation of the WHAM-O COLOR MARKS in connection

with the advertisement, distribution and sale of competing water slides in a xpanner, that is
I

31. By committing the acts alleged herein, SLB has intentionally, ltziiowingly and
. willfully infringed the registered wnaivto coton MARKS," and SLB contitiues to do so.

32. Because of SL_B’s infringerneut, Whatn—O has been irreparably harlnred, Wham.

.'O will continue to suffer irreparable harrn unless SLB is 'prelinririatil‘y and permanently
restrained from infringing the wnnnco coton MARKS. -~ 4

33. Wharn-O is entitled to recover all profits heretofore realized by 31,13 during its
infringenient of the WE-I'A.M—O COLOR MARKS, as well as Wham-O’s costd in'this action

: -pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 1l-17(a). ‘ . - H - ' - . I
'34. SL}3‘s actions have been willful, malicious and fraudulent with kmiwledge of the .

likelihood of corifusionr-iruzl deception and with intent to confuse and deceiive, as alleged
. I‘ I I I -

_ answnn awn cotnersacrarus son TRADEMARK u\lFRI1\IGEMEN_T
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1 above. Therefore, Wham-0 is entitled to recover three times the amount of $LB’s profits
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10'

11

12

Home It'[Llt'_'E
.1~IEMEl!flv§l<1

.°"’lJ,_t:E.-3’ 14
nlwifllw

rI"nl-U-I

16

17

_ 18

19

20

21'

22'

23

24

26

27

as

plus Wham-(‘Ts reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section l1l7(l;l).

i

SECOND [M FD ' LIEF

(Unfair Competition and False Designation of Origin)

(15 use. §l125(a)) t h

The allegations of paragraphs lpthtough 34 are incorporated bereinbiy reference.
. _ I .

' ''‘36; As stated stave-, Wliarni-"Cl, for many years and long prior to tlteinacts of SLB

herein complained of, has marketed its yellow Water slide with a blue bumpcrlconfigtnation

at the downstream end, the bumper configuration being inflatable to present s:.n endregion
and having two side portions extending partially upstream. The yellow Watcriflide with the
blue end portion has been and continues to be pictured on Wham-O’s paclcagei, on the front
and in smaller panels on all four sides of the package. Wharn—O has promdted "the color
yellow, with theblue end portion, by conspicuously presenting the water: slide extending

diagonally across the top of the paclcage and showing a bcyriding toward theiontl, with his
arms outstretched. Wham-.O’s yellovv water slide and its yellow water slide-wi:th a blue end.
portion have come to be well and favorablyknown by the purchasing public. inacttassstty,
Wham-D’s distinctive WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS. has come to be well Ind favorably I

known by the purchasing public and has come to indicate to the purchasing public that
Wlisrn-0 is the source of goods packaged in this trade dress. . I

37.‘ ISLE has copied Wliarn~O's color yellow -for a Waterslicle and the ibluc end, and
. . . _ 1

SLB ‘has -copied the WHAM-O WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS, As a “result, SLB's '
I

marketing of its water slide is likely to deceive and cause confiision to the purcihasing public
and to induce them to believe that SLB or its Water slides are in some rrtanrgier related to,

‘ . . , - i I ‘
approved by or sponsored by Wham.-D. SLE has intentionally engaged conduct that
constitutes at false designation of origin, a false or misleading description of falct, and a false

l

or misleading representation of fact tending wrongfully and falsely to desctilnelor represent a
l

ANSWERMW CDUN"I‘BRCLPtiMS FOR TRADEMARK ll‘lFIUNGEMEl\lT
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connection or affiliation between Wharn.D’s'goods and SI.B’s goods in vihlation of l5 _
1 .

U.S.C. Section 1125(a). Wlziarn-_O believes that customers are likely to bei confused by

regarding Whatn-D’s goods and SLB’s goods. _ g
SLB’s use of such false designations oi’ crigin,- and false descriptions or representations

' !

- 33. By committing the acts alleged herein, SLB hasintentionally, kiiowingly and
willfully infringed the Wham~O’s marks and trade dress, and SLB coutinuestoldo so.

39. -Because .of SL_B’s infringement, Wham-O has been irreparably harlp-led. Wham-
'O "continue. to suffer irreparable harm unless SLB is prefiminarily and perrnanently

restrained from infringing the.WHAM-O coton MARKS and the wnaflr-o WATER 'sttnn rnanansznss.

40. Wham-O is entitled .tc recover all profits heretofore realized by SEE duringits
infringement of the WHAM-O cores. MARKS and the W1-IAM~O wirna suns
TRADE DRESS, as well as Wl1'arn~O’s costs in this action pursuant to 15 [l.S.C. Section I

0 I
1117(a). . I

41. SLB’s actions have been urillful, malicious and fraudulent with lcnciwledge of the
likelihood of confusion and deception and with intent to confuse and ideceipe, as alleged
above. Therefore, Wham-O is entitled to recover three times the amount-of SLB’s profits

plus Wham-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 11-17|(b).
. . |_

I 'I‘HlRD ct ,§lM FOR RELIEF
' (Trademark Dilution).

(15 U_.S.C. §1125(c))

il
|
I
I

i
i .

E

42. The allegations ofparagraphs 1 through 41 are incorporated herein by reference.

43. Given their more than four decades of use and the enormous popularity of_ the
toy, the WI-IAM-O COLOR MARKS are farnous among children and adults a1it¢e_ TheII

colors serve no fitnction in a water slide toy. - E
!

44. _ SLB has made unauthorized use of the marks in their products, alnd continue to
_ _ I

do so despite demand to cease doing so. ' i

ariswsa mo coontaactarus sea TRADEMARK. insantosusitt l
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45. Such unauthorized use of the marks has and will ‘actually!’ dilute the
distinctiveness of the WH_AM~i) COLOR MARKS. _ _

46. _,__F}.:,3g,3£,¢flS0n of these acts, Wham-O has suffered and is suffering aetuial, permanent

and irreparable injury, the extent: of which is presently not loiouin, and Wlnan1I!O will suffer
continuing damage and irreparable injury unless SLE is preliminarily andj permanently
enjoined from the use of the marks.

i
1

rnAg_sn_gon'nnLrsn , __ _
WHEREF(i)RE, Wlian1«O prays that this-‘Court entered judgment in its ifavor on each

and every claim for relief set forth above and award it relief including, but not ]liinited to, the
following. '_ _ i. i _

1. ' That SLB be adjudged to hays willfallyand deliberately advertised, distributed
andhsold goods infiinging the registered Wl{AM—O COLOR. MARKS, in, xdolaiion of federal
law;

a 2. That all water slides, doeurnents, advertising, packaging and any olifher materials _ - '
infringing the WHAM-O COLOR’MAli.KS in the possession, custody. or eontifol of SLB be
seized; §-

!‘ .
3. ThatSLB be adjudged to -have willfillly and deliberately infringedithe registered

V . ‘I l I

WHAM-O COLOR MARKS, in violation of federal law; '

_ 4. I That SLB be adjudged to have competed unfairly with W'harn~O infringing
use of the colors yellow and blue and/or by its infringing use of Wham-O’s irade dress on I
competing water slides, in violation of federal law;

5. That SLB and its officers, agents, owners, einployees, confederatesi attorneys and

pemiarnently enjoined and restrained from:
a. , ‘Using the colors yellow and/or yellow and blue on water slide i roducts, or

-any other rnarlc including any reproduction, copy or colorable imitation of Sflldimafk, in
eennection with the advertising, rnannfaeturing, offering for. sale, distributionxir sale of

answsn AND CQUl:l'l‘ERCLAIl-«IS res. rasoslvrasn nariunosaannr
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water slides or any other goods that are not authorized by Wham-O; I . I
I b. Llsing the colors yellow and/or yellow and blue on water slide tiroducts, or
any othermark including any reproduction, copy or colorable imitation ofsaid gnarl: '
manner lilcelyto cause, others to believe that any of SLB’s goods are made by, distributed by,
associated or connected with Wham-O’s goods; ' l

i

c. ‘Using as packaging for any water slide toy product packaging that is

confusingly similar to the WI-IAJIVLO WATER SLIDE TRADE DRESS; E
d. Committing any other acts calculated to cause actual or potentiiil purchasers

to believe that Wharu—Cl is the source or sponsor of SI-.f_B's goods; and
_ I J

_ e. Assisting, siding or abetting any supplier, distributor or any otlier person or
business entity in engaging in or performing any of the activities referred to in tlheabove
subparagraphs a through d; _ 0 . il

6. -That SLB be ordered to deliver to Wham-O all materials that il"[_frir1ge'andfor
dilute Wham-'O‘s marks and/or'ttade'_dress; ' 3

. i

7.‘ That SLB be ordered to advise Wham—O of the identity of rill customers,
‘suppliers, distributors and manufacturers of SLB’s water slides using the cdlor yellow or

yellow and blue;
8. That SLB be ordered to advise all customers, suppliers, 'di 't1ihutors and

manufacturers that SLB‘s water slides using the color yellow and/or the colol s yellow and
blue were not manufaetui-ed, 1ieensed,.autheriaed or distributed by Wham-Oi and that any
such water slides sold or distributed by SLB may be returned to --SLB in any ciondition for a

full refund, and that SLB shall make 3l.l.Cl10I'CflJI.'lCi and maintain all records reilating to such
. 1 I _

recall notices and refunds; - . - I

9. For an award of all profits heretofore realized by SLE ‘during its use of the
_ ' . I

infiinging niarlcs pursuant to 15_ U.S.C. Section 1117; I!

10. For an award of three times the amount of SLl3’s profi-ts arid Wham~O’s
, , I

reasonable attorneys’ feespursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section i117(b); E

110. For an award of compensatory darnages;
I
IANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS FOR TRADEMARK Il'~lFRIl~K3l3MENT .
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1 12. For an award ofpunifivc damages; ! %

2. 13. For an award of 1101313; and . - _ '

3 14. For all other relief the Court deerns just B.n£q3n0pBr. '

4 _' %

5 DATED: May _L, 2005. J

5 ' ' ' Respectfully,
7 ' " "JEFFREY E. FAUCETTE i

SARAH 1. GIVAN ' |
8 HOWARD CE NEMERCNE-‘.K.I CANADY

FA1.1<:«- -_ * I1

_ '9 APrCIf'esS'11a 0 1;-5
1 I

10 ' -
By:

11 %_ 1
12 _ ' Attome ' ' - Iaimaut

. WH -O,INC. -T
HOv\r:\l'L_|_:1 13

WZRSH14 E
s:MI11:1N

“"'“““"“‘“f15 E

16

17

13
19
20'

1

21 1
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23 5

I

. 24 i

" 25
:15 '

27

IANSWER AND CDUN'I'ERCLA1M3 FOR TRADEMARK INFRIt¢(3E&.{ENT ‘I



Jun.26. 2008 12:l0AM No. 6486 P. 38

M-AYj[H-200B*MON 02:10 PM JJLA COURT ' PM No, 213 413 8024 13.023
I 2 ‘ i

Y-D19-D6 10:51AM FROM-H£|WARE|.R|CE.ET AL.[4]‘5)217-5316* +l4152]?59ifl T—-Gall P.22;’.52i F-309
F1

 

  
  

1. JURY IBIAL DEMANDED 2

2 Pursuant to'Ru1e 38(2) 6%" the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plainfiffldemands trial-
3 by jury of an issues p;g3@§Y mablc of right by 2 ju1'y_. 2 i '
4 '

5 DATED: May _L 2006. !

6 ' % W Réspcctfil-11y, ' _
7 ‘ ‘JEFFREY E. FAUCETTB

SARAH J. GIVAN . [

E - _ HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI C,.fLNADY
- 2 - ~—~ FALK 3; -2.-. --

9 ' A Profcssi 2 : ' r %

10 E
' By: ,

11 . T
12 Attcfixflrs for Defendant and Countezqczlaimafit

WH do, INC. % .2 . 4,
now. D 13 '

14 f
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UNITED-STATDS DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Case No. CV 06-1382 RSWL.

_ PLAINTIFF AND
Plaintiff, COUNTERCLAIM DEFENDANT

SLB TOYS USA, INC.’S ANSWER
v. To WHAM-O’S COUNTERCLAIMS

WI-IAM7O, INC. a Delaware
co oration, COITNERSTONE
O RSEAS INVESTMENTS LTD. a
Hon Kon enn - CHARTERHOUSE

GR , I C. a elaware corporation;
TRAXI, LLC, a New York Limited
Liability Company; and DOES 1-10,
inclusive,

SLB TOYS USA, INC., a New York
Corporation,

Defendants.

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS.   

-1-
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Plaintiff and Counterclaim Defendant SLB Toys, Inc. (“SLB”) hereby answers

the Counterclaims of Defendant and Counterclaimant WHAM-O, INC. (“Wham-O”)

as follows:

1. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph .

2. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 2.

3. SLB admits the allegations of paragraph 3.

4. Paragraph 4 states a legal conclusion to which no response is required.

To the extent that a response is required, SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 4.

Paragraph 5 states a legal conclusion to which no response is required.

To the extent that a response is required, SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 5.

6. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 6.

7. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 7.

8. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 8.

9. SLB is without knowledge or information sufflcient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 9.

10. SLB is without knowledge or information sufflcient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations ofparagraph 10.

l 1. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph ll.

12. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations ofparagraph 12.

13. SLB denies that Wham-O has developed and established a distinctive

trade dress in the design and configuration of its water slide toy packaging and/or that

-2-
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any purported trade dress is distinctive, has become well and favorably known

throughout the United States and has achieved secondary meaning. SLB is otherwise

without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations of paragraph 1.3-.

14. SLB is without knowledge or information suffieient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations of paragraph 14.

15. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations ofparagraph 15.

16. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 16.

17. SLB admits that Wham-O sent SLB a letter, a copy of which is attached

as Exhibit 6 to Wham-0's eounterclaims. SLB otherwise denies the allegations of

paragraph 17.

18. SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 18.

19. SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 19.

20. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 20.

21. SLB admits that Wham-O sent a letter to counsel for SLB, a true and

correct copy ofwhich is attached to Wham-O’s complaint as Exhibit 1. SLB

otherwise denies the allegations of paragraph 21.

22. SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 22.

23. SLB is without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to

the truth of the allegations ofparagraph 23.

24. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 24.

25. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 25.

26. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 26.

27. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 27.

28. SLB incorporates by reference herein its responses to paragraphs 1-27.

29. SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 29.

-3-
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SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 30.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 31.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 32.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 33.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 34.

SLB incorporates by reference herein its responses to paragraphs 1-34.

SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 36.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 37.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 38.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 39.

SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 40.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 41.

SLB incorporates by reference herein its responses to paragraphs 1—41.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 43.

SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 44.

SLB denies the allegations of paragraph 45.

SLB denies the allegations ofparagraph 46.

A AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

For its affirmative defenses to the Counterelaims, SLB alleges:

1. The Counterclaims fail to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Estoppel)

2. The purported claims for relief in the Counterclaims are barred by the

doctrine of estoppel.

 

FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to State a Claim)

-4-
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THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Waiver)

3. The purported claims for relief in the Counterclaims are barred by the

doctrine of waiver. . I-». .+.

FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Laches)

4. The purported claims for relief in the Counterclaims are barred by the

doctrine of laches.

FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE‘.

(Excuse) I

5. The Counterclaims fail, in whole or in part, because SLB’s duties and

performance were excused by Wham-O.

SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Unclean Hands)

6. The purported claims for relief in the Counterclaims are barred by the

doctrine of unclean hands.

SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Lack of Proximate Cause)

7. The Counterclaims fail, in whole or in part, because any and all damages

allegedly suffered by Wham—O were proximately caused by the supervening or

intervening acts or omissions of WhamvO or persons or entities other than SLB.

EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Setoff)

3. The Counterclaims fail, in whole or in part, because any and all damages

allegedly suffered by Wham-C) are setoff by amounts due and owing from Wham-O to

SLB.

-5-
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NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Failure to Mitigate)

9. The Counterclaims fail, in whole or in part, due to Wham-O’s failure to

mitigate damages.

I TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Consent)

10. The Counterclaims fail, in whole or in part, because the Wham-O

consented to SLB’s acts and conduct.

ELEVENTTT AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Privilege, Good Faith, Justifiable Conduct and Excuse)

11. SLB was privileged to engage in good faith, justifiable conduct under the

circumstances surrounding this litigation and are therefore excused from any liability

to Wham-O.

TWELVETI-I AFFIRNIATIVE DEFENSE

(Acquiescence)

12. Notwithstanding and without waiver of the denials contained herein,

Wham-O acquiesced in each and every alleged act and omission of SLB as set forth in

the Complaint.

THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Injunctive Relief Not Available)

- 13. The Counterclaims fail to demonstrate any entitlement to the remedy of

injunctive relief because they fails to state facts sufficient to show continuing acts, the

threat of irreparable harm or a reasonable likelihood of repetition ofthe alleged

conduct if it were in fact established to be wrongful.

FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Justification and Privilege)

l4. W'ham—O is barred from recovering on the allegations of the

-5-
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Counterclaims, in whole or in part, because SLB’s conduct was justified or privileged.

FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Adequate Remedy At Law)

15. Wham—O is barred from recovering for declaratory and injunctive relief

on the allegations of the Counterclaims because Wham-O has an adequate remedy at

law.

SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

(Speculative Damages)

__ 16. Wham-O is not entitled to recover the alleged damages, if any, because

they are uncertain, contingent and speculative.

WHEREFORE, SLB demands judgment against Wham—O as follows:

A. Dismissing the Counterclaims with prejudice;

B. Granting such other and fiirther relief as this Court deems just and

proper, including awarding SLB the costs, interest and attorneys fees incurred by it in

the defense of this action.

Dated: May 19, 2006 LAGER WEINGARTEN LLP

Alex M. Weingarten

Jefferson K. Logan

  eingarten

Attorneys for 1-. - 1 cmdC0um.‘erclc1im

Defendant SLB TOYS USA, INC.

-7-
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2 STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)

3 counrv OFLOS ANGELES )

4

5
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I am a resident of the State of California, over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to the
within action. My business address is Lager Weingarten LLP, 1601 Cloverfteld Blvd., Second Floor,
South Tower, Santa Monica, California 90404. On May 19, 2006, I served the within documents:

PLAINTIFF AND COUNTERCLAIM DEFENDANT SLB TOYS USA, INC.’S
ANSWER TO WHAM-O’S COUNTERCLAIMS

I sent such document from facsimile machine (310) 333-0464 on May 19, 2006. I certify that
said transmission was completed and that all pages were received and that a report was
generated by facsimile machine (310) 388-0464 which confirms said" transmission and receipt.
The transmission was reported as complete and without error. I, thereafter, mailed a copy to the
interested party(ies) in this actionby placing a true copy thereof enclosed in sealed envelope(s)
addressed to the parties listed below.

by placing the document(s) listed above in a sealed envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid,
in the United States mail at Los Angeles, addressed as set forth below.

by personally delivering the document(s) listed above to the person(s) at the address(es) set
forth below.

by placing the document(s) listed above, together with an unsigned copy of this declaration, in a
sealed Federal Express envelope with postage paid on account and deposited with Federal
Express at Los Angeles, California, addressed as set forth below.

by transmitting the document(s) listed above, electronically, via the e-mail addresses set forth
below.

SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST

I am readily familiar with the firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the US. Postal Service on that same day with
postage thereon fiilly prepaid in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party
served, service is presumed invalid if postal cancellation date or postage meter date is more than on day
after the date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct.

Executed on May l9, 2006, at Los Angeles, Californ .

 
Sonny Randhawa

j-Inju- 
PROOF OF SERVICE
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1 SERVICE LIST

Jeffrey E. Faucettc, Esq. TRAXI, L.L.C.
HOWARD RICE NEMEROVSKI CANADY 1 North Broadway
FALK 3.5 RABKIN White Plains, New York, 10601
Three Embarcadero Center -1 *'-=": *~
Seventh Floor

San Francisco, California 94111-4024

Phone: (415) 434-1600
Fax:

CI-[ARTERHOUSE GROUP, INC.

1585 Broadway
New York 10022-4299 
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Attorne s for Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant SLB
ETOYS

I JEFFER, MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO LLP

Attorneelrs for iIAIp(pellant and Real Party In Interest AWCOMP TER LDINGS LLC

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SLB TOYS USA, INC, a New York
corporation,

Plaintiff and Nominal

Appellant,

— and-

; AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS. LLC, a
California limited liability company,

Appellant and Real Party In
Interest,

V.

WHAMTO, INC., a Delaware
corporation, and DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Defendants and Appellees.
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TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR COUNSEL:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT SLB TOYS USA, INC. ("SLB"), the

Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant herein, and AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS, LLC

("AW"), the Appellant and Real Party In Interest herein, appeal to the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the final judgment of the District Court,

filed in this case on December 5, 2007, and entered on December 9, 2007 (a true and

correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A) together will all interlocutory

orders, rulings and other decisions that give rise to thatjudgment, including but not

limited to: the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Sanctions and

Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, Partial Summary Judgment filed

on August 8, 2007 and entered on August 10, 2007; the District Court's Orders on

SLB's Motions in Limine to Preclude Introduction of Expert Testimony of Francesca

Benevento, and to Preclude Evidence and Argument Regarding the "Soak 'N Splash"

Name, and Wham~O's Motions in Limine to Exclude Evidence and Argument

Regarding Alleged Copying of SLB Product Design by Wham—0, to Exclude

Evidence of Discovery Disputes, and to Exclude Evidence and Argument Regarding

SLB's Affirmative Defenses, filed on October 1, 2007 and entered on October 2,

b 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Judgment as a Matter of

Law reflected in the minutes filed on October 9, 2007 and entered on October 1 1,

2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's renewed Motion for Judgment as a

Matter of Law reflected in the minutes filed and entered on October 11, 2007; the

District Court's Order Granting Permanent Injunction filed on December 5, 2007 and

entered on December 9, 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motions for

Judgment as a Matter of Law, for New Trial, and to Amend Judgment filed and

entered on February 26, 2008; the District Court's Order granting Wham—O's Motion

I for Attorney Fees filed and entered on February 26, 2008; and all evidentiary rulings

of the District Court.

672867\‘l
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Pursuant to Ninth Circuit Rule No. 3-2 and FRAP l2(b), SLB's and AW‘s

Representation Statement is attached hereto.

AW is the owner of SLB's appellate rights in connection with the above-

captioned matter as a result of a General Assignment and Asset Purchase Agreement.

DATED: March 4, 2008

DATED: March 4, 2008

5 SLB and AW will promptly bring a Motion for Substitution of Parties pursuant to

A Federal Rule of Appellate Procedure 43.

JOSHUA R. FURMAN

 By:

Attorne ' -'

TOYS ,

JEFFER, MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO LLP
ROD S. BERMAN
MATTHEW D. HINKS

B :
y TT W . KS

Attorne s for Abpfiellant and Real Party In InterestAWC MPUT HOLDINGS LLC
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA1/BMITJ'Butler3:.1‘-EarmaruLEI“ r—-!--I oxL»
‘E SLB TOYS USA, INC, a New York CASE NO. CV 06-1382 RSWL (Cwx)
\ corporation,  
  

Plaintiff and Nominal NOTICE OF APPEAL To THE
18 Appellant, UNITED STATES COURT OF

APPEALS FOR THE NINTH
19 S - and — CIRCUIT 

 AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC, a
‘ Cal1forn1al1m1ted l1ab1l1ty company,

Appellant and Real Party In
Interest,

  
 V.

WHAMTO, INC. aDelaWare_
corporatlon, and DOES 1-10, Inclusive,  
 Defendants and Appellees.
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TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR COUNSEL:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT SLB TOYS USA, INC. ("SLB"), the

Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant herein, and AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS, LLC

("AW"), the Appellant and Real Party In Interest herein, appeal to the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the final judgment of the District Court,

filed in this case on December 5, 2007, and entered on December 9, 2007 (a true and

, correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A) together will all interlocutory

orders, rulings and other decisions that give rise to that judgment, including but not

limited to: the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Sanctions and

Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, Partial Summary Judgment filed

on August 8, 2007 and entered on August 10, 2007; the District Court's Orders on

SLB's Motions in Lirnine to Preclude Introduction of Expert Testimony of Francesca

: Benevento, and to Preclude Evidence and Argument Regarding the "Soak ‘N Splash"

_ Name, and Wham-O's Motions in Limine to Exclude Evidence and Argument

1 Regarding Alleged Copying of SLB Product Design by Wham—O, to Exclude.

: Evidence of Discovery Disputes, and to Exclude Evidence and Argument Regarding

SLB's Affirmative Defenses, filed on October 1, 2007 and entered on October 2,

5 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Judgment as a Matter of

; Law reflected in the minutes filed on October 9, 2007 and entered on October 11,

2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's renewed Motion for Judgment as a

Matter of Law reflected in the minutes filed and entered on October I 1, 2007; the

District Court's Order Granting Permanent Injunction filed on December 5, 2007 and

if entered on December 9, 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motions for

Judgment as a Matter of Law, for New Trial, and to Amend Judgment filed and

! entered on February 26, 2008; the District Court's Order granting Wham-0's Motion

2 for Attorney Fees filed and entered on February 26, 2008; and all evidentiary rulings
; of the District Court.
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Pursuant to Ninth Circuit Rule No. 3-2 and FRAP I2(b), SLB's and AW's

Representation Statement is attached hereto.

AW is the owner of SLB's appellate rights in connection with the above-

captioned matter as a result ofa General Assignment and Asset Purchase Agreement.

SLB and AW will promptly bring a Motion for Substitution ofParties pursuant to

Federal Rule ofAppellate Procedure 43.

DATED: March _S_, 2008

DATED: March3:2008

JOSHUA R. FURMAN

  

  

Attorne '
roars ti

JEFFER MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO LLP
ROD s. l3ERMAN
MATTHEW D. HINKS

H ' eel Party In Interest
HOLDINGS LLC

Attorne s for =
AW C MPUT
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UNITED STILTEB DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DIS-TRICT OF CALIFOREIB.

SLB TOYS USA, INC. ,

Plaintiff,

cv 05-133 (mx)

JUBGIEHT

V .

WHAM-O INC... et al.

Defendant,

"IJ‘hnf‘II}\uf‘!-P\g.f|-uuffi-P\.4'V.f\—P%.PIn..KH.f
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, AD-JUDGED, AND DECREED

1. SLB-‘S CLAIMS FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF

Plaintiff. SLB Toys USA, Inc. '5 claims for declaratory

_relief are hereby dismissed with-prejudice; Defendant Wham-

eo's United States Trademark Registration No. 1,532,069 is

‘good and valid in law.

EXHIBIT A

Page 5
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2. .WHAM-0'3 COUNTERCLAIMST

Counter—c1aimant Wham-0 is hereby awarded final

Ejudgment on its counterclaims against SL3 in the sum of

§$6,000,000 (six million dollars), plus its costs of suit as

:the prevailing party in this action.

3. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,

Eagents, servants and employees, and all those persons in

iactive concert or participation with them are-hereby forever

Eenjoined from using the color yellow on the sliding surface
;of water slide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting

-the same. or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause

Econfusion therewith, in the sale, offering for sale.
‘distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any

locality in the United States.

HOHRLD S.W. LEW

RORALD 34¢. new -
Senior U.S. District Judge

EXHIBIT A

Page 6



 

PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CITY AND COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am employed in the City and County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the
a e of 18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is: 1900 Avenue of the Stars,
7 Floor, Los Angeles, California 90067.

THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT in this action
On March 6, 2008 I served the document(s) described as NOTICE OF APPEAL TO

by placing the true copies thereof enclosed in sealed envelopes addressed as follows:

Annette L. Hurst, Esq.
HELLER EHRMAN LLP

333 Bush Street

San Francisco, California 94014

5223357vl

John C. Ulin, Esq.

Peter E. Gratzinger
HELLER EHRMAN LLP

333 South Hope Street, 39th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90071
 

(BY MAIL) I am “readily familiar" with the firm's practice for collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S.
Postal Service on that same day with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles,
California in the ordinary course ofbusiness. I am aware that on motion of the party
served, service is presumed invalid ifpostal cancellation date or postage meter date is
more than one day after date of deposit for mailing i11 affidavit.

(BY FAX) At , I transmitted, pursuant to Rule 2.306, the above—described
document by facsimile machine (which complied with Rule 2003 (3)), to the above-listed
fax number(s). The transmission originated fi'om facsimile phone number
(310) 203-05 67 and was reported as complete and without error. The facsimile machine
properly issued a transmission report, a copy of which is attached hereto.

(BY PERSONAL SERVICE) I delivered such envelope by hand to the offices of the
addressee.

CBY OVERNIGHT DELIVERY) I caused said envelope(s) to be delivered overnight via
an overnight delivery service in lieu of delivery by mail to the addressee(s).

Executed on March 6, 2008 at Los Angeles, California.

(STATE) I declare under penalty ofperjury under the laws of the State of California
that the above is true and correct.

 
 

(FEDERAL) I declare that I am employed in the office of member of the bar of this
court at whose direction the service was ma .

G NDOLYN SANTINI  
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FaCS1mi1e: 310 861-0449

Attome S for Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant SLB
i TOYS SA, INC.

Q JEFFER MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO LLP
= ROD S. EERMAN (Bar No. 105444)
5 RBer1nan 'mbm.com

HINKS (Bar No. 200750)1 S n1 n1.c0m
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5 Te1ephr§ne?S 310 203-8080
FacS11n11e: 310 203-0567

Attorne S for fi;6)e__11ant and Real Party In Interest AW; COMP TER LDINGS LLC
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
jefferMangeis Bntfer3:Marmaraup If DJ

1[EM SLB TOYS USA, INC., a New York 6 CASE NO. CV 06-1382 RSWL (CWX)16

17 corporation,
Plaintiff and Nominal NOTICE OF APPEAL To THE

13 3 Appellant, UNITED STATES COURT OF
I APPEALS FOR THE NINTH

19 — and - CIRCUIT

20 AW COMPUTER _HOL_DINGS LLC, a
21 Ca11forn1a1im1ted11abi11ty company,

A 11ant and Real Par I
22 i mgggrist, W n

V.

i WHAM¢O, INC. aDe1aWare_ ,
co1porat1on,1and DOES 1-10,1ne1us1ve,

Defendants and Appellees.
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TO THE COURT, ALL PARTIES, AND THEIR COUNSEL:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT SLB TOYS USA, INC. ("SLB"), the

Plaintiff and Nominal Appellant herein, and AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS, LLC

‘ ("AW"), the Appellant and Real Party In Interest herein, appeal to the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the final judgment of the District Court,

= filed in this case on December 5 , 2007, and entered on December 9, 2007 (a true and

' correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A) together will all interlocutory

7 orders, rulings and other decisions that give rise to that judgment, including but not

limited to: the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Sanctions and

, Motion for Summary Judgment, or in the alternative, Partial Summary Judgment filed

; on August 8, 2007 and entered on August 10, 2007; the District Court's Orders on

5 SLB's Motions in Limine to Preclude Introduction of Expert Testimony of Francesca

3 Benevento, and to Preclude Evidence and Argument Regarding the "Soak ‘N Splash"

; Name, and Wham-O's Motions in Limine to Exclude Evidence and Argument

Regarding Alleged Copying of SLB Product Design by Wham-O, to Exclude

Evidence of Discovery Disputes, and to Exclude Evidence and Argument Regarding

SLB's Affirmative Defenses, filed on October 1, 2007 and entered on October 2,
I 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motion for Judgment as a Matter of

Law reflected in the minutes filed on October 9, 2007 and entered on October 11,

2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's renewed Motion for Judgment as a

Matter of Law reflected in the minutes filed and entered on October 11, 2007; the
District Court's Order Granting Permanent Injunction filed on December 5, 2007 and

entered on December 9, 2007; the District Court's Order denying SLB's Motions for

‘ Judgment as a Matter of Law, for New Trial, and to Amend Judgment filed and

entered on Februaty 26, 2008; the District Court's Order granting Wham-0's Motion

for Attorney Fees filed and entered on February 26, 2008; and all evidentiary rulings

ofthe District Court.
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UHITHI STATES DISTRICT COURT

CEHTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFOREIA

cv 05-13a (wx)

JTIDGHEHT

10

11’

12-

13 SL3 TOYS USA, INC.,

14 Plaintiff,

Y.

WI-IAM-O INC., et a1.

Defendant,

H.-II‘-wIn.f'h.d\..rInJ\..a-6.;-a-urn.-n-an-..rh.A'n.J
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECRE-ED

1. sLE!S CLAIMS FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF

Plaintiff SLB Toys USA, Inc.'s claims for declaratory

irelief are hereby dismissed with-prejudide; Defendant Wham-

-0's United States Trademark Registration No. 1,432,069 is

zgood and valid in law.

EXHIBIT A

Page 5



 

2 . ..WHAM—O' S COU'NTERCLAIMSi

Counter—claimant Wham—O is hereby awarded final

the prevailing party in this action.

I 3. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLB and each of its officers,

gagents, servants and employees, and all those-persons in

§active concert or participation with them are hereby forever

Eenjoined from using the color yellow on the sliding surface

Eof water slide toys, or packaging or advertising depicting

the same, or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause

EConfusion.therewith, in the sale, offering for sale,

‘distribution or advertising of water slide toys at any

locality in the United States.

ROHALD $.15‘. LEW

RONALD s.w. new
Senior U.S. District Judge

IDAIED: December 4; 2007

EXHIBIT A
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, CITY AND COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am employed in the City and County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the
a e of 18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is: 1900 Avenue of the Stars,
7 Floor, Los Angeles, California 90067.

THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT in this action
On March 6, 2008 I served the document(s) described as NOTICE OF APPEAL TO

by placing the true copies thereof enclosed in sealed envelopes addressed as follows:

Annette L. Hurst, Esq.
HELLER EHRMAN LLP

333 Bush Street

San Francisco, California 94014

5228357vl

John C. Ulin, Esq.

Peter E. Gratzinger
HELLER EHRMAN LLP

333 South Hope Street, 39th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90071
 

(BY MAIL) I am "readily familiar" with the firm's practice for collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited with the U.S.
Postal Service on that same day with postage thereon fully prepaid at Los Angeles,
California in the ordinary course ofbusiness. I am aware that on motion of the party
served, service is presumed invalid ifpostal cancellation date or postage meter date is
more than one day after date of deposit for mailing in affidavit.

(BY FAX) At , I transmitted, pursuant to Rule 2.306, the above—described

document by facsimile machine (Which complied with Rule 2003 (3)), to the above-listed
fax number(s). The transmission originated from facsimile phone number
(310) 203-0567 and was reported as complete and without error. The facsimile machine

properly issued a transmission report, a copy of which is attached hereto.

(BY PERSONAL SERVICE) I delivered such envelope by hand to the offices of the
addressee-

(BY OVERNIGHT DELIVERY) I caused said enVelope(s) to be delivered overnight via
an overnight delivery service in lieu of delivery by mail to the addressee(s).

Executed on March 6, 2008 at Los Angeles, California.

(STATE) I declare under penalty ofperjury under the laws of the State of California
that the above is true and correct.

 
   

(FEDERAL) I declare that I am employed in the office of member of the bar of this
court at whose direction the service was ma .

G NDOLYN SANTINI
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Pursuant to Ninth Circuit Rule No. 3-2 and FRAP l2(b), SLB's and AW's

Representation Statement is attached hereto.

AW is the owner of SLB's appellate rights in connection with the above-

captioned matter as a result of a General Assignment and Asset Purchase Agreement.

SLB and AW will promptly bring a Motion for Substitution of Parties pursuant to

Federal Rule ofAppellate Procedure 43.

DATED: March _, 2008

DATED: March 2008

672867vl

JOSHUA R. FURMAN
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Plaintiff Wham-O, Inc. (“WHAM-O”) by and for its complaint against

Defendants Manley Toys, Ltd. (“Manley” or “Manley Toys”), Aquawood, LLC,

A.W. Computer Holdings, LLC, Izzy Holdings, LLC, Brian Dubinsky, Samson

Chan, Lisa Liu, WAL-MART STORES, INC. a Delaware corporation (“Wal~Mart”),

TARGET CORPORATION, a Minnesota Corporation (“Target”), TOYS ‘R’ US,

INC., a Delaware corporation (“TRU”), and KMART CORPORATION, a Michigan

corporation (“Kmart”) alleges as follows: I

INTRODUCTION

1. On October 11, 2007 a jury in the District Court for the Central District of

California awarded WHAM-O a $6 million verdict against SLB Toys USA, Inc.

doing business as Toyquest (“SLB”) for willfirl trademark infringement, willfiil

trademark dilution, and willful false advertising in connection with SLB’s

unauthorized use of WI-IAM-O’s registered trademark in the color yellow for water

slide toys, Reg. No. 1,432,069 (“YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark”). Following the

verdict, but before the Court entered judgment, SLB initiated an elaborate scheme

designed to evade_judgment and deprive WHAM-O of its award, purporting to divest

itself of all of its assets and liabilities through an unsupervised, unregulated

Assignment for Benefit of Creditors under state law. On or about December 9, 2007,

this Court entered its judgment and permanent injunction against SLB, restraining

SLB and all those acting in concert with it from further infringement of WHAM—O’s

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. WHAM-O thereafter served that judgment and

permanent injunction upon Manley Toys, Chan, Liu and Dubinsky personally.

Although Dubinsky initially evaded service of the judgment and permanent

injunction, WHAM-O is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that, even

during the period of evasion, Dubinsky had actual knowledge of the terms thereof, as

retailers reported to WHAM-O that Dubinsky falsely assured them that they need not

comply with that permanent injunction.

2. In fact, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu and Manley have flagrantly

l
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disregarded the terms of this Court’s injunction by continuing to market, sell and

distribute to retailers unauthorized slides bearing the YELLOW WATER SLIDE

Mark as well as advertising in the form of product packaging on numerous products

bearing depictions ofunauthorized slides bearing the YELLOW WATER SLIDE

Mark.

3. Both from the evidence given at the October trial in the prior action and

from evidence that has emerged as a result of the ABC, it is apparent that SLB was

nothing more than an undercapitalized shell corporation that failed to follow even the

most basic corporate formalities and that Dubinsky, Chan, Liu, Manley and Izzy

Holdings, LLC (“Izzy” or “Izzy Holdings”) are its alter egos. SLB was simply the

United. States division of the overall enterprise known as Manley Toyquest, run by

Chan, Liu and Dubinsky. Izzy holds real property for the enterprise in the United

States, and owns the property at the locations where SLB conducted its principal

place of business. Izzy is owned by Chan and Dubinsky, and also has failed to

observe corporate formalities. In fact, there was no lease between SLB and Izzy, and

SLB paid many of the property-related expenses that Izzy, as the landlord, would

otherwise have been expected to pay.

4. Additionally, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu have started a new enterprise in the

United States that simply replaces SLB’s former operations, retaining the same

employees, assets and business, and operating at the same location still owned by

Chan and Dubinsky through Izzy, such enterprise being conducted in the names of

AW Computer Holdings LLC (“AW”) and Aquawood LLC (“Aquawood”).

Aquawood, controlled by Dubinsky and acting on behalf of Manley, Dubinsky, Chan

and Liu, has continued to market and sell infringing products and packaging.

5. WHAM-O thus hereby brings further Lanham Act and other trademark

claims against Defendants Manley, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu for their

ongoing willful trademark infringement, trademark dilution, and false advertising in

violation of the Lanharn Act and California law. WHAM-O fiirther seeks an order, to

2
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the extent not adjudicated in the Color Case, that the true owners behind SLB~Brian

Dubinsky, Samson Chan, Lisa Liu, Manley and Izzy—be held liable for the judgment

as SLB’s alter egos, and that AW/Aquawood be held liable as its successor. They are

the true judgment debtors as well as SLB.

6. WHAM~O also provided Defendants Wal-Mart, TRU, Target and Kmart

with copies of the permanent injunction, and requested that they cease selling the

products that violate the injunction and otherwise infringe WHAM-O’s YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark. Wal-Mart has been a responsible corporate entity in

connection with WHAM-0’s trademarks since being provided notice of the judgment

and permanent injunction. It promptly complied upon receiving notice of the

permanent injunction, pulling infringing products from its shelves and is agreeing to

use the trademark only pursuant to a license. Kmart has pledged that it will either

return the infringing products and packaging or use the trademark only pursuant to a

license. Target is engaged in ongoing license discussions with Wham-O that Wham-

O believes will shortly conclude with a license. TRU, however, has refused to stop

selling infiinging products and packaging and has refused to take a license.

Moreover, this is not the first time that TRU has sold infringing products.

Accordingly, TRU is sued herein for willful trademark infringement.

7. WHAM-O also files this creditor’s suit against Defendants Wal—Mart,

Target, TRU, and Kmart pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section

708.210. WHAM-O is informed and believes and thereupon states that Wal—Mart,

Target, TRU, and Kmart hold several million dollars in ftmds that are payable to the

true judgment debtor, Manley.

THE PARTIES

8. Plaintiff Wham-O, Inc. is a corporation organized and existing under the

laws of the State of Delaware and has a principal place of business at 5903 Christie

Avenue, Emeryville, California 94608.

9. Upon information and belief, Defendant Manley Toys, Ltd. is a

3
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corporation organized and existing under the laws of Hong Kong, with its principal

place ofbusiness in Hong Kong at 818 Cheung Sha Wan Road and its principal place

ofbusiness in the United States at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles,

California. Manley regularly conducts business in this District and elsewhere

throughout the United States through the operations ofjudgment debtor SLB dba

Toyquest and its successor Aquawood LLC dba Toyquest. Manley has entered into

contracts with United States retailers that provide for the shipment of infringing and

contemptuous product into this District and elsewhere throughout the United States,

and Manley has also delivered such product to retailers in Hong Kong with the

knowledge and intent that such infringing and contemptuous product be placed on

retail store shelves and sold to consumers throughout this District and elsewhere in

the United States.

10. Upon information and belief Defendant Izzy Holdings, LLC is a limited

liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of California

owned by Brian Dubinsky and Samson Chan, and has a principal place ofbusiness at

2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles, California.

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant Aquawood, LLC is a limited

‘liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and

has a principal place of business at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles,

California.

12. Upon information and belief, Defendant AW Computer Holdings, LLC is

a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of

California and has a principal place ofbusiness at 2228-2229 Barry Avenue, Los

Angeles, California.

13. Upon information and belief, Brian Dubinsky is a resident of California,

residing at 521 S. Bentley Ave., Los Angeles, CA 90049 and regularly conducts

business in this District, with his principal place of business at 2228-2229 Barry

Avenue, Los Angeles, California.

4
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14. Upon information and belief Samson Chan is a resident ofHong Kong,

residing at Flat B, 11/F, Sunpeace Court, 136-142 Boundary Street, Kowloon, Hong

Kong, and regularly conducts business within this District. Chan’s business card

states that his offices in the United States are located at 2228 Barry Avenue, Los

Angeles, California. Throughout the period of infringement alleged by this

Complaint, Chan was the Chief Executive Officer of SLB, the judgment debtor.

15. Upon information and belief Lisa Liu is a resident of Hong Kong,

residing at Flat F, 5/F, The Astrid Tower 2, 180 Argyle Street, Kowloon,‘Hong Kong,

and regularly conducts business within this District. Liu is the Managing Director of

Manley, and throughout the period of infringement alleged by this Complaint

claimed to be the sole Director of SLB, the judgment debtor. Throughout the period

of infringement alleged by this Complaint, Liu owned 50% or more of SLB, the

judgment debtor, whose principal place ofbusiness was located in this District at

2228 Barry Avenue, Los Angeles, California. Liu also personally signed and sent

royalty statements into this District on behalf of SLB and Manley reporting and

attesting to a licensor, Six Flags, the accuracy of the sales of the infiinging product.

16. Upon information and belief Defendant Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. is a

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its

principal place ofbusiness at 702 SW 8th Street, Bentonville, Arkansas 72716. Wal-

Mart conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

17. Upon information and belief, Defendant Target Corporation is a

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota with its

principal place of business at 1000 Nicollet Mall TPN-0945, Minneapolis, Minnesota

55403. Target conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

18. Upon information and belief, Defendant Toys ‘R’ Us, Inc. is a corporation

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal

place of business at One Geoffrey Way, Wayne, New Jersey 07470. Toys ‘R’ Us

conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

5
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4. 19. Upon information and belief, Defendant Kmart Corporation is a

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan with its

principal place ofbusiness at 3333 Beverly Road, Hoffman Estates, Illinois, 60179.

Kmart conducts regular and systematic business throughout this District.

NATURE OF THE CASE

20. This is an action for: (i) judgment debtor’s interest in debt to satisfy

money judgment pursuant to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code 708.210 et seq.; (ii) infringement

of a registered trademark in violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.

§ 1114; (iii) false advertising in violation of Section 43 (a) of the Lanham Act, 15

A

C3CDOO'\|O3U‘l-P-C.-Jl\)
U.S.C. § l125(a); (iv) trademark dilution in violation of Section 43(c) of the Lanham

4. 4.
Act, 15 U.S.C. § ll25(c); (V) unfair competition in violation of the common law of

_\. l\J
the State of California; (vi) contributory and vicarious trademark infringement in

violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114; (vii) contributory
_\. 0.)

_x -I3
and vicarious false advertising in violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15

_x U1
U.S.C. § 1125(a); and (viii) contributory and vicarious trademark dilution in violation

of Section 43(c) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(0).
_\ CD

_\ '\l
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

21. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the federal law claims

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1131, 1138 and has subject matter

_\. OD

_\. (O

l\.} O
jurisdiction over the state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. Venue is proper

within this district under the provisions of 28 U.S.C. § 1391.
IO .1

NJ [U
22. General personal jurisdiction is proper over each of the retailer defendants

IU CA3
(Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart) based upon their regular and systematic

NJ -I3
conduct ofbusiness within this District. General personal jurisdiction is proper over

I\> O1
Dubinsky, Aquawood, AW, Manley and Izzy based upon their regular and systematic

E\J CD
business activity, residence, and/or ownership ofproperty within this District.

I\) '\l
Specific personal jurisdiction also is proper over Manley, Aquawood, AW, Izzy,

|'\J O0
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Dubinsky, Chan, Samson and Liu based upon their contacts with the forum giving

rise to the claims as alleged in detail herein.

BACKGROUND FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS

A. WHAM—O’s Trademarks

23. WI-IAM—O and its predecessors have long engaged in the business of

manufacturing and marketing ir1 interstate commerce toys called “water slides” sold

under the SLIP ‘N SLIDE trademark. SLIP ‘N SLIDE is a registered trademark of

WHAM-O, U.S. Reg. No. 761,883, attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

24. Since the introduction to the public of the SLIP ‘N SLIDE water slide toy

in 1961, the sliding surface of one or more versions ofWHAM—O’s SLIP ‘N SLIDE

water slide toy has continuously been colored yellow, and that color has long served

to identify and distinguish WI-IAM-O’s water slide toys from those of others.

WHAM-O and its predecessors have sold millions of yellow water slides under the

SLIP ‘N SLIDE trademark, and WHAM—O has consistently promoted the YELLOW

mark on its packaging, creating a direct consumer association between the SLIP ‘N

SLIDE word mark and the YELLOW color mark.

25. WHAM-O has widely promoted the SLIP ‘N SLIDE YELLOW WATER

SLIDE toy, including significant expenditures on marketing efforts, including

television advertising. The product has been sold by all of the nation’s largest

discount toy retailers, including Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart. Over more than

four decades ofuse, promotion and sales, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark has

become famous. In 2003, the fame of the SLIP ‘N SLIDE YELLOW WATER

SLIDE toy was further recognized when it was included as an iconic toy of youth in

the Paramount film, Dickie Roberts: Former Child Star.

26. A registration for the color yellow on water slide toys duly issued from the

United States Patent and Trademark Office on March l0, 1987, and WHAM-O is the

owner ofReg. No. 1,432,069 for that mark. A copy of the registration for the

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is attached as Exhibit 2. As a result of lengthy use

7
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and compliance with statutory requirements, this registration has attained

incontestable status. The goodwill associated with the SLIP ‘N SLIDE and

YELLOW WATER SLIDE trademarks, and the registrations therefore, were duly

assigned to WHAM-O in 1997.

27. In sum, WHAM~O’s water slide toys using the YELLOW WATER

SLIDE Mark are well and favorably known by the purchasing public. They have

become iconic toys, a symbol of summer fun, and famous to children and adults

alike.

B. The Underlying Lawsuit

28. In March 2005, WHAM-O learned that SLB had manufactured,

distributed, marketed, advertised, sold, and offered for sale water slide toys in

packaging that infringed the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. Shortly after learning

of this infringement, WHAM-O notified SLB of its infringement and demanded that

SLB cease and desist. In response, counsel for SLB represented to WHAM-0’s

counsel that SLB had sold all of its inventory in the infringing packaging and that it

would not use the infringing packaging in the future. Almost a year later, in February

2006, WHAM-O learned that SLB was again manufacturing, distributing,

advertising, marketing, selling, and offering for sale water slide toys in packaging

identical to the infringing packaging SLB promised to stop using. In addition, SLB

was marketing and selling new water slide toy products that infringed and diluted

WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. After learning of SLB’s renewed

and expanded infringement, WHAM-O sent a new cease and desist letter. SLB

refused to stop its infringing actions, and instead brought an action for, inter alia,

trademark infringement and declaratory relief in the Central District of California, to

which WHAM-O counterclaimed for, inter alia, willful infringement, willful

dilution, intentional false advertising, and unfair competition. SLB’s frivolous

claims were all subsequently dismissed, without compensation to SLB.

29. Beginning on October 2, 2007, WHAM-O tried its counterclaims against

8
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SLB for trademark infiingement, trademark dilution, false advertising and unfair

competition to a jury for six days (hereinafter, “the Color case”) and SLB tried its

claim for invalidity of WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. WHAM—O

obtained a jury verdict against SLB for willful infringement, willful dilution, and

willful false advertising under the Lanham Act, and the jury specifically rejected

SLB’s invalidity defense. With respect to infringement, the jury found that SLB

acted “intentionally, knowing it was an infringement, or with an aura of deliberate

indifference or willful blindness to Wham—O’s rights, or used the trademark for the

purpose of trading upon Wham-O’s reputation.” With respect to dilution, the jury

found that SLB “intended to trade on Wham—O’s reputation or to cause dilution of the

famous mark.” Finally, with respect to false advertising, the jury found that SLB

made “a false statement with the intention to deceive the consuming public, or

otherwise acted in bad faith in conducting false advertising, then the false advertising

was willful.” Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is the jury's verdict in the Color case.

30. The jury awarded WI-[AM-O damages of $3.6 million and recommended

an enhanced damages award of $2.4 million because of SLB’s willful conduct. The

Court accepted the jury’s enhanced damages award and entered judgment

adjudicating the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark valid, willfully infringed and

intentionally diluted, awarding $6 million plus costs, and granting a permanent

injunction. A true and correct copy of that Judgment, entered on December 9, 2007,

is attached hereto as Exhibit 4. Accordingly, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark

has been adjudged and decreed both valid and famous by this Court. In addition, on

February 26, 2008, the Court deemed the case to be “exceptional” within the meaning

of the Lanham Act because of the willful and deliberate conduct of SLB and granted

WHAM-O’s motion for attorneys’ fees, awarding WHAM—O an additional

$1,768,882.24. A true and correct copy of the Order awarding attorneys’ fees,

entered on February 26, 2008, is attached hereto as Exhibit 8.

9

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

CASE NO.: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWX)



C se 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL—CW Document 34

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

Filed 04/21/2008 Page 11 of41

C. ABC Process, Alter Ego & Successor Liability

31. During the trial of the Color case, testimony was given by Dubinsky and

statements were made by SLB’s attorneys to the jury that suggested an alter ego

relationship with Manley. Shortly after the trial, WHAM-O took deposition

testimony fiom Dubinsky in another action by WHAM-O against SLB pending in

this District, Case No. 06-6508 RSWL (CWX) (the “Wave Rider case”), and

Dubinsky’s testimony in that deposition further suggested that Dubinsky, Manley and

Izzy were alter egos of SLB.

32. After the jury verdict and the deposition in the Wave Rider case, but

before the Court entered judgment, SLB initiated a fraudulent transaction designed to

deprive WHAM-O of the benefits of its judgment and to avoid the effects of the

permanent injunction. Sometime in mid—October, SLB’s President, Brian Dubinsky,

and SLB’s in—house counsel, Joshua Furman, met with attorney Ron Bender of the

firm Levene Neale Bender Rankin & Brill. During the course of that meeting,

Bender contacted attorney Byron Moldo of the firm Moldo Davidson Fraioli Seror &

Sestanovich LLP to ascertain whether Moldo would be willing to serve as an

Assignee of SLB in a process pursuant to state law called an Assignment for. Benefit

of Creditors (“ABC”), whereby SLB would divest itself of its assets and cease to

operate as a going concern. Mr. Moldo agreed with Mr. Bender that he would meet

with the representatives of SLB to discuss the ABC process, and Moldo, Dubinsky

and Furman met the same afternoon.

33. Unlike bankruptcy or a receivership, the ABC process is unsupervised by

a court. SLB concealed its intention to enter into the ABC process from WHAM-O

and from this Court in two pending actions (the Color case and Wave Rider case) as

well as concealing the process from the Court in Alameda County, where a third

action by WHAM~O for misappropriation of trade secrets is pending and a

preliminary inj unctionprohibiting the transfer ofevidence and requiring the

preservation ofevidence has been entered. A true and correct copy of the Alameda

10

SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

CASE NO: CV08-01281 RSWL (CWX)



C se 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW Document 34

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

 

Filed 04l21l2008 Page 12 of 41

Court’s order is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.

34. At the initial meeting with Moldo, Dubinsky and Furman explored not

only the divestiture of assets and liabilities, but also proposed that Dubinsky would

re—purchase all, or substantially all, of SLB’s assets simultaneously with the ABC

transaction. During this initial meeting and at all times thereafter until the General

Assignment was executed, Furman and Dubinsky concealed from Moldo the

pendency of the Alameda County Superior Court action and concealed from him the

existence of the preliminary injunction in that action. After the initial meeting

between Dubinsky, Furman and Moldo, Bender informed Moldo (to his surprise) that

Bender would be representing not SLB, but the purchaser of the assets in dual

transactions.

35. The irregular and fraudulent nature of these dual transactions was then

borne out in a further series of events. Dubinsky breached his fiduciary duty to SLB

by negotiating the commercial terms of both sides of the transaction—both the

Assignment by SLB and the Asset Purchase Agreement on behalf of purported

purchaser AW. Bender and his colleague, Monica Kim, improperly acted on both

sides of the overall transaction, negotiating the terms of the Asset Purchase, insisting

that the General Assignment by SLB was contingent upon Moldo’s advance

agreement to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, and then offering edits to

both sets of transaction documents. Eventually, on November 19, 2007, various

parties executed a General Assignment, and an Asset Purchase Agreement. A true

and correct copy of the General Assignment with exhibits is attached as Exhibit 6. A

true and correct copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement with exhibits is attached as

Exhibit 7. Whatever the name and form of the purchaser entity, Dubinsky and the

other participants in the Manley Toyquest enterprise were the real parties in interest

on both sides of the transaction whereby they attempted to divest SLB of its

liabilities, and the WHAM-O judgment in particular, and continue the business under

a different name using SLB’s assets, employees, contracts and property.

11
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36. Moldo thus purportedly became SLB’s Assignee. Under the Asset

Purchase Agreement, AW purported to purchase not only all of the tangible assets of

SLB, and to assume all of the contracts necessary for Dubinsky to continue operating

his business without disruption (such as utilities at the very same Barry Avenue

building and health insurance for the employees), but AW also purported—in a

theretofore unheard of transaction to Moldo who has been practicing in this area for

25 years—to purchase the “appellate rights” to the judgment in the Color case while

not assuming the liabilityfor the underlyingjudgment.

37. This “appellate rights purchase” transaction on its face violated California

Civil Code Section 3521, which provides that “he who takes the benefit must bear the

burden.” Since purchasing this purported assignment of appellate rights, AW, acting.

through Dubinsky, instructed attorney Furman to file various pleadings in the name

of SLB (rather than AW) which were not authorized by Assignee Moldo. Furman

filed such pleadings at Dubinsky’s instruction, including without limitation, a motion

for new trial, opposition to motion for attorneys’s fees, application to quash

subpoena, and various letters to the Court submitted in connection with these papers.

By taking these actions pursuant to the assignment of appellate rights, AW has

sought to obtain the benefit of that assignment which is avoidance of the judgment.

As such, by operation of law, AW also assumed the liability of the underlying

judgment associated therewith and has become a judgment debtor. Cal. Civ. Code

§3521; see Farming v. Yoland Prods, 150 Cal.App.2d 444, 448 (Cal. Ct. App. 1957).

AW and Aquawood also are successors and judgment debtors because they are a

mere continuation of SLB dba Toyquest, and because of the fraudulent ABC

transaction. I

38. Both before and after the General Assignment, Moldo requested various

documents from SLB. SLB was unable to produce any corporate minute book or any

evidence whatsoever of any meeting or action by the Board of Directors of SLB.

SLB provided Moldo no insurance policy covering liability arising from its toy

12
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design or distribution operations. SLB claimed to have no financial computer. SLB

provided no documentary evidence of the ownership of the stock of the corporation.

SLB provided no corporate filings of any kind to Moldo prior to the Assignment.

SLB refused to provide a list of its employees, necessitating Moldo to approach ADP

in order to provide W-2s and 1099s for 2007. SLB’s failure to provide information

in response to Moldo’s requests made it readily apparent that SLB had failed to

observe the most basic corporate formalities. SLB held no board meetings and kept

no corporate minutes or written resolutions of corporate action.

39. It also became apparent that SLB was woefully undercapitalized.

Dubinsky testified at trial in the Color case that Toyquest was the seventh largest toy

company in the World, but the financials provided by SLB to Moldo demonstrate that

SLB did not maintain sufficient unencumbered capital to meet its recurring and/or

prospective liabilities, and instead relied on monthly infusions of cash fiom Manley

to meet its on-going obligations, including payroll and royalty payments. These

capital infusions came in the form of regular payments internally denominated as

“commissions.” Notably, despite Manley’s continued use of toy designs created in

whole or in part by SLB, Manley ceased making these regular commission payments

to SLB shortly before the ABC transaction and has since made no such payments to

its Assignee.

40. Upon information and belief there are no documents evidencing any

issuance of stock by SLB or that the shareholders made any initial or subsequent

capital contribution.

41. As part of his duties as SLB’s Assignee for the benefit of SLB’s creditors,

Moldo has endeavored to discover the extent and value of SLB’s intangible assets,

including any intellectual property owned by SLB, such as the Toyquest trade name

and any toy designs or packaging designs created by SLB and its employees prior to

the ABC. After the assignment, Moldo directed his field agent, Tony Shokrai, to

obtain copies of the hard drives from the computers used by SLB and its employees,
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which he believed contained important corporate records, as well as perhaps the only

documentary evidence of the intellectual property owned by SLB. Dubinsky,

however, refiised to permit Shokrai any access to the computers, their hard drives, or

the contents thereof Nonetheless, these computers were transferred to AW through

the Asset Purchase Agreement, and the contents of those computers are currently in

use by Aquawood at the 2228-2229 Barry Avenue address.

42. Aquawood, and SLB dba Toyquest before it, is nothing more than a

common enterprise engaged in by Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu acting

through a variety of entities, including Manley, SLB, Izzy, Aquawood and AW

Computer Holdings. Dubinsky, Chan and Liu were in true control and ownership of

SLB and its assets at all times relevant to the infringement in the Color case, and are

presently in true control of Aquawood and AW. Indeed, Dubinsky is identified as the

agent for service of process for both Aquawood and AW.

43. One purpose of this common enterprise was to trade on WHAM-O’s

goodwill by manufacturing, selling, distributing, marketing, and offering for sale

water slide toys that infringed WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. SLB’s

attorney in the Color case admitted in opening argument that “SLB and Manley work

hand in hand. Manley makes the products. SLB assists in the design. They market,

and they are a sales agent for Manley.”

44. The overlapping connections between Manley and SLB are extensive.

According to SLB’s 2006 tax returns signed by Dubinsky under penalty ofperjury

and filed on or about September 12, 2007, the shareholders of SLB are Lisa Liu and

Alan Chan (son of Samson Chan), each purportedly owning 50% of the stock in SLB.

(In contrast, the Consent of Stockholders signed by Liu in connection with the

General Assignment just two months later claimed that she was the sole stockholder.)

In 2003, Lisa Liu was identified in the New York state corporate filings as the Chief

Financial Officer and a director for SLB. At Manley, Lisa Liu serves in the role as

the Managing Director for the company. Alan Chan, putative co—owner of SLB, is

14
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1 the son of Samson Chan, founder, owner and CEO of Defendant Manley. Samson

Chan also held himself out at various times as the Chief Executive Officer and

corporate secretary of SLB. The address listed for Samson Chan and Lisa Liu on

SLB’s corporate filings is the business address for Manley in Hong Kong. In 2005,

Dubinsky signed documents purporting to be the President of Manley, while at the

same time serving as the President of SLB. In Hong Kong, Manley’s offices bear the

Toyquest name.

45. In addition, SLB has held itself out to the world to be part and parcel with
LO03\lO3CJ'l-h0OI‘\J

Manley. Both SLB and Manley do business as Toyquest, even though SLB owns the

_\ C3 Toyquest trademark in the United States and has not formally authorized Manley to

A _.\. operate under the trade name. SLB does business under several names, including

Manley, Manley Toys, Manley Toys USA, Manley Toys USA, Ltd., Manley....\ l\3

_\. OD Toyquest, Toyquest, and Toyquest a division of Manley Toys. At trial in the Color

_\ -lb case, Dubinsky testified that his company was the seventh largest toy company in the

_.x 01 world, testimony that could only have been truthful if SLB and Manley are one and

_x U} the same. SLB’s website at www.toyquest.com listed a Hong Kong address———the

_\ ‘\l same as Manley’s address.

._\ CO 46. SLB’s disregard for the corporate form spills over to its licensing

....J. (O arrangements with third parties. SLB entered a licensing arrangement with Six Flags

l\)0 Theme Parks, Inc. (“Six Flags”), which permitted SLB, and only SLB, to use certain

[U ._x Six Flag’s trademarks in connection with the sale of SLB’s products. The rights

conveyed under the licensing agreement were non-transferable. SLB, however,I\) l\)

N) 00 concedes that it neither manufactured nor sold any products bearing the Six Flags

[*043- trademarks. Instead, Defendant Manley exercised SLB’s non-transferable rights,

[0 U‘! manufactured and sold the products bearing Six Flags’ trademarks, prepared the

[0 CD royalty statements on SLB’s behalf, and funneled the money to allow SLB to pay the

|\) \l royalties to Six Flags. WHAM-O is informed and believes and thereupon states that

28 SLB acted in the same fashion with respect to numerous other intellectual property
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licensors, including Lund & Company, Blue Man Group, Disney, Warner Bros. and

others. SLB has served as nothing more than a pass-through company for Manley.

47. Similarly, Izzy has served as nothing more than a real estate holding entity

for Dubinsky and Chan for the benefit of SLB and Manley. Izzy has been unable to

produce any written lease between it and SLB as a tenant, and SLB’s books and

records appear to indicate that SLB paid for garbage disposal, property insurance on

the building structure and premises at 2228~2229 Barry Avenue, taxes, water and

sewage, and other expenses commonly borne by the landlord. Izzy apparently

charged SLB no rent for its use of the premises.

48. Upon information and belief, Dubinsky, acting on behalf of Defendant

Manley and the entire Toyquest enterprise, directed and controlled the litigation in

the Color case. Moreover, as the sole Director of SLB, Liu —also the Managing

Director of Manley—had the statutory right and power to manage the affairs of SLB.

As a result of Liu’s power and authority over SLB and her position with Manley as

Managing Director, Manley also had defacto control over the litigation. Upon

information and belief Dubinsky communicated with Chan and/or Liu concerning

material events in the Color case. As noted above, this was not the first time

Dubinsky acted on behalf of Manley. In addition to other events described herein

where Dubinsky has acted in the name of Manley, in 2005, Dubinsky and Samson

Chan jointly visited WHAM—O to discuss a possible acquisition of WHAM~O by

Manley. Dubinsky introduced Chan as his partner. Dubinsky signed a proposed

letter of intent for the acquisition ofWHAM-0 giving his title President ofManley.

49. There is a common identity of interest between Manley and SLB dba

Toyquest. They have common ownership, directors and officers. SLB has been held

out to the public as a “division of Manley” and has used various versions of the name

Manley as its corporate name. Manley uses Toyquest as part of its trade name. SLB

has served as a mere conduit for transactions for the benefit ofManley. Manley has

manufactured, or contracted for the manufacture, of the infringing product and
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packaging designed and sold by SLB. Based on the facts set forth herein, it is

apparent that maintaining the corporate fiction of a separate existence for SLB, Izzy

or Manley, particularly where SLB has engaged in a fiaudulent transaction to avoid

WHAM—O’s judgment, leads to an inequitable result. Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu

and Izzy are the judgment debtors in the Color case.

50. Additionally, based on the facts set forth herein it is apparent that AW and

Aquawood are mere continuations of SLB, and the product of fraud by SLB in

connection with the General Assignment, and in all events are true judgment debtors

under Civil Code Section 3521 by virtue of their assumption and exercise of the

appellate rights to the judgment in the Color case under the Asset Purchase

Agreement.

D. Wal—Mart’s, Target’s, TRU’s, and Kmart’s Accounts Payable to the
Judgment Debtorgsl

51. Upon information and belief, Wal—Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart

currently have an accounts payable balance due to Manley in an amount of several

million dollars.

52. Upon information and belief, Wa1—Mart’s, Target’s, TRU’s, and Kmart’s

outstanding balances payable to Manley are for inventory purchased fiom Manley

bearing the Toyquest and BANZAI trademarks, owned in the United States by SLB,

and for products and packages designed by employees of SLB and sold by employees

and agents of SLB to retailers, all activities occurring prior to the General

Assignment to Moldo. These products are continuing to exploit intellectual property

assets owned by SLB without consent and without compensation to SLB. The

payable balances at Wal-Mart, Target, TRU, Kmart due to Manley therefore include

sums owed to the judgment debtor in the Color case, SLB dba Toyquest.

Accordingly, those sums are subject to lien and execution pursuant to California

Code of Civil Procedure Section 708.210 et seq..

5 3. Additionally, because Manley is an alter ego of SLB and therefore also a
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true judgment debtor in the Color case, the sums payable held by Wal—Mart, Target,

TRU, and Kmart for the benefit ofManley are subject to execution by WHAM—O in

connection with its judgment, and are subject to lien and execution pursuant to

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 708.210 et seq. See Fleet Credit Corp. v.

TML Bus Sales, Inc. , 65 F.3d 119 (9th Cir. 1995) (affirming district court’s

adjudication of alter ego issues in context of creditor's suit and permitting judgment

creditor to recover judgment from third party that held money ofjudgment debtor’s

alter ego).

54. Finally, to the extent any sums held by the retailers for Manley may be

owing to Aquawood, and Aquawood is also a judgment debtor based upon its

successor liability, such sums are subject to lien and execution pursuant to Section

708.210 et seq.

E. Past and Continuing Infringement, Dilution, and False Advertising
by Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU, Chan, Dubinsky and Liu

55. Acting in concert with SLB, and now with SLB’s successor Aquawood,

Defendant Manley Toys designs, manufactures, promotes, advertises, distributes,

markets, sells, and offers for sale water—related toys, including products and

packaging that infringe WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. In particular,

Manley manufactured and delivered to retailers for sale in the United States the

infiinging products and packages that were the subject of the judgment in the Color

case. Chan, Dubinsky and Liu authorized, directed, and participated in and

controlled the design, manufacture, distribution and sale of those infringing products

and packages.

56. As joint tortfeasors with SLB, Manley, Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are liable

for the identical conduct for which SLB was found liable in the Color case, including

willful trademark infringement, willful false advertising, and willful trademark

dilution.

57. Moreover, Defendant Manley Toys, at the direction and authorization of
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Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, and with assistance from Aquawood, continues to use the

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in connection with the manufacture and sale of

water slides with actual knowledge of and in contempt of this Court’s permanent

injunction order and in Violation of the Lanham Act. For example, Dubinsky, now

acting as an agent for Aquawood, has urged retailers to continue to sell Manley

products in misleading packaging that depicts a water slide toy that infringes and

dilutes WHAM-O’S YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this Court’s

permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the continued use of this Very same

packaging. Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu know their actions violate WHAM-

O’s trademark rights and this Court’s order and, nonetheless, they continue to profit

from their Violation of these rights. This continued unauthorized, flagrant and

unlawful use of WHAM-O’s mark damages the value of WHAM—O’s rights in the

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, costs Wham-O sales, further injures the business

reputation ofWHAM-O, and allows Manley and Aquawood to profit from their

illegal conduct.

58. Similarly, Defendant TRU is acting in willful disregard of WHAM-O’s

rights. WHAM-O gave Defendant TRU, along with the other retailers, notice of the

judgment and permanent injunction entered in the Color case. Despite its knowledge

of the permanent injunction and the Court’s adjudication of the validity ofWham-O’s

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, TRU sets itself apart from the other retailers by

refusing to stop its infringement.

59. As a direct result of the willfully infringing activities of Defendants

Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, WHAM—O has been and

continues to be irreparably injured by the confusion likely to occur, by the damage to

the Value of WHAM-O’s rights in the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and by the

likely injury to its business, reputation, and goodwill.
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Infringement of Registered Trademarks in Violation of Section 32 of the Lanham

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114 as to Defendants Manley, Aguawood, and TRU!

60. Paragraphs 1 through 59 are hereby incorporated by reference.

61. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have

infringed, and continue to infringe, WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in

violation of the Lanham Act.

62. The YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous and has acquired

secondary meaning. Purchasers associate the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark only

with WHAM—O’s water slide toy products. This association is a result of extensive

advertising and sales throughout the United States of goods bearing the YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark.

63. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful trademark infringement that

resulted in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley

infiinged the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark through the manufacture, marketing,

advertising, promotion, distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of its

competing goods utilizing an imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a

manner that was likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception. Consequently,

Manley is jointly and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the

nearly $8 million judgment and WHAM-0 is entitled to collect this judgment fiom

Manley.

64. In defiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,

Defendant Manley continues to profit from its infringement of the YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark through the continued manufacture, marketing, advertising,

promotion, distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of competing goods

utilizing an imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a manner that is

likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception.
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65. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuation of SLB, as the result of a

fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged

retailers to continue selling Manley’s products with yellow water slides and other

products in packaging depicting yellow water slide toys that infringe WHAM—O’s

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this Court’s permanent injunction in the

Color case enjoining the sale of these same trademark infringing products.

66. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley

products and product packaging that infiinge WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER

SLIDE Mark, despite the Court’s permanent injunction and WHAM—O’s repeated

demands for TRU to cease and desist. M
67. The activities of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU described

above constitute infringement of WHAM—O’s rights in its federally registered

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark under 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

68. By committing the acts alleged herein, Defendants Manley, Aquawood,

and TRU have intentionally, knowingly and willfully infringed the registered

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU

continue to do so.

69. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of

this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by continuing to engage in the

marketing and sale of infringing goods. Unless held in contempt and immediately

restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is

not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted and threatened by the use of

confusingly similar marks by Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in

connection with their goods and services.

70. WHAM-O has been further damaged by TRU’s willful and deliberate

infringement and the continued willful and deliberate infringement of Defendants

Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in an amount to be proved at trial. WHAM-O is

entitled to recover all profits realized by Defendants Manley and Aquawood as a
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result of their ongoing infringement, and all profits realized by TRU as a result of its

infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, as well as WHAM-O’s costs

in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § l ll7(a).

71. The actions ofDefendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been

willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM—O is entitled to recover three times the amount of the profits ofDefendants

Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their trademark infringement, plus

WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ lll7(a) & (b).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

{Trademark Dilution in Violation of Section 43; C) of the Lanham Act,

15 U.S.C. 1125 C as to Defendants Manle A uawood and TRU

72. Paragraphs 1 through 71 are hereby incorporated by reference.

73. WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU diluted,

and continue to dilute, WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in violation of

the Lanham Act.

74. Given more than four decades of use and the enormous popularity of

WHAM—O’s water slide toys, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous among

children and adults alike. The color serves no function in a water slide toy. Indeed, a

federal court has already deemed the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be valid

and good in law, and a jury held the mark to be famous by its willful dilution

determination.

75. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful trademark dilution that

resulted in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley made

unauthorized use of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in products it sold or

offered for sale. Such unauthorized use of the mark has diluted the distinctiveness of

the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. Consequently, Manley is jointly and severally

liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million judgment and
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WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from Manley.

76. In defiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,

Defendant Manley continues to profit fiom its dilution of the YELLOW WATER

SLIDE Mark through the manufacture, marketing, advertising, promotion,

distribution, offers to sell and sales in commerce of competing goods utilizing an

imitation of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark in a manner that is likely to cause

confusion, mistake or deception and erode WHAM-O’s goodwill in the YELLOW

WATER SLIDE mark.

77. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuation of SLB, as the result of a

fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged

retailers to continue selling Manley’s products in packaging depicting yellow water

slide toys that dilute WI-TAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, despite this

Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the sale of these same

trademark diluting products.

78. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley

products in packaging depicting water slide toys that dilute WHAM—O’s YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark, despite the Court’s permanent injunction and WHAM-O’s

repeated demands that TRU cease and desist such practices.

79. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of

this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by continuing to engage in the

marketing and sale of diluting goods and causing WHAM-O to suffer actual,

permanent, and irreparable injury. Unless held in contempt and immediately

restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is

not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted and threatened by the use of the

diluting marks by Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in connection with their

goods and services.

80. WHAM-O is entitled to recover all fiirther profits realized by Defendants

Manley and Aquawood during their continued dilution of the YELLOW WATER
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SLIDE Mark since the judgment in the Color case, and all profits realized by TRU

during its dilution of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, as well as WHAM-O’s

costs in this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(3).

81. The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been

willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of profits realized by

Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their trademark dilution, plus

WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ ll17(a) & l117(b).

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(False Advertising in Violation of section 43; all 1 11b) of the Lanham Act as to

Defendants Manley, Aguawood, and TRU}

82. Paragraphs 1 through 81 are hereby incorporated by reference.

83. WHAM-O alleges that Manley, Aquawood, and TRU intentionally

engaged in, and continue to engage in, false advertising in violation of the Lanham

Act.

84. As a joint tortfeasor with SLB for the willful false advertising that resulted

in the nearly $8 million judgment in the Color case, Defendant Manley’s use of

misleading packaging in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water

slide toys constituted false advertising in violation of section 43(a)(1)(B) of the

Lanham Act. The horizontal sliding surface of Defendant Manley Toys’s water slide

toys is orange, but the packaging depicts a yellow horizontal sliding surface.

Defendant Manley’s false representation in connection with the sale, or offering for

sale, of its water slide toys has caused confusion with the YELLOW WATER SLIDE

Mark and caused injury to WHAM-O. Consequently, Manley is jointly and severally

liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million judgment and

WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from Manley.

85. In defiance of the Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
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Defendant Manley continues to use misleading packaging which depicts a yellow

horizontal sliding surface on water slide toys in connection with the promotion,

marketing, sale, or offering for sale, of its products and water slide toys.

86. Defendant Aquawood is a mere continuation of SLB, as the result of a

fraudulent transaction. Through its agent, Brian Dubinsky, Aquawood has urged

retailers to continue selling Manley’s products in misleading packaging that

constitutes false advertising in violation of section 43 (a)(l)(B), despite this Court’s

permanent injunction in the Color case enjoining the use of this Very same misleading

packaging.

87. Defendant TRU advertises, markets, sells and offers for sale Manley

products in misleading packaging depicting water slide toys that infringe WHAM-

O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and continues to do so despite the Court’s

permanent injunction and WHAM-O’s repeated demands that TRU cease and desist

such false advertising.

88. Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU are presently in contempt of

this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case by engaging in the misleading

marketing, advertising, and promotion of its Water slide toys. Unless held in

contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so.

WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted

and threatened by the false representations of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and

TRU in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of their goods and services.

89. WHAM—O has been further damaged by the false advertising of

Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU in an amount to be proved at trial.

WHAM-O is entitled to recover lost profits due to diverted sales because of the false

advertising, loss of good will, the cost of corrective advertising, and all further profits

realized by Defendants Manley and Aquawood during their continued false

advertising since the judgment in the Color case, and all profits realized by TRU

during its false advertising.
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90. The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been

willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

deception and with intent to confiise and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM—O is entitled to recover three times the amount ofprofits realized by

Defendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of their false advertising, plus

WHAM.-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Contributory and Vicarious Infringement for Infringement in Violation of Section 32

of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114 as to Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu)

91. Paragraphs 1 through 90 are hereby incorporated by reference.

92. WHAl\/I-0 alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are each

personally liable, jointly and severally, for Manley’s, SLB’s, and Aquawood’s

infiingement of WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, including the $6

million judgment plus attorneys’ fees awarded WHAM-O in the Color case.

93. As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the

infringing activities of SLB, Aquawood and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan,

and Liu are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Manley’s, and Aquawood’s

infringing conduct. Committeefor Idaho ’s High Desert, Inc. v. Yosz‘, 92 F.3d 814,

823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the infringing activities of

SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and belief, Dubinsky

directed the creation of the infringing packaging, which consisted of a photograph

taken in his sister’s backyard and featured his nephew. His personal involvement in

the infringement of WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark continues to this

day, as he continues to personally and falsely assure retailers that they need not

comply with that permanent injunction entered in the Color case, intentionally

inducing the retailers to infringe WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark. His

conduct has encouraged retailers to continue distributing, selling, and offering for
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sale infringing slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by

Manley and Aquawood.

94. As Chairman and CEO of Manley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s

stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was

filed, Chan has authorized and directed SLB’s and Manley’s infringing conduct.

Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with WHAM-O’s intellectual

property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE MARK specifically at least as

of 2005 when he personally met with WHAM-O’s CEO to discuss Manley’s possible

acquisition ofWHAM-0. Furthermore, despite the judgment and permanent

injunction entered in the Color case, which WHAM-O personally served on Chan, he

continues to authorize and direct his company’s manufacture, distribution,

advertisement, marketing, sale, and offering for sale of water slide toys that infringe

WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

95. As a primary, if not sole, owner and sole director of SLE, and the

managing director of Manley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SLB’s and

Manley’s infringing conduct. Dubinsky reported to Liu, and Liu had responsibility at

Manley for the infringing products and prepared the royalty statements for the

infringing products due to Six Flags. Despite the judgment and permanent injunction

entered in the Color case, which WHAM—O personally served on Liu, she continues

to authorize and direct Manley’s manufacture, distribution, advertisement, marketing,

sale, and offer to sell water slide toys that infringe WHAM-0’s YELLOW WATER

SLIDE Mark.

96. By authorizing and directing Manley’s, SLB’s, and AquaWood’s actions

alleged above, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu have intentionally, knowingly

and willfully infringed the registered YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, and induced

others to infringe the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark and they continue to do so.

97. As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful infringement that resulted in

the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are each jointly
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1 and severally liable along with SLB for the fiill amount of the nearly $8 million

2 judgment and WHAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.
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98. In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,

Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu presently have authorized and are directing

Manley and Aquawood in the marketing and sale of infringing goods. Unless held in

contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so.

WHAM—O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted

and threatened by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s use of confusingly

similar marks in connection with Manley’s and Aquawood’s goods and services.

99. WHAM—O has been further damaged by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s,

and Liu’s for their continued willful and deliberate infringement of the YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark in an amount to be proved at trial, . WHAM-O is entitled to

recover all additional profits realized by Defendants Manley Toys and Aquawood for

their continued infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark since the

judgment in the Color case, as well as WHAM-0's costs in this action pursuant to 15

U.S.C. § l1l7(a).

l00.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willful,

malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

deception and with intent to COI1fl.1S6 and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount of any additional profits

realized fiom their infringement of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE MARK plus

WHAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ lll7(a) & (b).

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Contributory and Vicarious Trademark Dilution in Violation of Section 431C) of the

Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § ll-251C) as to Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu)

101 .Paragraphs 1 through 100 are hereby incorporated by reference.
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lO2.WHAM—O alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are

personally liable for Manley’s, SLB’s and Aquawood’s willful trademark dilution of

WHAM—O’s famous YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

. l03.As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the

trademark diluting activities of SLB, Aquawood, and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky,

Chan, and Liu are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Manley’s, and

Aquawood’s infiinging conduct. Committeefor Idahois High Desert, Inc. v. Yosr, 92

F.3d 814, 823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the trademark

diluting activities of SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and

belief, Dubinsky directed the creation of the trademark diluting packaging, which

consisted of a photograph taken in his sister’s backyard and which featured his

nephew. His personal involvement in the dilution of WHAM~O’s YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark continues to this day, as he continues to personally assure

retailers that they can ignore the judgment and permanent injunction entered in the

Color case, which adjudged the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be famous. His

conduct has encouraged retailers to continue distributing, selling, and offering for

sale slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by Manley and

Aquawood that dilute WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, intentionally

inducing the retailers to dilute WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

l04.As Chairman and CEO ofManley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s

stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was

filed, Chan has authorized and directed SLB’s and Manley’s trademark diluting

conduct, as alleged above. Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with

WHAM-O’s intellectual property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark

at least as of2005 when he personally met with WHAM-O’s CEO to discuss

Manley’s possible acquisition of WHAM—O. Furthermore, WHAM—O personally

served Chan with the judgment and permanent injunction from the Color case, which

found the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be famous, and yet he continues to

29
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authorize and direct his company’s continued manufacture, distribution,

advertisement, marketing, selling, and offering for sale water slide toys that dilute

WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

l05.As a primary, if not sole owner, and sole director of SLB, and the

managing director ofManley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SLB°s and

Manley’s trademark diluting conduct, as alleged above. Dubinsky reported to Liu,

and Liu had responsibility at Manley for the trademark diluting products and

prepared the royalty statements for the trademark diluting products due to Six Flags.

WHAM—O personally served Liu with the judgment and permanent injunction from

the Color case, and yet she continues to authorize and direct Manley’s manufacture,

distribution, advertisement, marketing, sale, and offer to sell water slide toys that

infiinge WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

106.Given more than four decades of use and the enormous popularity of

WHAM-O’s water slide toys, the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark is famous among

children and adults alike. The color serves no function in a water slide toy. Indeed,

this Court already adjudged the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark to be valid and

good in law, and the jury in the Color case held the mark to be famous.

107.Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu have directed and authorized SLB,

Aquawood, and Manley to make unauthorized use of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE

Mark in their products, and continue to do so despite the permanent injunction and

judgment in the Color case.

108. Such unauthorized use of the mark has and will actually dilute the

distinctiveness of the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

lO9.As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful trademark dilution that

resulted in the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are

each jointly and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8

million judgment and WHAM—O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.

ll0.In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,
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1 Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu presently have authorized and are directing

2 Manley and Aquawood in the marketing and sale of diluting goods. Unless held in

3 contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined, they will continue to do so.

4 WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to compensate it for the harm inflicted

5 and threatened by Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s use of trademark

6 diluting marks in connection with their goods and services.

7 lll.WHAM-O has been further damaged by the actions of Defendants

8 Dubinsky, Chan and Liu, and is entitled to recover, jointly and severally, from_

9 Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, all further profits realized by Defendants

10 Manley and Aquawood during their continued dilution of the YELLOW WATER

11 SLIDE Mark since the judgment in the Color case, as well as WHAM-O’s costs in

12 this action pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § lll7(a).

13 ll2.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willfiil,

14 malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

15 deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

. 16 WHAM-O is entitled to recover three times the amount ofDefendant Manley’s

17 profits plus WI-IAM—O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ lll7(a)

18 & ll17(b) and the enhanced damages award from the Color case.

19 SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

.20 (Contributory and Vicarious False Advertising in Violation of section 43(a)( l 1gb; of

21 the Lanham Act as to Defendants Dubinsky, Chan and Liu)

22 ll3.Paragraphs 1 through 112 are hereby incorporated by reference.

23 l.l4.WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are personally

24 and vicariously liable for the intentional false advertising engaged in by Manley and

25 Aquawood in violation of the Lanham Act.

26 ll5.As corporate officers and directors who authorized and directed the false

27 advertising by SLB, Aquawood, and Manley, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu

28 are personally and vicariously liable for SLB’s, Aquawood’s, and Manley’s
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intentional false advertising. Committeefor [dark ’s High Desert, Inc. v. Yost, 92 F.3d

814, 823 (9th Cir. 1996). Dubinsky authorized and directed the false advertising by

SLB and Aquawood as their president. Upon information and belief Dubinsky

directed the creation of the misleading packaging, which consisted of a photograph

taken in his sister’s backyard and which featured his nephew. His personal

involvement in the false advertising continues to this day, as he continues to

personally assure retailers that they can ignore the judgment and permanent

injunction entered in the Color case. His conduct has encouraged retailers to

continue distributing, selling, and offering for misleading and false packaging for

water slides designed by SLB and manufactured, distributed and sold by Manley and

Aquawood, intentionally inducing the retailers to engage in false advertising to the

derogation of WHAM-O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark.

ll6.As Chairman and CEO ofManley, and owner of almost 95% of Manley’s

_ stock, as well as CEO and corporate secretary of SLB at the time the Color case was

filed, Chan has authorized and directed SLB’s and Manley’s false advertising, as

alleged above. Upon information and belief, Chan was familiar with WHAM—O’s

intellectual property generally and the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark at least as of

2005 when he personally met with WI-IAM-O’s CEO to discuss Manley’s possible

acquisition of WI-IAM—O. Furthermore, WHAM-O personally served Chan with the

judgment and permanent injunction fiom the Color case, which found SLB’s

packaging misleading and false, and yet he continues to authorize and direct his

company’s false and misleading advertising.

l17.As a primary, if not sole, owner and the sole director of SLB, and the

managing director of Manley, Lisa Liu has authorized and directed SLB’s and

Manley’s false advertising, as alleged above. Dubinsky reported to Liu, and Liu had

responsibility at Manley for the products that were falsely advertised and prepared

the royalty statements for those products due to Six Flags. WHAM~O personally

served Liu with the judgment and permanent injunction from the Color case, and yet

32
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she continues to authorize and direct Mar1ley’s false and misleading advertising.

ll8.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s direction and authorization of

false and misleading advertising by SLB, Manley Toys, and Aquawood, in

connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water slide toys constitute false

advertising in violation of section 43 (a)(l)(B) of the Lanham Act. The horizontal

sliding surface of SLB’s and Defendant Manley’s water slide toys is orange, but the

packaging depicts a yellow horizontal sliding surface. This false representation in

connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its water slide toys has caused, or is

likely to cause, confusion with the YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark and cause injury

to WHAM-O.

l19.As joint tortfeasors with SLB for the willful false advertising that resulted

in the judgment in the Color case, Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are jointly

and severally liable along with SLB for the full amount of the nearly $8 million

judgment and WI-IAM-O is entitled to collect this judgment from them.

120.In defiance of this Court’s permanent injunction in the Color case,

Defendants Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu continue to direct and authorize Manley and

Aquawood to engage in the misleading marketing, advertising, and promotion of its

water slide toys. Unless held in contempt and immediately restrained and enjoined,

they will continue to do so. WHAM-O’s remedy at law is not adequate to

compensate it forthe harm inflicted and threatened by Defendants false

representations in connection with the sale, or offering for sale, of its goods and

services.

121 .WHAM—O has been further damaged by Defendants’ continued false

advertising in an amount to be proved at trial. WHAM-O is entitled to recover any

additional lost profits due to diverted sales because of the continued false advertising,

loss of good will, the cost of corrective advertising, and all profits further realized by

Defendants Manley and Aquawood during their false advertising since the judgment

in the Color case..
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122.Defendants Dubinsky’s, Chan’s, and Liu’s actions have been willful,

malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of COI1fLlSl0I1 and

deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM—O is entitled to recover three times the amount of the profits realized by

Defendants Manley and Aquawood, plus WI-IAM-O’s reasonable attorneys’ fees.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[Judgment Debtor’s Interest in Property or Debt to Satisfy Money Judgment Pursuant

to Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 708.210 et seg. as to all Defendants)

l23.Paragraphs 1 through 122 are hereby incorporated by reference.

l24.0n or about December 9, 2007, the District Court for the Central District

of California entered a $6 million money judgment against SLB in favor of WHAM—

O in Case No. CV06-1382 RSWL (CWX) in the United States District Court for the

Central District of California.

125 .On or about February 26, 2008, the District Court for the Central District

of California granted WHAM-O’s motion for attorneys’ fees, awarding an additional

$1,768,882.24 to WHAM-O in Case No. CV06-1382 RSWL (CWX).

l26.WHAM—O’s judgment in Case No. CV06-1382 has not been satisfied, and

SLB has sought to evade that judgment by initiating the unsupervised and fraudulent

ABC process.

l27.In light of the unity- and identity of interest between SLB, Defendants

Manley, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, the severe undercapitalization of SLB, SLB’s

complete disregard of corporate formalities, and the inequitable result that will arise

if SLB is permitted to maintain its corporate fiction, Defendants Manley, Dubinsky,

Chan and Liu are the alter egos of SLB and are judgment debtors each fully liable on

the $6 million judgment entered against SLB, in addition to the $1,768,882.24 in

attorney’s fees awarded to WHAM—O by the Court, It is proper, under longlstanding

California law, to treat SLB’s alter egos as the true judgment debtors, because “[t]hat

a court may at any time amend its judgment so that the latter will properly designate

34
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the real defendants is not open to question.” Mirabito v. San Francisco Dairy Co., 8

Cal.App.2d 54, 57 (1935); see also Thomson v. L. C. Roney & C0,, 112 Cal.App.2d

420, 425 (1952) (amendment to judgment to add alter ego is “simply an amendment

whose purpose is to designate the real name of the judgment debtor”).

l28.In light of the unity of interest between Izzy Holdings and its alter egos,

Dubinsky and Chan, on the one hand, and SLB and SLB’s alter egos, including

Dubinsky and Chan, on the other hand, and the fact that Izzy Holdings is but one of

several shell entities in the overall Manley Toyquest enterprise, Izzy Holdings is

SLB’s alter ego and, under long—standing California law, it is proper to treat Izzy

Holdings as a true judgment debtor.

129.Defendants AW and Aquawood are mere continuations of SLB, created

for the sole purpose of enabling SLB to evade the nearly $8 million judgment, while

allowing SLB to continue its operations under a new name. Consequently, it is

proper under California law to treat AW and Aquawood as true judgment debtors.

130.Plaintiff is informed and believes and on such information and belief

alleges that Defendants Wa1—Mart, Target, TRU, and Kmart are indebted to the

judgment debtor Manley in the sum of several million dollars, which can be properly

garnished to satisfy WHAM~O’s judgment because such property is owed by

Manley, in part or in full, to SLB, and/or because such property is owned by alter ego

judgment debtor Manley.

l3l.Defendant Manley has compensated SLB for its toy designs and other

services through the payment of near monthly commissions. Manley continues to

market, distribute, sell, and offer for sale products using SLB’s toy designs. Despite

its continued use of SLB’s toy designs, Manley has ceased making the commission

payments to SLB. Consequently, Manley is indebted to SLB in a sum to be

determined at trial, which can be subject to lien and properly garnished to satisfy

WHAM—O’s judgment because such property is owed by Manley in full to SLB.

35
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132. As mere continuations of SLB, resulting fiom a fraudulent transaction,

AW and Aquawood are in possession of SLB’s property, which can properly be

subject to lien and garnished to satisfy WHAM-O’s judgment.

133.As SLB’s alter egos, the property of Izzy Holdings, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu,

and Manley, can be used to satisfy WHAM-O’s judgment, and, consequently can

properly be garnished and subject to lien.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Unfair Competition in Violation of California Common Law as to Defendants

Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liug

l34.Paragraphs 1 through 133 are hereby incorporated by reference.

135 .WHAM-O alleges that Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky,

Chan, and Liu have engaged in, and continue to engage in, unfair competition in

violation of California common law.

l36.The conduct of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,

and Liu as alleged above, constitutes unfair competition under California State I

common law. The acts ofDefendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,

and Liu have resulted in the “passing off’ of their products as those ofWHAM-O, or

as somehow related or associated with, or sponsored or endorsed by WI-IAM-O.

137.In further Violation of California unfair competition common law,

Defendant TRU has refused to do business with Plaintiff WHAM—O as a result of

WHAM-O’S enforcement of its intellectual property rights.

138.By reason of these acts, WHAM-O has suffered and is suffering actual,

permanent and irreparable injury, the extent of which is presently not known, and

WHAM—O will suffer continuing damage and irreparable injury unless Defendants

Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are preliminarily and

permanently enjoined fiom the use of the marks.

l39.The actions of Defendants Manley, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan,

and Liu entitle WHAM—O to general and specific damages for all of such

36
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Defendants’ profits derived from their past unlawful conduct to the full extent

provided for by the common law of the State of California.

l40.The actions ofDefendants Manley, Aquawood, and TRU have been

willful, malicious and fraudulent with knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and

deception and with intent to confuse and deceive, as alleged above. Therefore,

WHAM-O is entitled to recover punitive damages under California Civil Code

§ 3294.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, WHAM—O prays for entry ofjudgment in its favor and against

Defendants as follows:

1. For a declaration that Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, AW, Izzy,

Dubinsky, Chan and Liu are liable for the Color case judgment because (I)

Defendants Manley Toys, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are jointly and

severally liable as SLB’s joint tortfeasors; (2) Defendants Manley Toys,

Izzy, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu are liable as SLB’s alter egos; and/or (3)

Defendants Aquawood and AW are liable as SLB’s successors;

2. For an award to WHAM-O of all profits received by Defendants Manley

Toys, Aquawood, and TRU as a result of the continued infringement,

dilution and false advertising of Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood,

Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu and the infiingement, dilution and false

advertising of TRU;

3. For an award of all damages sustained by WHAM-O by reason of the acts

of continued infringement, dilution, and false advertising of Defendants

Manley Toys, Aquawood, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu, and the acts of

infringement, dilution, and false advertising by TRU pursuant to 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117;

4. For an order that Defendants Manley Toys, Dubinsky, Chan, Liu,

Aquawood, and TRU are in contempt of the Court’s permanent injunction

37
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in the Color case, or, alternatively for entry ofpreliminary and permanent

injunctive relief restraining and enjoining Defendants Manley Toys,

Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu and all of their agents,

successors, and assigns, and all persons in active concert or participation

with any of them, from using the color yellow in connection with the '

distribution, sale or offering for sale ofwater slide toys, or any other mark,

alone or in combination with other words or symbols, that is confusingly

similar to WHAM—O’s YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark, or which is likely

to cause confusion or mistake or to deceive, including any use on

Defendants’ websites and on the Internet;

. For an order req.uiring Defendant Manley Toys, Aquawood, and TRU to

deliver to WHAM~O all articles that infringe or dilute the YELLOW

WATER SLIDE Mark, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 11 18;

. For an order requiring Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, and TRU to

advise WHAM-O of the identity of all customers, suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers of Defendant’s water slides using the color yellow and

requiring Defendants Manley Toys Aquawood, and TRU to advise all

customers, suppliers, distributors and manufacturers that: (a) their water

slides using the color yellow were not manufactured, licensed, distributed

or authorized by WHAM-O; (b) any sales of such waterslides infringes the

YELLOW WATER SLIDE Mark; and (c) any such infringing water slides

sold or distributed by Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or TRU may

be returned to Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or TRU in any

condition for a full refund, and Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, or

TRU shall make such refund and maintain all records relating to such recall

notices and refunds;

. For a declaration that the conduct of Defendants’ Manley, Aquawood,

TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu was willful;

38
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8. For an award of three times the amount of profits awarded herein pursuant

to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(3);

9. For a declaration that this is an exceptional case and an award of reasonable

attorneys’ fees against Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU,

Dubinsky, Chan, and Liu pursuant to 15. U.S.C. § 1ll7(a);

10.For an award of compensatory damages, punitive damages, and costs

against Defendants Manley Toys, Aquawood, TRU, Dubinsky, Chan, and

Liu;

l1.For a judgment that each Defendant is either (1) indebted to SLB, SLB’s

alter egos, or SLB’s successors, or (2) in possession ofproperty belonging

to SLB, SLB’s alter egos or SLB’s successors, and that such debt or

property shall be applied to payment of the money judgment against SLB

Toys in Case No. CV 06-1382 RSWL (CWX) in favor of WHAM-O; and

l2.For an award of such other and fiuther relief as the Court shall deem just

and proper.

DATED: April 11, 2008 Respectfully submitted,

HELLER EHRMAN LLP

By /s/John C. Ulin

JOHN C. ULIN

Attorneys for Plaintiff

WHAM-O, INC.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

2 Plaintiff WHAM-O, Inc. hereby demands a jury trial on all claims herein that

3 are properlyltriable to a jury.

4

5 DATED: April 11, 2008
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Respectfully submitted,

HELLER EHRMAN LLP

By /S/Jolm C. Ulin
JOHN C. ULIN

Attorneys for Plaintiff

WHAM-O, INC.
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EXHIBIT 1
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24. 1 963United Tstates Patent Oce"__"Regim,e,, Den "“”33 

PRINCIPAL REGISTER

Trademark

Ser. No. 118,388, alga Apr. 21, 1951

SLIP ’N SLIDE

Wf{=«mO Manufacturing Company (California _1_:qIjp£_3ra.'- .I-‘.o_r: FLEXIBLE PLASTIC warn-:11 SLIDE, in
. hon) 22. -
83.5 E. E1_Mortt-2_SL First use Apr. 13, 1961; in com'mc'rcc Apr. 13, 1951.
381! G.tt.b1'Ic1,Ca1!f. No cIa_ix_::_1 of exclusive right is made to the use of“Sli:le."'
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EXHIBIT 3
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Send
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Scanfihly.-_.....

A; SLB TOYS USA, INC, aNew York
5
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3

4

5 on the claim of Whaxmo against SLB for. infringément

. 6 of the trademark ‘(reg-i-stared as 13.3. Trademark Reg. No.
7 '1,432,o5_-9 or unregiste_red) for the color YELLOW on -the
8 s-1-iding surface of water slide toys, we, the jury", "find
9 -in fiavor of {'check on'.e):

_10 Wham-O—:;V_‘_\._

ll .3-LB: V.__
.12.

B If you found for Wham-"O on .c.1ai_m 1, do you find
'14 that ST-«'3 igafringed the tra'dema-rk willfully?

Ye3:_%
'17

1-8

l-9

20

2] On the claim of I-I'ham—O against 813.3 for infringement

22 - of the trademark registered in the. :Un.'ited States (-13.3.

23 Trademark Reg. No. 2,924,744), we, the jury, find in

24 favor of (check one):

25 Wham—O:_____
26 SL3-. gr
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‘A If YOU found in favor of Wham-0 on claim 4, do you

' find that SL3 diluted the YELLOW t-1"-ademark willfully? 7:’
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.§to the fiollowing matters.

 

ADVIS Y VERDI

The Court requests advice from the.jury with regard :1‘.7':':s"-"'

sgsrs CLBIM aog.cAncE;LATIoH

Do ybu find that SLB has established by clear and.

‘convincing evidence that'Wham+0 abandoned its YELLOW

§WATER SLIDE trademark registration (U.s. Trademark Reg-

gun. 1,432,069)?

 
Note: Complete.the following paragraphs only-if you _

éfind in favor of.Wham40-and find willfulness or bad

;faith on at least one of the claims.

no you find that enhanced damages shpuld be awarded

iagainst SLB in order to fully compensate Nhamro and/or

ito make SLB's infringement unprofitable?

Yeszl1

NO:
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EXHIBIT 4
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Case 2:-36"-cu-01382-RSWL-CW Document 4?6 Filed 12/0.52007 Page 1 of2

 Priority

Sn.-ridFgnn:-r

esmsm. onsrarcnss 
 J___s.-5 133-"

58-2 .- -

Scan O'n!y_......

ii

U31I.1"::*‘:?-9 83'-‘-M!.E:..EI biflfirnxm ¢:.€5UR1'
cmwmn nrsrvarcr or ‘cars:-'zo_R.u::m

' SLR ’-I‘O‘YS.- USA, I_NC!.,

Plaintiff,

CV -05- 138

aunémmnm

Defendant.
 

  RSWL (CWx)

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUBGED, AND DECREED

SLB’S CLAIMS.FOR'DECLARATORY RELIEF

Plaintiff SL1-3 Toys USA, Inc.'s claims for declaratory

a relief are hereby dismissed with prejudice; Defendant Wham-

1

good and valid in law.
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- 1

; Case 2:.C6—c:v-D_'1_382 F£S'WL-CW Document 476 Filed _12:’05f2_'0O7 Page 2 on

2. WHAM-O’S COUNTERCLAIMS

Counter~claimant Wham-0 is hereby awarded fiinal

-the prevailing party in this action.

3'. PERMANENT ELNJUNCTION

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLR and each Qfi its officers,

agents, _servant.s and employees-, and all those persons in‘

active‘ concert or ‘participation with them are hereby forever

ref water slide toys, or pae-Icagirsg ‘oz: ad-'v.er::isi'ng depicting‘

12'." the same, ‘or any mark similar thereto or likely to cause

13 -c_.onfusio1_1 therewith, in the sale, offering $2"-or sale,

1.4 _dis-tribution or advertising of water s1_-ide toys at any
-15. l'_0cal_i_ty the United St'a.1—'es.

15..

RGHAID s;w. L.EW

nozzam as-qr.-. £334
Senior -U_.S.. Dmtrict Judge

17-

-DATED: December 4, 20:27
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Send « -
E E
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. 2 Js.-.5:-.r;:,_-.5 _._
4 -.13-.-:1;/1~:.3 .___.

Sr:-an'£"I.‘:1[y .__.

6.!

7

3

_ UNITE "STAT-ES -DISTRICT COURT‘
8

C-EITRRL DISTRICT OF C_AI.iI_F-OLRNIA-1o

11 l

12 __.sL_B_' TOYS USA, mc._, cv 05-1332-_'.:§g .. ..
13 ' Plea-int_if~f, 3; _ _ _ _

'} _ _

1-4; g INK-HJNCTZIEOEI‘ V.

1-5 _ _ )
__ f WHAM-O INC-., :et: .a.1.. )_

16 )
)

1'1’ _ )
I

135 Defendant‘ 3
19

2:0 "Cu-rrently before this Court is Wham—O, Inc..‘s ‘Motion

21,- for "Permanent Injunction. Having considered all pa'_pe'rs and

22 arguments, THE" COURT NOW FINDS AND RULES AS FOLLOWS:

23'.

24 Wham—O, Inc. has shown that it will suffer irreparable

25 injury, there is inadequate remedy at law, the balance of

' hardship tilts in its "favor, and the public interest would
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not be disserved by a permanent injunction.

Accordingly, the Court GRANTS the Motion for Permanent

jlnjunction as detailed below.

IT IS ORDERED THAT SLR and each of its officera1

confusion'therewith. in the.sale,:offering fer sale,

distribution cr'advertising of water slide toys at any

Beg Plgugh. I-_1;c.. v. Krg gs

L'aborg;gr?i§s', "311-4 F.2d 635, 639 (91th Cir. '1963) (“[-The

. infringer) must ‘be required to keep a safe distance away

from the margin 1ine,'”).

However, the Court denies wham~0*s requgst to order

destructicn of articles.because.such an order is

unnecessarily harsh and burdensome for the Court to oversee,‘

especially in light of the fact that the jury did not find

Further, the

Court denies SLB's request for a sell-off period as
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Moreover, the Court denies Wham~0's request to order

[compliance reporting as inappropriate and unnecessary in

' -' this case.

' "IT IS SO ORDERED".

RUHMD S-.W. LEW

zzomaxm sgw. HEW
Senior U,S. District Judge

DATED: December 3, 2007
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

WHAM.—O, INC., No. RG07-329323

Plaintiff, ORDER GRANTING PRELIMINARY
INJUNCTION

VS.

EILEEN SEFCHIC-K;'BR1AN

DUBINS:K_.Y_; SLB. TOYSJUSA,

M-ANLEY TOYQUEST, LLC, and DOES
'1 through "1300, inzczlusive,

Defendants.

The Motion ofPlaintiffWham-'0, Inc. (“P_Iainti'ff") for Preliminary Injunction

came on regularly for hearing on June .29, 2007, in Depiartmerit 31 of this--Court, Judge

Frank Roesch presiding. Plaintiff appeared by Annette L. Hurst, Stephen C. Tedesco and

Rod M. Fliegel. Defendant SLB Toys USA, Inc. (“SL8”), on its own behalf: and on

behaif of the entity sued (perhaps erroneously) as Maniey Toyquest, LLC (“M-anley"),

appeared by Joshua R. F-urrnan. Defendant Eileen Sefchick (“Sefchick”) appeared-by

Jeffrey Abrams. Defendant Brian Dubinsky (“Dubinsky") appeared by Alex Wcingartcn.
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The Court has considered all of the papers filed on behalf of the parties, and the

arguments of counsel at the hearing, and good cause. appearing, HEREBY GRANTS the

=rnoti_'on for preliminary injunction.

In deciding ixrhether to issue a preliminary injunction, a court must weigh two

interrelated factors: (1') the likelihood that the ITIOVil1g_'Pfl1"i'y_ will uIti_rna_tely prevail on the

r_nerits.; and (2) the relative interim harm to the parties from -issuance-or no_n-.issuance of

the -injunction-. The Court's determination is guided by a of the potential merit and

"interim harm -factors. (Butt 1:. .S.'i‘a‘te ofCelifomio (.1 9-92).4. 'CaI.4t_h.668, 677-78.) The

scope of availabie_preiin1inary're1iefis necessarily-iirr1ited.by the scopt? hfthe r'e'l‘1_'e.f i.iI<e'.ly

tobe obtained at trial" on the rnerits. '(Id.) A trial court may not grant a preliiriinary

injunction-,.re_gardIess of the baiance'ofinten"n,1 h‘arrr_1, uniess -there is some possibiiityrthat

=the_-plaintiff would u1ti.rnatelyprev;ail.o'r::.tlie merits of the claim. (Id)

Basedon a consideration of the -above-factors -and-all-the.-materid before it on ‘the

present Order to Show Cause, the Court finds that Plaintiff has rnadea s.u'ffi,cient' showing

‘for extending the injunctive relief-set forth in the Temporary Restraining Order issued" by

the-Court on June 8, 2007, -as modified by the Court in this. Order, through the time of trial

in. this action.

Accordingly, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defen_da'nts SLB, Manley, Se-fchick

and Dubinsky, and all persons acting in concert or participating with them, are

(i) ordered to retum immediately to Plaintiff all materials, writings (as defined in

California Evidence Code section 250), documents, computer files andfor databases
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(whether stored on CD~Ro'm-or in other computer-based or digital form) .contai=ning

-infonnation ofPlaintiff covered by the Proprietary Infennation and Inventions Agreement

signed by S-efchick on or about October 14, 2004, or protected as “trade -secret”

information under California I-aw, including any and all.-originals, copies, transcriptions,

extracts, and any materials of any form that consist of‘, contain, incorporate, or otherwise

refer -to or disclosé Such information;

(2) enjoin-ed-andforrestrained during the pendency of this action from engaging in,

committing, or perfonning, directly or. indirectly, any and all of the -following acts:

(a). nfis_app_ropriating,disclosing to anythird parties or making use of any

“Proprietary.ln'fonnati'on” ofPlaintitfi defined,-_as information that-is either covered by the

Proprietary .Int_'onnation -and Inventions A-greement sig‘ned_.by Sefchick on or. about

October 14, 2004_,_or,protee_te_d as ‘*trad_e secret” infonnatio'n=-under Cnii.fp"n1ia I-aw, except

for infomtation 'a_cquired‘through publicly available sources wholly independent of

Sefehiek;

(la) engaging..in solicitation activities, sales calls or other contacts. using

Proprietary-Infonnation for the purpose of marketing, soliciting or selling competing

products;

(c) retaining possession of any Proprietary .Inform_ation;

(cl) interfering with the advantageous business reiation-sh_ip_s between

Plaintiff and its customers in any manner through use of Proprietary infonnntion; or
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(e) eonc.eal'mg, transferring, deleting, altering, editing or modifying any

computer files, databases, documents or other infonnation obtained from Plaintiff, or

do-,st1'oy1'ng.any infonnation relevant to tlaislawsuit.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffshali furnish a bond in connection with

this preliminary injunction -pursuant to Code ofCivil Procedure _§ 529 in the sum of

$10,000.00-on or before five (5) days after the date of the Cle_rl<’s certificate--of mailing of

this Order ‘(plus five additional days for service by mail pursuant.-to Code ofCivil

Procedure .§ 'l0_13).

   
Ftai1:k=Roesch I _

Judge-of the Su_p_eri_o_r Court
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CLERK’S DECLARATION OF MAILING

Icertify't'hat1a.HI $1.0! -1 _par.ty"to this cause and that on the date stated below I caused a true
"copy of the foregoing GRANTING INTIUNCFION to be mailed
first class, pqstggé -pre paid, in a sealed envelope‘ to the persons hereto, ‘addressed as
follows:

‘Stephen C_. Tedcsco. Esq,

Rod M. Fliaggcl. Esq.
I.;¥TTI.ER.MENDE1.SON, AP-C

650 Caiifomia Street, 20'“ Floor

San Francisco. CA 94108-2693

Annette L. Hurst, Esq.

333.Bus'h Street -

San.F-rancisco,-.CA -.94.l(_}4_

Joshua R--. .Fu'r.ma'n.

22.23 -Bauy Avenue

Los Angeies. CA.

Jeffrey I. Abtarnsi
WOEF, RIFKIN, SHAP]RO'&S .LLP

1,1400. 'West'O1ympic Blvd, Ninth Floor
L_0s Angeles, CA 900644-557

Alex M. Weingarten, Es.q.
LAGER wanxroan-"ran, up

1300 century Park East, Suite 600

Los Angcles, CA 9.006?

Ideciare under penalty of perjury that the same is true and cement.

Executed on July 10. 2007.

“ L

By: J’ _

Vicki Daybcii,D.c 'tyCIcrk'

Department 31
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GENERAL ASSIGNMENT

'l‘H_I'S ASSIGNEVIENT made this l9tli clay ol‘N'ciw!cm-b.er, 2007, by SLR Foys

USA, l§\'C.. a \'e-.-«' ‘fork ccsiporation. having its principal place of business at 223?} Barry

Avenue, i.o.< _.-‘:51-__*::iL:S, Califomia {hereinafter referred to as “Assig-nor").__to BYRON L
MOLDO (hereinafter referred to as “Assignee").

W ITNESSETII: That whereas Assignor is inde.bte.cl_ to various persons and is

des-irons ofprouidi-ng for the payment ofsame, so far as is in its power, by an -assigmnent

of-all of is property for thatpurpose:

NOW, THEREFOR-E, Assignor, for valunlzle consideration, -receipt of which is

hereby acknowledged, doe-s hereby make the following General A_s_signjmen1_.for1_he

benefit o1"Assi,g_nor’-5 <-.‘-r.€£l_i'l0rs to-‘Byron -Z. Moldo, insfilssigrree, under the following
terms and conditions:

1. A-ssigno'r;does..hereb3_r grant-, bargain. sell, assign, eonvey, and _l.ra_nsfer to:
Assignce, his successors and ;1s:signs',_in trust for. die ultiznsa:ee.benefit of;-\ssi_gnor’s
creditorsgencrally-, all of the propertyand asset"-s of the--Assignor of every kind and nature
and wheresoeverasituared_(co'l'lectively, the ‘‘-Assets:’’), 'whe_flier'in poSses5i;on,.rcver'sion.
r_e_main'der, or expectancy, both real and personal, and -any interest or equitytlierei-n;
incl-uded therein are all rnerohandirse, fumiiure, fixtures, machinery eqpi-prnenl, raw
.materials, incrchandise or work -i'n1proccss_,.bookaccounrs, books, ajcr_:QI_«'1r:Is n:c,c'iva'blz:,
sash on'ba'nd, all caus¢':s'--of action "(personal or otherwise), .in_su_'rano_:'e polieies. patents,
'tradem_arks,_trade names,-{ copyrights, trade secrets,__in1elleotual-=pnop_ert§§, any and all right,
title, license, andfor interest-of Asisi-g,nor in advertising, including White and Y‘-'e_llo'w'P-age

-telephone-"listings, any and'a1l,r_i'ght,.titie, license or othe1iint_erest.'.i'n Assi'gn'or-’s relephozie,
fax-, or other nur'nbe1rs'lsEsted.:in any advertisement by ~i._-.-lnrzh business is solicited,-any and
:.t-lln'ghts- and goodwill in rite name ‘"5-Ll"? To;-‘s 'L;?SA-._ I‘.\i.C.",.Assignor"s complete
computer_5y'stemj,'an_d a1I'o_fl'1er p‘rope'r‘ty of-every kind and nature owned by Assignur, and
without limiting the generality-of-the for-ego_i,ng, inelndingall o‘.lE‘=tl1e assczs penaini-ng to
that .ce_rtain business-known as'SLi3 'l7a2_;:‘s‘ USA, INf.T., loeatcd. 3152229 Barry marine, lies
Ar:'geles.- Ca!.i1‘Luu—1iu 941064. -Assigrior shall use reasonable effons-.to have the insurance
policies c-.ndo.r.5ecl over to the Assignee.

2 ‘ibis Assigmneiit constitutes a grant deed ofall real property owned 1: I :he
Assignor, if any. whether or not said real -property is specifically described herein.

3. Leases and leasehold interests in real cslare are included in this

assigmiic lit.

4. Assignor agrees to deliver to r\ssigne.e all books of account and records, to

execute and deliver all additional necessary documents immediately upon request by

Assigncc: and to endorse all indicia of ownership where required by Assignce, in order to

complete the mmsfer of all assets to Assignce as intended by this Assignment, including,

but not limircd 10. all ol'As5Egnor‘s real and personal property and/‘or .1‘-.ssignor‘s interest

therein, inclzzding mortgages, deeds of trust, motor vehicles, palem r_E_gl_1_ls, trademarks,

60445.1 334.l]UU32 ,
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trade names, copyrights, trade secrets and _intellectt1£il.prop_erty. A-ssignee isthcreby

authorized to ‘execute all endorsements and demands rcquiring_A's-sigrior’s rs-ignaturc, in

the narne of Assignor. Assignor ‘further authorizes Assignee to-apply for any deposits,
refunds (including specifically among all others, cla_inis- forrefundi of'taxes- paid) or

claims wherever necessary in the name of Assignor. Assignee is authorized to direct all

As§ignor’s United States mail to be-delivered to Assignee, and Assignec is expressly
"authorized-and.-directed .to -open said mail as agent of ritssi'gn0'r, and to doaity thing or act
which the Assignee in his sote-and arbitrary discretion deems necessary :or‘advisab'le to

cfl"et:'t11ate the purpose-of this Assignment.

3. Assignor and Assignct agree to the following:

a. This instruntent transfers legaltitle and possession to Assignce of
all of the above-described-assets and_Assignee, in his own discretion, may direct whether

"to e.ontir:ue -all, or part, ofthe business operations, or to Iiquidatesaid assets.

b. Assigned, athis discretion, may sell and dispose o'_fs3id assets

upon such terms and condi-tions as he may see fit, at-tpublic-:o.r.pri.vatee sale. Assignee-
slialI.not»be_person,ai._ly 1.inhIe in any manner, and Assign'ee‘s-ohIigation'sshall he-in':a
rep'resentet'ive-capacity only in his capacity as A_ssi,gr.1e.e-for the benefit of-;credit_ors.

Assignee shall administer this estate to the best .of‘his abil-ity, "111 it is.-expressl__y
understood that he, his agents .and_I'or employees shali be=elia_hl'e'onIy for-'.the:reaso_ne'ble
c'are-and di1.igen'ce in said ad-ministratiort, and-he shall not heliablc -for-any act or thing, or
any-..orrii:;sion to no t, done by him, his agents or employees in good _fai_th i'ri_e_onn_ection-'
.tl1crevt_'itEx

_c. From the pmceedsiof the sale, collections, operations‘ or otlier
source‘, A-5Sighee.s'hal'l pay.'h‘;m_"sel}f and retain its. Assignee;aIl'of h'is_jch_ar_'gesj and expenses.
together wi'th.his ‘own remuneration and "fee, ‘.s'1tich‘rem'nn1eratiot1 and fee" -.shai'-l‘. not exc-eed

the sum of fifteen thous-anddollars tgil 5,,_fJiJ'0_.-D0), plus ten percent (flit?!/3';}'-ofithe amount of
the proceeds received and handled by the A-_ssignce from sales. r:ollecti_or'ts,_o-pe'rzit_ions or
other sources. Assignec may also pajrfrorn such proceeds reasonable remuneration to his
agents, 1=.ttom'eys and accountants, andamay pay a reasonable fee to Assignofs attorney.

All of the aforementioned amounts ‘are to be determined at A.ssign_ee’s sole di_recriori,
detcnriination -and jud gmcnt.

d. Assignce may c-ompror-nist: claims, assume or t‘eje‘ct ./-\.ssig,nor‘s-

executoty contracts, and discharge at his option any iiens on said assets. and indebtedness

which under law are cntitied to priority of payment. Assignee shall have the power to

‘borrow money, hypothecate and pledge the assets, and to do 313 matters and things that
"said Assignor could have done prior to this Assignment. A-ny act or thing done by the
Assigne: hereunder shall bind the assignment estate and the Assignee oniy in his capacity

as fitssignee for the benefit ofcrcditors. Assignce shall have the-right -to sue and defend

‘suits as he successor of the Assignor, and the Assignee is hereby given the right and
power to institute and prosecute legal pr_oce.cdings in the name of the Assignor, the same

as if the Assignor itseif-had instituted and prosecuted such proceedings or actions.

60445. l 834 0.0023 I-J
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e. Assiignor agrees (to the extent assignable by law) to make any and

ail claims for refund of taxés which "maybe due from the Internet Revenue Service or

other'taxi_ng-agencies for tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith up0n'r€ceipt of such

refunds pay them over to the Assignee, and'hereb__y t:IIlp_0Wfc;'_r5 Assignctez to make ali
claims for refimds ~-which may be made by Assignor.

f. After paying 3}} costs and-expenses of administration and ail. fees‘
and all allowed priority "claims, -Assignec shall distribute.-to all unsecured -creditors, pro

H'?!a,. any remaining net proceeds of this assignment estate, Said payrnjents aretto be’ made
-untii at! assets areexhausted, or "these creditors are -paid or settled, in full. Thereafter; the
surplus ofmoneys and property, if any, shall‘ be tritnsfetred or conveyed to the Assiignor.

If any undistributcd dividends-to .credi_to;r_s or any reserve‘ funds shall remain unclaiiried

For a perioti ofninety Afittji days after issuance of :1 final dividend cheekby the A-ss'ig1_1ee-,
then the sameshall become 'the_p'_rop'_ertg.r ofti__1iseAssignee and used to supple-_m'ent_ his fees
for services renderci_:l.'in admiriistering this Assignment.

_g_. It is agreed and understood-.tl1aI this transaction is a common lawi
a3s_ignm,c:’1t-for the benefit ofAss.igu'or"s creditors, and. is not a statutory "assignment.
fkgmcmsrtt shall‘ "be governed by the provisions of section 49_3.=0!‘O, eII's'eq“.-, of the
'C‘s11ifOmiIIiC0..de of Civil Procedure.

.33 .I‘t‘»3js .-U-‘*.»\, ENC,

a New York s:0r__p§i-rggtitsun. ;-1ssi;;n.or

Bv'.a' 

Brine 'Du1?if'n's1<)r, President

ACCEPTED THIS 19"‘ DAY OF'N.0V3E1\'»I.BER,2007:

 

BYRON z. M,0.LDO., -Assitmae

60445.1 83:4,00022 3
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c. Assignor agrees (to -the. extent assigahle bylaw) to make any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be dug liom the: Internal Revenue Scrvicc or
other taxing agencies faritax refimds, or otherwise, and to forthwith-‘upon n_:c‘ci'pt of such
refunds pay them may to the As-sigjnep, and hereby empowers Assignees to make all
‘claims .fo_1' refunds whichmay be maddby Assignor.

t‘. Afler paying all costs and expenses -of adrninisuation and all fees

and all allowed priority claims; Assignce sl1all'.distribu1¢- to all unsecured -creditors, pro
rata, any-renminirxg net proceeds ofthis assignment estate. “Said payments are to be made
.u_nt_il all assets 3:: cxhaustcd, or thesle craditérsare paid or settled, i'n.ful1_. Thcreafier, the
surplus -3-f moneys and propI=I1.y,3if'any, shallbc transferred or cunveyed to the Assignor.
If any undisufnuted dividends‘ to _cz-ieditors'ox any reserve limds shall remain unclaimed
Ed: 3. pcziod Qfixincly (90) .days-afidr issuance ofa final 'diV1H._and check: by the:.A'ssi'gnee_,
{hen the same shall bccome .':l1e;p1"npart'y*of thi s A-ssignee and nsedito supplmnent his ‘fees
for services rendered in administering this Aséignment. __

g". .11 is agreed and I_1nderst<_3.ojd that thialransamion is-a-common "law
-aséignmcnt for tI1t:'bci.1¢fi't.of ;t5;ssign0r’S -creditors. ans! is-n.'o.t—a statutory-a$ig_u.1fnen_L
.Ag;een:snt s_l1a'.11 be governad by the provisions ofsecticn 493.010, et seq‘. of th: "
Ca1ifomia4._Co'dc'o§f’Civi1 Procedure.

SL331‘-oys'US-.%.?L, INC...
a New York‘ corporation, Assignor

33“ - . .
Brim; Dubirisky, 'Pr:=sidcnt

IHIS _ DAY"-OF NOVEMBER.—2007: -I.

R .- " 2. Memo, ASSIGNEE   

60-145.E 834_fl{}02‘2
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3;/‘-._:r.s_u'_uf H0_:{_22_:_9n an 719 517 5351 nrzonnuooa HOTEL

e. Agssigncit agrpas-{tn the extent assigaahic by law) to-make any and
all c1ni.ms- for mfimé oftmes which-maybe div: fiom the Smrioe or
other agencies for taxrcfiinds, or 'ot'h=twise, -and to upon receipt of such
nzfimds pay them over to. ma Assignee. and hemby cna1_:m.v:as- Assignec ti: make an
claims-'-for rcfimfls which may be 'madeTby- Aasfgaor.

fl pay-iz'zg_a!l costs.an.d.exp:nsesof all fans
and all ailmsred pxiofity-claims, Assigns: shall dish-ibute'to.afl-unsecxmd cn:dit'ors,pra
raIa_, any ncz prooccds of 'th1'§ aasigrnnent estate. Said payments an-to be made‘
L1nfiIa!1{a5sBts1atc'ex}1austed. or thcse-cred.i;tors B.,1'¢p'aid orsctllfid. in ft-.l1L Themafter. the
surplus uf.rnc<nzys if [shall be-mnsfer:ec1- or conveyed to the Assignor.
Ifany nmdistributed dividends to dt'a!.'_t_'[-1'65-cI'_V<= unclaimed
for a mind of (96-)'6a3saifsrpin fihal-dividcnd by the Assignas.
then the -same shall‘ become the property’ ofthis and uaedto supplcmem his fees

fa: ssrvices Ienxietad

.3. It is a'gre.ed.and zmdersteod t_his~tta'1:.sacfion is agpmmon law
-zssignmsnrfar t_hc:be.ne'fit_ and is.poz_g-stammty assignmmt. This
Agreemzni-'sh'a_ll'{be gmrénzed-b:"rii:e provisions nf's.u'm'an-4'§§3-.010. :2? 5124.. ofthe

'

SI-.;_B’I'o__jrsUSA,INC;. _ T
$‘N£w'iYdrit‘ ccnpmagion, Assimor

By:
.i3'za£w;&binss:§;' , "I -
 
 

ms 19* DAY OPINCWEMBER. 20:11:

 

BYRON z. M0230. ASSIGNEE

60445.1 834.0002?

coma:
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-CONSENT TD ASSIGNMENT BLY STOCKHOLDERS" AND

BOA.-RD. OF DIRECTO-RS

-We, the grzdersigned, being owners and holders of 100%. of 211:: shares of stock,

being; more man 50% _o'f't"l:e subscribed and issued stack, and the Board of Directors of’
SL3 Toys LJSA.£nc a New ‘fork corporation, do hereby give our consent 16 the within

as5_Eg:1mc;1t :~.ncI1_ransfcr of-lh: property oflsaid come:-ntion. .:

N}\1‘rIE ~31-mm-is H-1-‘.LD/' /
Lisa Liu I 00% fa
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CONSENTOF DIRECTORS TO HOLD MEETING
1.05 Arrgaics. California

November 123%, 2007

5- 1-3'33 U". Ring the 5018 difecler 0f 5L3 T.oys.U51\. Inc. a corporation. orgaqized under-the laws of the
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING‘

Los Angeles. California. tlovenrber 1-st, 20.0?

At a meeting ofthe directors of SL5 To s USA lnc. a New York Corporation, held at the office-of the 

Corp_ora'tion‘ via telephone.-cqnterence at-it; place of business. 2223 Ba'r_ry;Avenug_ Les Angales gaiifcmia

GQQE4, at _5_:sy;o'ciock .__;;m.'2ha following directors wlereipresentz

 

 

Absent.‘
 

 

 

The President annomjoed that the; pulpose of the meeting "Was to consider the
financial condition ofthe company and the advisability of making a general a'5Si9nmen_t for
the blenelit of creditors. '

on motion by Lisa Llu, seconded by Lisa Liu
theriollo wing‘ resolution -was.ada.pt'ed,- to-wit:

BEZH’ RESQL VED:

Il_ua't Brian .Dnbinslr-y. -President of this Corporation be, and is, hereby authorized
and directed. -by -the dlreoto-rs of this‘ .C.‘orp‘ara_tion', in meeting assembled, ‘to make an
assignment of all-‘assets’ of the Cmqoraflon to Byron .2. Moldo, foil.’ the pmrreta benefit" of all
creditors of this" corporation, and that Brian 'D_uh_lnsky ha, and he is hereby au,th'an'zed.and
directed‘ :0 execu'to'sdld _ass_ignmen_t "containing such provisions as may be agreed upon
=between- him and ‘Byron Z. Moldo. Mssigneaj, and‘ he is-also authorized and directed to
execute and deliver to Byron. Z. Moldo, as Assignees, such other deeds, assignments, and
agreements as may be necessary to carry this resolution into -effect.

'-BE IT FURTHER RESGLVED:

That said Asstgnea for the benefit -of creditors be. and is hereby. authorized to

execute and tile and prosecute on behalf of this corporation all claims for refund or
abarement of all -excess taxes heretofore or hereafter assessed against or collected from this
corporation and any" one officer of this corporation be, and it is, hereby authorized and
directed to make, execute and deliver in favor of such person as may-be designated by the
assign ee for the benefit of creditors, a power of attorney on the regt'rla'r.printed form thereof
used by the United States Treasury Department so as to authorize said attorney-in-fact to
process any tax claims for-it on behalf ofthis Corporation.

There ‘being no further business to come before the directors. the meeting is
acljoume-J subjectto the call or’ t.he'Pre$ldant or Vice-Presiden t.

1, Lisa Liv, Director of SL3 Toys USA .»'r_rc., a New York Corporation. do -hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of directors held

in _ Lo‘.-: Anarelas, California , at the place and hour stated and that the resolution

60445. ! '3'34.00022

 

- 15 f 17
Case 2:08«cv-01281-RSWL-CW Document 34-3 Flied 04/21/2008 Page 0

AW457



 

- 16 H?Case 2:08-cv-O1281—RSWL—CW Document 34-3 Filed 04/21l2008 Page o

contained in said minutes was adopted b‘y the directors at said meetflig and the same has
not been modifiacl or rescinded.

Dated Navember 1, 2007

 

Lisa Liar. Director

CORPORATE
saaz.

60445 .1 334.0l')D22
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5!? _L05 Aflgelesu Cafifbrnla, at.__!!1e.p!aca/and hour stated and that the resolutfan contained
gn zrsid mihules was adopteflgfiy-the dl ctors "zit said meeting and they samé has not Dean

maaiifed-or rescinded. /1
.Dared.Nm-amber ,—' _=' _ ‘

  

  
 

L:::a L141, Sir __£z':':1'«' -' ' 

CORPORA TE
SEAL

Filed 04l2’U2008
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N0-
 
 2.29.
as

43

SA

YA

BA
SA

1 DA

1 IA

1 2A

126'

'1-2?‘

128

129

iueiisewer "power edge 2-900

-aeimrr-1owe_r~C-qnditioners

=Car_1on ‘Fax

Filed 04/2112008

To_yQuest

22-28 Barry Ave.

Los A‘ng_eies_, CA

Assets im__r;en_to_ry-

Eiectronicsiand (_3omQuters
Descri . ion

  
Del! I3-asict-:-p Qpiiplex, Dimension, Precision" _

F-Iiat monitors graphics. 1'5.17..1'E_L__22.2"4.32 inch

Apple G5 Eesktop (upgraded) graphic

Aizipie iM.A_C Desktop (upgraded) graphic

Appie1SérVér’hétvJQr¥< -with (7) raids and accessory

A'ppJe'netU.r9'fkEr:g e'quipmen't:

in

RI bl

'R_'aui'ers, HOB.(24P} patch panel. soniiciwaii

-ONKPIO .s-ound.system., DVD. cdrw, speakers

Scanners, Epscn. Fujitsu

Dell "server power edge 1400
Copier

Printers, phqato, inisjet

Printers, laser, (Canon. 'Eps_on)

50.':._—-h—na)—.Ah.JG)'...x[u..n'1\;co
HP-Pibiter Electrci Static SOGPS

Nikon Camera

Eycjernai Hard Drisie Maxtor

Polycorn Speaker-‘phone
Sony 50" TV

Panasonic Flat TV

Panascnfc P!':one System i”=i-'_.;'n bird -:1.-giial

w.|..A—sl\)9.|—.:—..s._.u

 

Page2 of 18

AW46 1



 

Case 2:08-cv—01281~RSWL—CW Document 34-4

T_o=yQu-est

2228 Barry Ave.

‘Los Angeles_, CA

Assets Inventory

Ofice Furniture-

Office desks and reium. Bock Shelves, file -cabinet

Ping Pong Table

aaskel Bail Hoop

Offlce High back chairs;

Couches .{canvas) and rave seat
Ccffee tabte.-(om-40:01.3-mm
  

Confierengse Tabie-'an'd 1T0'c:hairs and -side table-

3E.an'-bag cnuirs

Kitchen equipment; refrig'er'aIor,_ Coffeemaker;
microwave, tabie and chairs

GD'.u.G}:1e5~comar unit. and-opffee table.

' .1z,s.scrte-ti ictyis find display

Filed 04/2112008 Page 3 of 18
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Bills to 4-Purchase

Phones: Acc'ount.#0'1179011.028_16'93004 (-Verizcn) _
Cellular — Accaunt 139493020121 (T-Mnbie) and "#8283887-’f2 (AT8_=T)
Account #99'57‘£8753 (AT&T)

COV-AD -313! —~ Account #590373

UPS — Account #E13A05

Pacific Alarm System account-— Custcm-er #15793

Biue Cross acccuntu Group #285554

Kansas Communications phone -acct» Account #001 0803 506807604

Excel phcne~— Account #12000fl06'608

DWP —-Account #448D769402'22Q'0'0D000101 3. -448B?6.940'222900G0.009.01

"Time Warner -caE3'!e— Account #,844'82001907_9-15?3

Sirius music Account #1 200557211

Tivc — Account.#0O1_ 1032676

Gas Cornpany'-Account'#03?33969E}41

-American Express -4 Primary Accqunt #3'78.2075941420U7

'B.e_ntorwilIe phane —2°«.cco1.m.t #6'G‘I03~14728'6

;disco"J:er.com account

Case No. CV D5-13-82 RSWL (CW.x} - SL3 V. Wham~O. Inc. - only the a_ppe'l.iat'e
rights

So. Cat Disposai trash -— Account #2205

AW463
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Asset Purchase Agreement {this “Agreemer':t”}, dated as of Novcnlber 19, 2007 (_the

"Effective. Date"), is made. by and between BYRON Z'.'MOl'_D0 (“.-S'eH;-zr”), in his capacity as
assignee for the benefit of creditors ofSI.B Toys, USA, lnc'., and AW COMPUTERJI-IOLDINGS

LLC. a-Califcmia limited l'labi'lity company (“Buyer”).

—RE-CIT-.-XLS

A-. By resolution of the board of directors (the “Baa:-H”) of SLB_ Toys ‘USA, Inc.

{“.~i_ss't'gnjor”). as tnemotialized in duly executed minutes, -and with consent by written .action- of

the majority of -A_3signor's shareholders entitled to vote", Assignor transferred ownership ofall of

its -right, title and interest in and-to its tangible and intangible assets (the “A',ssers”) to Seller, and
in so doing also designated S.e'l_ler to act. pursuant to Cali-fomiia "law, jas the‘. assignee for the
benefit of creditors of Assignor. A true and correct copy of the General _ASs_igum_ent Agreerncnt.

dated as of November 19, 2007; between" A'ssigno‘r-and Seller, as assignec, mcmoria'l3iiing such
assignrnefnt is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Genera! Assignmenf’). Prior to the. General
Assignment, Assignor was engaged in the‘. business of designing "toy and related products (-the
-“B-usines: ",1.

13. Seller desires to self 10.1 Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase from Seller, certain

of the Assets. on the tennis a_nc_I'.condition5 set forth in -this Agreement. After the.oc<':urrence of
the Closing Joniemplated under this Agreement, Se;l'Icr. t'=v__1‘_l}l -iundertake the winding down of

A-ssignor, which shall include, but not be Ihnited to; the distribution of n_e.t_ funds, after payment
o__ffe_e;a andicnsts associated with the liquidation and winding down, -to Assi_gno_r’:s.ereditors.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the -above. recital-_s and the mutual covenants
hereinafter set forth, Buyer and Seller .hereby agree as follows:

1. PURCHASE AND SALE DE CERTAIN. ASSETS;

l.1 Agreement to Sell and Purchase Assets. Subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and in reliance on the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this

Agreement, Seller agrees to and will “sell,-assign, transfer and convey to Buyer at the Closing (as
defitied in--Suction 2.2 below). -and Buyer agrees to and will purchase and acquire from Seller at
the Closing, all of Seller‘:-. right, title and "interest in and to all ofthe Assets described in Section
1.2 below. .

1.2 Acguired Assets Defined. Seller shall, at the Closing, sell, assign, transfer,
convey ‘ind zlelivcr to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from the Seller, at the Closing, as-is,

where-is, all right, title and interest in and to the following Assets (collectively, the “Acqm':-ed
Assets-“'):
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:(i_) all tangible personal property, including, without limitation, all equipment
and furniture set forth on E_xl1ib'it B annexed hereto;

{ii} the rights of Assignor and Seller in and to the pending appeal in that
certain litigation entitled SLB v. Whztrn—O. Case No. CV O6--1382-RSWL

_(C.Wx.); and

'(iii) those written contracts, agreements, invoices, "of indebtedne-ss, -or other
contractual arrangements which are set forth on'E'xhihit B atmcxed hereto

(the “Assumed! Canlracts").

Except-for the Acquired Assets‘ described above. in Section l.?_(i)_, (ii) and if iii) which are being
t_r'ansterred'to Buyer hereunder, Seller shall retain all of i_ts.right,_title and interest in, to and under
all remaining Assets.(coil'ectively,. the “Excluded ,-13:22:”), which shall include:

(i) all cash-as of the Closing;

(ii) all xwittcn and oral contracts, .ag:-reements, leases, sublea-ses',- licenses,
purchase orders, _imroice_s,_ instruments of indebtedness. or -other
eontrnctual arrangements that are not Assumed Contracts ("Excluded

Can!_mc.fs"): and

-(iii), al1rigl'1ts.of'the Seller under this Agreement.

1.3  ASSEf'Tr2flSf¢I?’ Passa e of'.!"itl.e‘ D.eliv.er"v.

(a) Title Passatte.. At: the Closing, title to all of tl_'i_c_Acquired Assets shall pass
‘to i3'l1ye.r., and Seller shall execute ass_i'gnm_ents, c'onve}‘3eI1Ces, bills of sale, or such other

-instrtuncnts of conveyance as l3_uj;rer:rn;1y rcaso'n:tb'ly request ‘to effect or evidence the transfers
con_tem_pla_le' "hereby.

1. PURC-HAS_-E PRICE, 'PAYMEN'IS.

2.1 Purchaselfrice, At the Closing and effective as of the Closing, and in

consideration of the sale, transfer. -conveyance and ussigmnent of all the Acquired Assets to
Buyer, Buyer shall (i) pay by cashier's check the sum of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000);
and (ii) assume the liabilities, debts- and obligations a'5soc'i3.ted_ with the Assum'ed Contracts

(“PurcI1ase Price"). *'

2.2 Closing. The consummation ‘of the purchase and sale of the Acquired Assets

contemplated hereby (the "‘C'1osir:g"_l shall take place by not later than November l9, 300?,

provided that the parties may mutually agree to extend the date of the Closing. Upon

termination, rlcitlie-r party will have any firrthcr rigts or obligations hereunder, except that
Sections 3 and l I shall survive snchtermination.
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3. OBLICEATIQ-NS ‘NOT .«'lSSUME'D'.

3.1 Liabilities and 0'b’ii_g_ aliens. Notfitssumed, Other those liabilities, debts or
‘obligations of Seller or Assignor associated with the Ass-umed Contracts which serves and
constitutes a material component of the Purcltase Price given for the Acquired Assets, Buyer
shall not assiune or become obligated in -any way ‘to pay any liabilities, debts or obligations ‘of
Seller-or of Assignor whatsoever, including, but not limited to. any liabilities or obligations. now
‘or hercafler arising from Assigrlorls business activities that took" place prior to the Closing or any
liabilitiesariting out of or connected to the l'iq_tiidation and winding down of As_signor‘s business.

3.2.. No Obligations to Third Parties. The execution and delivery- of this Agreement
shall not be deemed to confer -any rights upon any person: or entity other than: the parties "hereto,
or make any person or entity a third party beneficiary of this Agreement, or to obligate either
party to anyperson or entity othe'r.than the parties to tlu's.Agr.eement. There shall be no successor

liability o.f_&ny‘kind a1’.iSi'I1g frornthe transaction contemplated. herein.-

4. -Rl‘fPRES'EN_TATIO;‘lS silo WARRANT}-ES..0-F‘-=BUYER.

Buyer hereby represents and wanants to Seller as follows:

4.1 Due Organization. Buyer is a limited 1_i_abi1'ity corr_ip_any duly organized. validly
-existing_, .and in good standi-ng_-Lintie_r'the laws ofthe State of California. Boyer has all necessary
power and ':tuth'ot"ity'to enter into this Agreement and all other doe-nments that Buyer is required
to -"execute anti "deliver hereunder, and holds -or will timely hold all pennits, licenses, otfders and
approvals ofiall federal, state-and ‘local governmental or regulatory bodies necessary and required
therefore.

42. ‘Power and Authority‘, No Default. Buyer has all requisite power and authority
to enter--into and deliv.er'thi_s Prgreernent and to perfonri -its obligations hereunder. The signing,
delivery and perfonnance by Buyer of this Agreement, and‘ the cons-ummation of all the

trzinsactions contemplated "hereby, have "been duly and v_ai_idl.y authorized by Buyer- This
Agreement. when signed and delivered by Buyer, will be duly and validly executed and delivered
and will be ‘he valid and bi-nding obligation of Buyer, enforceable" against Buyer in accordance
with its terms, subject to the laws relating to banicruptcy, in-solvency and relief of debtors, and
rules and laws governing specific performance, injunctions, relief -and other equitable remedies.

4.3 Authorization for this Agreement-. No authorization, approval, consent of, or
tiling with any governmental body. department, bureau, agency. public board, authority or other
third party is required for the consummation by Buyer of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

4.4 Litigation. As of Closing, there is no litigation, suit, action, arbitration, inquiry,
investigation or proceeding pending or, to the lcnowlcdgc of Buyer, threatened, before any court,
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agency or other -governtnential body against Buyer (or any. corporation or -entity :1-ffiliated with
Buyer) which seeks to enjoin or ‘prohibit or otherwise prevent the transactions contemplated
iierehy.

'5. _REPRE.SENTATIO NS AND VIARRANTIEHS OF SELLER.

Seller represents and warrants to Buyer‘tas'-fo'llows:

5.1 Power and Authority‘ No Default'U' on Transfer. As assignee forthe benefit
of creditors of Assignor, "Seller has all requisite power and authority to enter into and deliver this

Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder and under the General A_ssig'nn1ent. The
si.gnin_g, delivery and performance by “Seller ‘of this Agreement, and the consummation of ai} the
transactions eontempiated hereby, have been duly and val-idly authorized by Seller. To the best
of Seller's knowledge, the -General zitssignment was duly authorized. by As's_i-g_nor’s Board, with
the consent-of the mqoritji of Ass-ignor-‘s shareholders entitled to vote-with respect thereto, and is
a valid a.gr_et:1*.1en.t binding on Assignor and "Seller. This Agreement, when sigilfld and delivered

by Seller, will._be duly and validly -executed -and delivered and will bethe vzr1.i'd "and hijnding
-obligat-ion of Seller. enforoeable against Seller, as "AS'Slgrl'B'6, in accordance -with ‘its ilenns as
gotiemed by applicable law. "re-gulations -and rules. .

 

5.2 Title. The sale of the .fi_.cq.uired Assets is on an -as-is, where-is. basis, with no
-representations. or warranties on the part oF"Scllet'_.

-5.3. Assignee. All "rights of Seller with regard to the ownership and p0.ss.t_:ss,ion of the
Assets are rights held ‘as Assigneey piursuant to the General A-ssignment made by Assignor.
“Pursuits! t:o'the ..G.en.era1 Assignrttont, Assignor has uansfetred all of .r.’ts'sign'o_t"’s "tight, title and
interest in -and to the Assets-to -Seller.

6. COVE-NAiN'TS.Q.F SELLER.

Seller t:.ove.nants and agrees with Buyer as follows:

6.! Taxes and aunt Uther Charges Related to the Sale. Seller agrees to pay all
sales, transfer, use or other taxes, 'dut'ies. claims or charges, ifany, imposed on aindfor relzited to
the sale of the Acquired Assets to Buyer under this Agreement by any tax authority or other
governmental agency.

6.2 Further Assure-aces. From and alter the Closing, Seller shall cooperate with
Buyer and promptly sign and deliver to Buyer any and such additional documents, instruments,

endorsements and -related information and take actions as Buyer may reasonably request for the

purpose of effecting the transfer of Seller‘s andfor .=?tssignor’s title to the Acquired Assets to

Buyer, :1nd.1or carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. Buyer shall compensate _Sc'.iier for
any reasonabie, dmzumented disbursements in connection with this Section 6.2 and time incurred

in connection with providing assistance under this Section 6.2 in connection with any
enforcement or other infringement action regarding the Acquired Assets; provided that! Sclier
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shall have furnished Buyer an advance, written estimate of the fees and costs for such assistance
and Buyer sl-.*..'1ll l1ave.ageedin_writin_g to pay such fees and costs.

6.3 SurvivaI:nf Covenants. Each of the covenants set forth-in this "Section 6 and in
Section 1!-shall survive theflloising.

7. .COND.lT.lI)NS TO CLOSING.

7.1 Conditions to._13gg._e_r’s'{)bli'gations. The obligations of Buyer hereunder shall be

subject to the satisfaction and fulfillment of each of the following conditions, except as Buyer
-may expressly-waive any of the same. in writing;

(la) Accgfi"cg of Regresentations and _WarIanties on Closing. The
rep._I‘eSenta_tions and warranties made herein by Seller _sl'ta_ll be t'n1.e and ‘in all rrraterial

respects, and notrnislcading in any .mat'eria] respect, on and -as of the date given, and on and as of
the Closing with the same force -and effect as though such representatiotls and warranties were
made on and as ofthe Qlosing.

-Cb} Compliance. As of the C1osing,;Se_Iler -shall -have complied in all rrtaterial
re§P.§ets with, and shall have -fully performed, -in all material respects, all condi-t-ions,. covenants
and obligations ‘of this Agreement imposed on Seller and _re_qui'red to be perfoniied-or complied
with by Setter at, or prior to, the _Clos'ing. '

(c) Qe1,i.\ie[ylofCiosin‘g Documents. Seller shall have delivered, and Buyer
‘shall have received, all of-the documents deemed" by» the-Buyer to be necessuufgr to. co_nsu'm1‘n-ate
tl§1e'ti7ansat:'_tion contemplated hereby, which sttall~'ineltttle, ‘without ii_n_1ijtatio"rr, a -bill o.f3sa'le.

7.2 Conditions -'to.Seller’s Obligations, The obligations of Seller hereunder shalt be"
subject to the satis‘fi1C£ion'and fu'Ijfi'l_1't1ient- of each of the following conditions, except. as Seller-
may expressly waiverthe same in writing:

 (ti) Aecurao Re resentations and Warranties on _CEosi.n . The
representations and warranties made herein by Buyer shall be true and correct in all material

 

.-respects, and not-misleading in any material respec.t,_ on and as o'f.th.c date given, and on and as of
the-CIo's'in'g with jtltesame force and effect as though such representa'tions and warranties were
made on and as of the Closing.

(b) §.‘omQliance. Buyer shall have complied in all material respects with, and

shall have Fully nerfonned, the terms, conditions, covenants and obligations ofthis Agreement
imposed thereon to be performed or complied with by Buyer at, or prior to, the Closing.

(:1) Pavrnent. Buyer shall have transmitted by wire transfer and Seller shall
have-receive-:1 payment of the :Purchase Price. '
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3. CLOSING 0'BLI_'C;ATIONS.

8.1‘ Buvcris Ciosing Obligations. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller
payment of Fifty Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000) by cashier's check or as othenvise instructed

by Seller, .and a.sign_ature to this Agreement

8.2 Seller’-s: Closing Qbiigatinns. At the Closing, Seller Shall deliver to _B_uyer a
signature to this Agreement, and executed bill of sale, assignment agreements and other
agreements and documents -which "Buyer deems necessary to consummate ‘the trnnsacti'on
contemplated hereunder.

9. "SURVIVAL OF WARRA-NTIES.

All representations and -warranties made by Seller or Buyer .h_e'rein, oz; in. any certificate,
schedule or Iettlfibit delivered ptnsuant hereto, shall ‘survive for a period of one (i) year after‘ the

-Closing.

1.0,. TE_RMINATION.

10."! Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the transactions

‘contemplated herein may be abandoned, ‘by written notice given to the other party hereto, at any
time prior to the Closing:

(a) -by mutual written consent of-Seller -and Buyer;

(-b]-‘ by Buyer if Seller alters, éufnends or. brea.ch.es -any of "the. covenants,‘-. is in-
breach of any material covenant, representation, or Wfl.lT:1t'tty,_OI' if it appears that a.'c'o'ndit_it_Jn is
impossible ('_c='tber than through the faiture of Buyer to -comply with -its -obligations under this
Agreement) to satisfy and -Buyer has not waived such condition in writing on or'be't‘or_e the
Closing Date; '

(G) by Seller if Buyer alters, amends or breaches any of the c__ove'n_ant_s, is in

breach of any material ‘covenant; representation or wananty or if it appears that a condition is

imptmsible {other than through the failure of Seller to comply their obligations under this
Agreement) to satisfy and -Seller has not waived such condition in writing on or before the

Closing Date":

id) if the Closing shall not have occurred on or before November 19. 2007,

unless the Closing is extended by mutual agreement ofthe parties.

21. ll-‘IISCELLANEOUS.

ll.l Exgenses. Each of the parties hereto shall bear its own expenses (including

without limitation attorneys‘ fees) in connection with the negotiation and consummation of the

transaction tfontemplated hereby.
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I 11.2 Notices._ Any notice required or pennitted to be given under this Agreement shall
be in vgriting and shall he personally or sent by certified or registered United States mail, postage
"prepaid, or .=_e:n_t by nationally recognized ovemight express "courier and addressed -as foilows:

la) - =

Byron Z. Moldo

Moldo Davidson Fraioli Seror Sestanovich LLP

2029 Century Park East, 31'“ Floor

Los Angcles, CA90l)67
Tel; 310-55l-31.00

Fax: 310-551-0238-

Email: bmoIdorE'I)tridfsim_a_r.com
 

(b) if to Buver:

A-W Computer Hoidings LLC
2229 Barry Ave.

Los Angeles, CA 90054
Tel: 310-594-72;92_
Fax: 31 0-594‘--’;‘e2»92

Attt-.ntion:_ Sni 'S_ui_'Mak_

With a.‘t:o'm( to:

Ron Bender, Esq. T
'Lex.tene,- N._eal_e, Bender, Ranl(in_& Brill L.L.,P.

10250 Constellation Blvd._, Suite 1700

Los Angeles, ‘CA 9006'?
Tel: 310-229--1234
Fax: 3 I'D-229~12‘44

Email: rb@.lnbrb.com

11.3 Entire Agreement. This As_set_ Purchase Agreement, the E‘.xhibi'ts hereto (which
are incorporated herein by reference) and any agreements to be executed and <.i'el'iver'ed in

connection herewith, together constitute the entire agreement and understanding between the
parties and there are no agreements or commitments with respect to the transactions
contemplated herein except as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement supereedes any prior
o.l1"<:r, agreement or understanding berwcenthe parties with respect to the transactions
wnternpiateui hereby.

[L4 Amendtnent; Waiver. Any term or provision of this Agreement may be

amended only by awriting signed by Seller and Buyer. lhe observance of any term or provision
of this Agr-cement may be waived (either generally or in a particular instance and either

retroactively or prospectively) only by a writing signed by the party to be bound by such waiver.
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No waiver by a party of any breachof this -Agreement will be deemed to constitute a waiver of

any other breach or any succeeding breach.

11-.5 l\'o'Third Pam Beneficiaries. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement
is intended, or shall be construed. to confer upon or _to give anyiperson, firm or corporation, other
than the parties hereto, any rights. or-remedies-.under—or by reason of this Agreement.

11.6 Ercecufitm in Countegg.arts. "For the convenience of the parties, this A.g_reer'nent
may be executed in one or more counterpans, each of which shall be deemed an original and all
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

1].? Be-n.et‘:it and Burden. This Agreement shall be binding upon. shal-I ‘inure to the
benefit of, and be enfo1'c¢itb__le.b}' -and against, the parties hereto .-and their respective successors
and pennitted-assigns.

11.8 Gtwern.in.g_ . Law. ‘this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in

accordance witl-rt-he fintemal -laws of -the State of .Ca_1iforn'ia (excluding application of any choice
of law doctrines that would‘mfakeza.ppi.ic:ible the law of any other state or jurisdiction) "and, where
appropriate, applicable federal. law, '

11.9" Se1'erab-ilig.. If any provision of this Agreement is for any reason and to any
cment deem ed to be invalid or unenforceable, then such _oro'v'i'sion shall not be voided but rather
shall be enforced -to -the -maximum e:;t_ent'then permissible under then applicable law and so as to

reasonably effect theintent of the parties -hereto, -and- the remainder of A'g'reet‘ne'r_it will remain
in full Force and effect.

.11.t1[}. _Atturu'evs’ Fees. Should a- suit or arbitration be brought to" enforce or interpret

any pro.v'istir,~t1 of this :\'g'reement, the prevailing party's'ha_1.l be enti.t'l't:d to recover reasonable
attorneys‘ fees to be fixed in a.tno,unt by the Court or the Ar'_bit_rator(s) (including without

limitation costs, expenses and. fees on any appeal}. The "prevailing party will be entitled to
re(_:_0VE:_t"i-£3 costs of suit or arbitration, as applicable, regardless-“of whether such suit or arbitration

proceeds to a final judgment or award.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Buyer and Seller executed and delivered this Asset Purchase

Agreement by their duly authorized representatives as of the date referenced above.

SE1.‘ LER:

BYRON Z. M()l.DO, in his capacity

as Assignee tor the benefit of creditors

of SLB Toys USA, Inc.

BUYER:

AW. COMPUTER HOLDlNGS. LLC

By: ___:W___

Byron Z. Mo-ido

By:

Sui Sui Malt, President of

AW Computer Holdings, LLC
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No waiver by a;pa1rt_}? of any breach of this Agreement will -bedeemed to -constitute a waiver of
any other _b:each or any -succeeding breach.

11.__5_ .Tlxird.Par_§1 Bi-.11e§g._1'aries._ Nothing expressed or implied in this Aggoemerzt
-is -intended, or shall be cor'1stnie'd,_ to confetzupon or to give anypejrson, or corp'o'_ratiot_1, other
than the parties hereto, any rights or remedies under or by reason oqflthis AgreetnenL

11.6 Egecution I_n Countergarts. For the convenience of the palnies, this Agreement
may be executed in one or mo_re.co_m:;e,rpans, each of whichahall be deemed an origina'l—and all
of which togetl1er'sha1lconst'_1'tute one and fliesame instrument.

1.1.7 Benefit and Bur_d_en. This Ageement shall be binding upon, shall inure to. the
benefitof‘-, and be enforceable by .a._nd *a_ga.i_.r1st,'- thee hereto--and thei1?_r_especti\re.sueeessors
and penrnitted assigns.

(11.3 Goverxjlxig Law. This .-Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with .the internal Eéwseof the State of Calffoniia (‘excluding app1i'c.a3.i<?31 ofany choice
of lavw-domrincs that wduldimake. applicable the-law of-any-other state‘ or jun'sdi<_:L;ion)_ and, where
'é_1pptO.p'ria't§:, applicable federal--law. ' H

'1 1.9 .Sew.r_mjab_iIi[.]5.. -If any provision of Agreernent is fDr_aI'1'}f reason and to -any
c,Kt€_1.1t deemed to be invalid or .unenfor_oeable,_.thcn such .p:ov;is:',pn shall not be voided but ra'th'er

-shall berenforced to the maximum ex;entl11en:p_enjn1§sib}e under-then applicable law and so asfm
-reasonably efl'ec_t intent of-the parties hérétd. and. theffimainder-of“this Agreemexxt will". remain
in full fore‘: .'ancl e£fi:c.L_

11.1"!) Attorneys.’ E-ees. Shouléi a suitor a:?bi1Ia;i‘o'n be brougljlt to enforce or iniclpret

-any provision of 'l.§1i's" Agreement," the prevailifig _pan3y'sh'al1 be‘ entitled £0 recover -reasmeble
attorneys’ fees to be fixed in amount by the C'o_,u':t_ or the Aibitra:or(s} l(i.m':'lucIing 'wi'tl1o.ut
lirrxitafinn costs, "expenses and fees on any appeal). The prevailing party will be entitled to
mcover-its costs ofsuit or arbiufation, a_s.app1'iceab1e, regardless ofwhet11er such suit-or arbitration
;proceeds to a final judgment or award.

IN WITNESS WI.-IEREDF, Buyer and Seller executed" and delivered this Asset Purchase
Agnes-m,em: by their duly authorized representafi ves as of the date referenced above.

SELLER: BUYER:

 
BYRON Z. MOLDO, in his capacity AW COMPUTER HOLDINGS LLC
as Assigpee for the hcnefitof creditors

By:
Sui Sui Mak, President of

AW Computer Holdings. LLC
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H2: 1.19 an 585:. a:'zo'Ammo'a _:_=.o2'aL

1% waiver by a pany of any Bzeash of this [Ag-gament will b: deemed to oonstimtc a of
any othgr or any succeeding breach

-11.5 Nnj j . _ '_l? _ genefidnrigs. Nmhmg. gacpressgd or -implied in this Agreamczxt
‘is intmdnd. or ‘sha.1.1'bc construed. to cb'rif:r‘t;pun.or ta giire finn or <:oz_pora't_ion, cjthqf
than the parI'ie.s any rights or remedies under or by of-this

  

"I1.-.6 Execnfibg in_.Caunteg_n_hm, F-or‘t_t_w' _the;'pazties, Agreement
my be-axectzted in one-ur.mnrc wuntetparts, each dfwhich shall be deemed-an origizmi -and-all
"of w.hich'togoti1er shall eonstitute one and the sa_:ns_:;in._st_zm11a;tt.

11,7 shall be shall inure} 10111:;
‘o¢':1"‘cIfit.o'1'-'. and ' Icifiyéhd aynainst-,rths parfies hen‘.-t'o anéi dicir respecfive -succes.'- 30:3
and pmninad assigns.

11.3 Gi’J’1_Ig@'_V‘"ii-_§gV Law. Aytancut ..sha.II be: .govr;='rn':d. by and _in
accordancu with of'2he"Stat:"afCaIift31j1_1ia =a1:_-j:I_i::.tition-0f31!?-'¢h¢'.ifi¢

,o1':='zaw duct.-i_nes ifim vmuld "law o'£*_anjr pfixet §ta_1_e at-jurisdicfioni
appmpnma. fiapfiizahle fmctcrai raw.

11.93 Ifaxsy grmision of this Agremzent -i; "fig: any reason a:1d_to' am!
extemT=d:,en:i'ed.t1o be.inx4'iiid-anuncnforceaE'i¢, than such sha1}.not.;bg;c vqigiggd I:_;ut‘ra;:h:_:r

-511811 b-= Iii¢n'appli§:a5IE law-:w:I:so':as-ta
_tf:qt-thee intent o'f'tfa=c_pa;rti;2s :hm:!D,‘afi£WJ.!=‘T¢!i1fl1'Dd¢*a‘ ofthjis willremain

1'1-.19. ShouI_d:.a -suit 'a_fa_rb_fi1"ati_'nn by. b1:oug_h_1'to- ecnffiran
-any ,pmvis1'1on --qr the 1:rtcv'amns_:>a===sr sh_a11_b.e mfitlecx. to -re5¢vs=;: remidniible

faes :to he ain'o.unt by the cm or d1c'A:b5.tr.atox{a')' (inciuding wifim_.'u:
limitfitian ‘frees on anjr. :a'pp#.alJ- Th: pr¢'-!aiIing.patiy will be mfifled to
._¢.6(nr.::'its costs .'c'if;s'uit:;'r arbitmfion, as applicable, regardless. :$f'whe§hnr.suc11 suit or azbiixation
proceeds to :3. onward.

INWHNESS WIEREOF, Buyer and ‘Seller executed"" -dclivared Asset Purchase
Agreemnnt by their duly authnrizxd rep_r:sen'tan’vas.a_s fifths .dzt:*-.'e'fer:nced

SELLER:

BYRON z. .vIoLD.o_. in his capacity
55 Assignee for the beraefit of creditors
of SLB Toys USA, Inc,

swam _
AW COMPU'1'ER.'HOIJD_IN.GS ILC

Sui Sui Malt. President of

AW Computcr Hqldings, 1.1.0

By: .
Byron Z. Molds

E;1e1aJa1.4_
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GENERAL ASSIGNMENT

THIS ASSIGNMENT made this i9th,day' of November, _.2-0007, by S'i_l-3 Toys
USA, INC, -.1 ?\"o~.v- Y-2-rl<' corporation. having its principal place of business r1t232F1 Barr}:

:"-’«\.-'£?nu<=, Lus A njg.eIes,. L‘a_l'ifom§-tr (h.ereinafter'referre_d to as “Assignor”}, IOBYRON Z.

MOLDO (hereinafter referred to as ‘Wssignee’-’);

W‘ITNE;S'S_ETI~l': That whereas Assignor is indebted tcwarious persons and is
desirous ofproviding for the payment of same, so Far as is in its power, by an assignment

of all of-its property for that purpose:

NOW, THEREFORE, _Ass_ig_n_o_r, for valuable -:_ons'ider_ation, receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, doe.s.here_by- make the following (_3ene.ro1'AsSig_nIn_ent for the
benefit olfAssi-goofs creditors to Byron Z. Moldo, as Assignee, under the following
terms and conditions:

1. Assignorr does hereby grant, ba1'egai-n,_ sell, assign,.comrey, "and transfer-to

Assignee. his-.succe-ssors and assi'gos.~in for the »uttim-ate'3be'uefi_t_ of-Ass'ign"oj;=:5
creditorst géndrallyg all of'lhe.propjer1y'-.and a5§ets.o_fLl1II} PLsS”rgnor"ojf _e'ver§'rl_<i'x'1‘d and nature
and -wheresoeverzsiftuated (collectively, the “-Assets"), whether-in-possession, reve_rsi.o'n,

remainder, or.cxpec'tancy, both. real and personal, and any interest or equity therein;
included .tl1&::eitr.;;Lre all merchandise, funriture, fixtures, machio_eryj,teq11_ipment, raw

materials, nier¢han'cli_se_ orwork in process‘. book accounts, books, accounts __re_c::i_v_a'ole,
cash--onfiand, all-causes ofaction (;_person’a'l or~.c'1'thenifi'se)_,_ :in$llI'ance policies, patents;
trademarks, trade names, copy:-lights-, trade jsecrete-, lntellecmaltproperty, a.r_.1y_'am<:l all‘ right,
ti;le,;tlii:en_sa_, andfor‘interest.of~Assignor-inadvenlsing, ir'1_;_:i'lufd_'g_ng ‘White’-mid Ye_l.1b_w' Page
telephone ligmngs, any and all right, title, license or other intexes_t._in' _2_\._s$ignor-’s telephone.
fax,oriotheinuzizbersllisted in- any adv'ertisemerd'by-which bus-ines.s is solicited", any and
all rights andgoedwill-in the narne “$3-LB To_)'_sIUSA,,lNC‘.‘-’, Assi-gz_aor.‘s complete
computer -system_,_and al1o_Lher.properry of_eve1‘.3f kind and uamre owned by As's_-ignorr, and
without 1im'iLi-ngtlie [generality of the foregoirxg, inelodi-ng allot‘ the essets pertainiiig to.
that certain business known as SI;B:'l_‘ogrs 1-}.SIAZl1NC:.lloea_:cd at 22-29 Barr;/‘Aye-xxue, -Lox
.~\ng<:1es. Cuiifonfia 90.06'4. Assignor shall use rieasonaT:‘l'e- efforts to have the ins—ur'an_ce

‘policies endorsed over to ,t.h.e.Assi_gnee.

2. This As'signr'nent constitutes :1 grant deed of all real property owned by the

Assignor. if any, whether or not -said real property is specifically described "herein.

3. Leases and leasehold interests in real estate are included in this

assignment.

4. Assignor agrees to deliver to A-ssignee all books of account and records, to
execute and deliver all additional necessary documents imr-n_ed_iately upon request by

Ass_ignee._ and to endorse all indioia of ownership where required by Assignce, in order to

complete the transfer of all assets to Assigrree as intended by this Assignment. including,

but not limited to, all of Assignoris real and persotlal propcny and/or :\ssig_n0r’s interest
therein. including mortgages, deeds of trust, motor vehicles, patent rights, trademarks,

60445.1 $3-4.00022 1
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trade names, copyrights, trade secrets and intellectual property. Assignee is hereby
author-i-zed to execute all en‘dor_semcms and demands requiring..A:ssignor’s signature, in

the name of Assignor. Assigncir further authorizes Assit_2ne_e to apply for any deposits,
-refunds (‘includingspecifically‘-among all others, claims For refund oftaxes paidlor
claims wherever necessary in the name of Assignor. Atssignee is authorized -to dir'e_ct- all

Assignofs United States mail to be d_elivered to Assignee, and A.-ssignee is expressly
-authorized and directed to open said mail as agent ofAssignor, and to do any thing oriact
which the /tssignee in his sole and arbitrary discretion deemsimcessary or advisetble to
.effectuate the purpose ofthis Assignment.

5. Assignor and Assignce agree to the .i‘ollowin‘g:_

a. This insmunent transfers l_BgE).l.liIlC and possession I20 Assignee of

all of the a;b.ove-described assets and Assignee, in his own discretion, may direct whether
10 continue all, or part, of the business operations, ortoeliquidate said assets.

"o, Assignee, athis discre_tion,'ma'y sell andldis_pos'e ofisaid "assets

upon suchtenns ;1nCl*C!Z>Il'diEion'S as he may-see fit, ntpublic or pri'va'te. sale. Assigrace
shall not bepersonally -liable inlany rnajnner, and. Assi,grtec‘s-o'bliga_lions shall he in a-
{rcpresentatiire capacity only in his-zcapacltjr-as Assigrtee for the:~henefit;'of'creditors.
Assig,-n-ec. shall administer this estate to the best of his-ability, but his exp.re‘sjsl'y

understood that he‘, his" agents andfor emplo_yees.sha:ll be liable only for-the reasona'bl.e
‘care and -diligence insaid itdntittistration, and he shall not be liable for any'act.or thing, or
ztny omission to act, donehy l'1_im,.l1is agents ‘or em'ploye'es in good lhith in conrtection
'there.witli.

c. _ _Fror_n th.e_'procect_ls of-the sale, co'IfleeI;i_ons, operations or otlter
source, z*__tsslgnee' shall pay h'i'rnseIf and retain as--Assignee all ot"his_ charges and expenses,
together with his own rem-unertttionnnd. fee, which-remuneration and Fee shall notexceed

the sum of‘fifteen th_ousa,Ln_d- _d’o'1l;ar,s L35-l5,0(}l)_iJO),_ plus ten percent {_ I-0%) o.fthe_amount_o'f'
the _p_roceeds- re_oeived.and hancil.-.d.by the fitssignce from sales, collections, operations or
other sources. Assignee .may. also pay from such proceeds-reasonable remuneration -to his

agents, attorneys and accountantannd may payza-reasonable fee to 2-\$sigItor"s atttomey.
All of the a_forern'ent_ion_ed amounts are-to be determined at !1Ls5ig'ne.e'5 sole direction,
detcnnination andjudgmcnt

d. A-ssignee may comproniise claims, assume or reject .-‘\.ssignor’s

executoty contracts, and discharge at h_is,opti.on any liens on said assets and indebtedness

which under law are entitled to priority of payment. Assignee shall have the power to

borrow money, hypotheceue and pledge the assets, and to" do all matters and things that

said Assignor could have done prior to this Assignme-nt. Any act or thing done by the

Assigne-2 hereunder shall bind the assignment estate and the Assignee only in his capacity

as Assrlgnee for the benet"1t- of creditors. Assignee shall have the right to sue and defend

suits as he successor of the Assignor, and the Assignee is hereby given the right and

power to institute and prosecute legal proceedings in the name of the Assignor, the same

as ifthe Assignor itself had instituted and prosecuted such proceedings or actions.

60445.1 834 00022 I-J
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e. Assignor agrees (tn the extent assignable by law). to make any and
all claims for refund of taxes which may be due from the Internal Revenue S'€nr'ice or

other taxing agencies for -tax refunds, or otherwise, and to forthwith upon receipt of such
refunds pay -them over to the Assignee, and hereby empowers Assignee to make all
claims for refunds which may be-made by Assignor.

f. After paying ali costs and expenses of administration andali fees

and all allowed priority claims, Assignee-shall distribute to all unsecured creditors, pm
mm, any remaining net proceeds of this assignment estate. Said payments are to be made
until all assets are exhausted, orthese -creditors are paid er settled, in full, Thereafter, the

surplus-01'-rrmneys and property, if any, shall be transferred or conveyed to the Assignor.
If any'uncli'st_ribute'd dividends to creditors or any reserve funds shall remain unclaimed

for a perind of ninety {-90} days élfifil’ issuance of a final dividend check Iby the Assignee,
then thesarne shall become the property of this Assignee and used to supplement his fees
for services‘ rendered’ in administeriiig-tlti-s Assignment.

g. it is agreed and understood-that this transaction is 3-common law
assigm;‘n:en_t..for the b_enet-"it of"-A?ssig,riot’.'s eredjto_rs, and is-net a_ statutory assignment. This
rigreeineilt shall be igovefntd by tile provisions-Ofsect-ion 493.010, et seq, of the
California. Code of C;ivil.Proeedu.re.

SL8 Tgj'_s.USA_. i_l*~iC._,
J ‘N-:5w '¥'o.rk corporatiori, Assignor

33“ , . .
.Bi*-i-et1e3Dubinsky, .Fresi‘dent

ACCEPTED THIS 1'9"‘ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007:

'BYR-(I'M Z. MOLDO, ASSIGNEE

60445. 334.0002’-_’ 3
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c. Assignor agrees (to-the extent assignable by law) to make any and
alt claims for refund of-'1;-axesT which maybe due Rom the Internal Rewnue -$.cr*rice-or

other tm'.i:1g'- agcnnibs for refimds, er" otherwise, md to forthwith upon receipt of such
‘refunds .pa.y _th_efm_ over to-the A_;ssignee,;and hergby jempowexs éxssignee to make all
claims E3: refuxlds whichmay bcmadu by Assignor.

f. Afier .pa,'y;ing all ($0515 and expenses Ofa»d3i1i'1'1iS[T8fiOfl».and;'3l'1 fees

and all allowed pridritydainas, Assignac shalI:di5t_19ibut_c to all rmsécured ::rcdi!or'5...P"0
ra:_a, my remaining" npt proceeds of this assignment estate. Said pa}-men'ts are to be made

until all 'aasctsVare~cxhaustcd, or th_¢_$B.credi1ors are paid or" scttlt-.d,_ in full. The:-eafier, -the
surplus af nmneys andpropertgr, [if-any, shall he "transferred or cunveyet! to thc Assiig-nor-.
Ifany u.ndiSt1"ib1':.ted .di'Vidends'7to “creditors 61' any rcscrve. fimds shall remain uncl-aimed

for a -petioid ofrxiiwty [(9'fl)~.days after. issuance ofe..;fi‘nal--dividend check by the Asaignee._
than the same 5ha11'b.¢wme the-property of’this A'3.si_g11ee and used"-to supplezncnt his fees
for services re,-nd'ered in adnfinistering this Assignment.

g. It is agreed and understood that this transaction is-a comrnnn Saw

assigmr=cnt' fo1"tl1e:benafit-effAssigzmfls cred.iti:rs,TandTis notsa statutory assignment;
Agfeemcni shall-Tbegoverned by the pmfiisions-ofisection-4'93.010, et seq.. ofthe
California -Code of-C:i&'i'lP1‘oc.ed'uJ:e. '

S1.BTToys USA. INC,

:1 New York corpiorafion, Assigzzur

33¢?
 

Bria:1D1ihins}ty, Preisiudent '

  
El?) THIS DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2007:1

PR; . " :z.'}.r£0LIjo,,é;S's.I<_3rqEE
  

. so-145.1 23490022 3
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H!:.~.—'.v;v_r ;r<.c>s'.;2%=;.°..€v _ws.-u;2T.§'r-1 W -naoaenoon aorn-L

T e. A'.ssi_gnor..agces (to the extent assignable by law) to make any and
33.11 claims-for rgfund afmxcz which may he: duezfiam thc Imez'm_1lReverLun'S=rvicc or

a@c_:._i_es for tax rafimfis. §>r-m‘.11=rva_ise, andto fm'I1'1with upon receipt of-such
zennxds-payum over to ma Assigns:-;.andJh.e'o=:by cmpowws--Assignee:-m ‘ail
claims fut refimds -which ‘be by Assigiter.

fi -;m'ing;&l1 cost; and cxpcnscsTof-administfafian and all fcea
and-an allowed claims; Assisnbc ¢.5i51ril§tl.1.¢to'al} umsewred craditotss pro
rata; anyrcxnaitiing -1:tc'1T.pro;:::o:!s.-oi‘ this -a.ssi'g£nnBi1!'=5I&'1e. Sdidipiayments Er: td b#‘=~m3d.=.
until a.ll.asszis a:e.§bxhat1'Sted. or these 'cradi.fors'é:‘=Tpaid or settiésd. ihfull. Tnarcafler. 111:

-Tfi1_1'p1u8' Off iirfopertnif-any, shall be’tansi‘errad or conveyed to-the. Aasigpor.
If any: mydistribuied-=:1i_Vi§ends ~o.o,c.=e_dim Or--an7'r:s_=rvc'fi1_nds -u__nc1'aim.:<i-

-.fast:ane:iod-.afniaie_IH9fi)-days afiu imfinc:-sis-‘Era!-divIdcnd%e1wck:hythe Aafisnm
than the sum: shall bc_.com_e flzfipmpetty ofthis and used to supplcmemhis fats
-for services--zénrletedinthis

_ It is agreed e.n(!.unc1-etstooci that this“-transactiongi; acommanriaw
a3sigan_1ez_1t- forfthc: banefit«ot';Assig;;qir's;cra'ditors, anfc_i5is:n9t-a.si$1mtary assignment
in-._ 1_he:pm'-'is‘iuns» of sccfitzn '4-9'3.-DYE 0, er seq_.. of the

SI4_B'Io3s;}.'_TSz&', ENC...
aflew-Yawn" Assimfiaor-.

 

nuts 19* DAY o1=- NOVEMBER, 2007:

BYRONZ. Memo. ASSIGNEE '

60445.1 83-1.90022
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C'1ONSENTT1"O ASSI'GNMEN'T BY -STO'CK_HOLDERS A-ND

BOAR_D'O'F D§RE'CTORS

We, Hie undersigned, 1J¢il1g 0WI‘lCr§ and hqicicrs of 100% ofthe .~;}1_ar<_3s‘c;f'sts:ck.
beifip; more than 50% of-the subscribeid and isslled stock, and the Board ufDircc1ors of
S_L;3 Toys USA .ln_c a Ncw Yprk corporation, do_hu-.reb;,r ‘give our consent to the =.\-Etlxin

ztssigrzmemt :«.::c! u'zms1'er..of' the pmpesty oE1sai<l_corpontation.

NAI‘rIE" SHARES HI-_2I_.D 

 
‘Lisa Lin 100%
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CONSENT OF DIRECTORS TO HOLD MEETING
Los A,1_c;éIe_5, -Céfifarnia

November 12th, 2007

1. L133 Liu. being thespla director of $1.8 Toys USA, Inc. a carporalion. crgargized under the laws cfihe

state or Nmv York, aasembieu this day-at ihe office of ma ‘C-orporation v!a.!elap?io Jcanierence at Lee Angela:
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MINUTES OF THE M=EE'TING

Lcs Arigeies, 'Caiiforn'ia_, November 15:, 2007

Am meeting of ‘the directors of SL3 To 3 USA Inc. a Near-Yon: Cnrporafion. held at tha atfica [of the 

Cor;jo':'atio_n, via telép_hcn'e_ g:a'nf_eri2nce at its piacjre cl business, ms Barg Avenue, Lo5.Aoge_1es Cafiicrnia

£_ig§fl_§4;_J at Q ;gi;_Ln‘c1"c:.-.1: 43:11. the lollowingoirectors warn present

Lisa. Liu

A bsent:
 

 

 

_ .Ti‘_:e Prasid;-nt.:an.n1o.unr;ed that the purpose oiiha meeting was tOi consider the:
financial condiiion of‘the company -and the advisability of making-a general assignment for
the benefit of creditors.

On motion by Lisa L-iu; s.ec'oodje~_a’ ,1:3; Lisa Lia
tirefoiio wing'resoIu:ion:w-as adopted, tow.-it:

.-__3';=- ITRESQLvain:

That Brian Dubinsity, Presidént of -this Corporation be, and is,- iwgrieby authorized-
and directed by «the directors of this .Corporation. in meeting -assembled, .10 maicé an
assignment.-of all assets oitha Corporation to Byron 2. Murder. ft;r'ti_:e on: rat; benefit of an
creditors of this camoragtiorr, and may B_n‘a'n'i3ubr‘rr;k_y he, and ha is'h.ere_b_y.authoriz9d and
directed z-‘o gxecuté said assignment containing such provisions as may be ‘agreed upon
-between him and Byroii Z. —Mcido, -(As$igr_r'ea,l,' and he is also 'a_u:ir'or_izejd and directed to
execute and a‘eiivor'to Byron Z. Moido, as A'ss.fgn.ee, such other deeds. .a5s‘.igr1,ments, and
agreemenfsias may be necessary ‘to carryfhis Iresoiutiorl into effect. '

BE IT FURTHER'RE_5QLVE_D:

That said Assignee for the benefit of credi-tors be, and is hereby. authorized to
execute and tile and prosecute on behalf of this corporation all claims for refuhd or
abatement of aii excess taxes heretofore or hereafter assessed againsf or collected from this

corporation and any one officer of this corporation" be, and it is, hereby authorized and
directed to make, execute and doiivor in favor of such person as may be designated by the
assignee for the benefit of creditors, a power of-atfom ey on the regular printed form thereof
used by the United" States Treasury Department so as to authorize said attomey-in-.facr to
process any tax claims for it on behalf-of this Corporation.

1 There being no furfher business to come before the directors, the -meeting is
adjourned subject to the can of the Présidant or Wce-President.

1‘, Lisa Liu Director of $1.5 Toys USA inc., a New Vork Corporation, do hereby certify
(hat the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of directors“heid
in Log Angeies. Caiifornia , at the place and hour‘-stated -and that -the resoiution

60445.‘-. -B34.Dt)022 6
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containedifn safcfmlnutes was adbpfed ‘by the directors at said meeting and the same -has
mat beg-n modified or rescinded.

Dated November 1, 2001'

 

Lisa ';3ire-':tu'r

CORPORATE
SEAL

60445 .3 334.6002?
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in ___Los Angeles, California, 3;-the place in!-hour stated and that the resoturmn contained
in-Edict minutes was adoptégyby the dr mars at said meeting andfhe "same has not been
modified gr rescinded. .‘

 

 
 

‘Data-dNovemb_e_r I I

Lisa L552, Dir-';i:1‘:':«.' "

CORPORATE
‘SEAL
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NO

BA

38

48

5A
6A

TA

"BA

9A

10);

‘HA

12A

--126‘

1. 27

_1 28

129

pPrinters. Easer, (Canon, Epson)

To:yQuest

2228 Barry Ave.

Los Ang e‘!-es, CA

Assets -Inventory

E-fectronics and Computers
Descfition

Déil Desktop Optipiex, Dimension. FIECESIGH
Flat monnoirs graphics, 1'-5,.'1?,19-.22.24,32inch. 23

Apple (35 Desktop (upgraded) graphic

Apple-:EMAC Besklop (upgraded) graphic
Apple -Serv~ar- network with (T) r_aids-andaccsssory

Appte net-.-vaxking equipment

Detl sewer power adge-2900

Rouiers. HOB {24F') patch -panel. scmic wall

Beikin Power Crpnditipners %

ONKYO sound system, DVD. cdrw. speakers

Scanners". Epson, Fujitsu

.'D'eI_! server power edgg 1400

Cpnier

Printers. photo,-inkjept

,'_:_,‘m-—~.—~m—+.mc>—~m—-Mm
Canon Fax

HP:Pl_olter Eiectrp Static 50_UPS_

Nikon Carr‘-era

"External Hard Drive Maxlor

Palyccom Speaker phone

Sony 59." TV

Panasonic Hat TV

Panasordc Pb-we S',~.a"rern high bird digitai

._a..;_¢h.J'(.J._x_1.....a.

Filed 04/21/2008
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10

‘E1

 
. ..s:§J'r'.ed \.~J,;:§ anc1.:isp§a.~y
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Toyéluest

2228 Barry Ave.

Los Angeles, CA

Assets Inventory

Of-fica Furniture

Office desks and return. Book shetves, file cabinet 8

Ping, Pong Table 1'

B.a§1cetBa1l Hosp 1

omce High back chairs as

Couches (canvas) and love‘: seat 3
Coffee table 2

Iconferenpe Table and 10 chairs andfside table 1

Beanbag :3,-mars ‘:1

Kitchen equipment; refrigerator-, caffeernakar,
microwave, iabie and chairs

Couches earner unit and coffee"-Eabte
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Bills to Purchase

(Phones: Account #011790110281,B93004 (Verizon)

‘Cellular ~— Ac_:count#493020121 (T-Moble) and #8283.88T?2 (AT&T)
Account #99571B?’53 .(AT&_T)

COVAD isi - -Account #590373

UPS — Account #E1-3A05

Pacific Aiarm System accountw Gustomor #16793

Blue Cross aoco.unt~— Group [#285554

Kansas (1o_mmunicafions.ph_one_ a_c;ct,—e Acoount #001 0803 506'80_?6.04.

Excel _phone—— Account #1 2000006608

—DWP -—-Account#44fl07694022290GflODG1 B-1 8: 4480?_694G2229000.€l00901'

Time Warner c:ah£e— Accomt #B44.B200190?915T3

Sirius 'music.—— Ac"c'ou'nt #1200.56721 1

Tim .-— Account#0D11D32673

‘Gas company ~ Account #03?38-969.041

Arfieric-an EX_p1’a.s_s'- Prima'ry- Account #3'{'820?5_9‘4.142007

E3entonviiIe:ph'one — Acoo_unt'o#50L103-1412,86

discover.c:om account

Case No. CV'05~138.2.RSWL'(_C_Wx) - SLB v. Wham—.O_, Inc, —.only-the-._aMppe[la_t9
right:

So. Cal. Disposal-lras_h — Account #2206

AW453
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

l8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

SLB TOYS USA ,
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TUHITED STAEEs.DISTRICT cover
cznwnan nxsmnrcw OF CALIFORNIA

Plaintiff ,

V.

WHAM-O INC., et 3.-

Defendant.

INC.
CV o5—i382 RSWL (cwxi

1'

ORDER

1. ~...r-..a~._n-..«>~—t-—a‘-..an_a.~..4-..a\-..«-..a-../~..a
Currently before this Court are (1) Plaintiff and

Counterclaim Defendant SLB Toys USA, Inc . ’ 3 Motion and

Post—Judgment Motion for Judgment as a Matter of Law or, in

the alternat ive ,

(2)

Attorneys '-

Defendant: and Counterclaimant Wham—O,

Fees.

for New Trial or to Amend the Judgment; and

Inc. '5 Motion for

Having considered all papers and

1
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10

11.-

12'

1'3

14

15

is

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Case" 2:06-c-v-01382-RSWL-CW Document 551 Filed O2f26_:'-200.8‘ Page 2 of 5

arguments, was COURT NOW FINDS AND RULES As FOLLOWS:

As a preliminary matter, the Court overrules as moot

- SLB's Objections to Exhibit A of Declaration of Gratzinger

' because the Court did not rely on Exhibit A.

Moreover, the Court overrules SLB’s Objections to

7 Attorneys: fees and Costs Amount because these objections

.are not evidentiary objections, but merely arguments as to

why certain items of requested attorneys’ fees are

unreasonable,

The Court:

— DENIES SLB's Motion for Judgment as-a Matter of Law

because sufficient evidence supports-jury's findings;

- DENIES SLB‘s Motion for New Trial because the verdict

was not contrary to the clear weight of the evidence or

based upon false or perjurious evidence, and there was

no miscarriage oi justice; and

— DENIES SLB's Motion to Amend Judgment because the Court

‘was not presented with newly discovered evidence, the

and there was noCourt did not commit clear error,

intervening change in controlling law.

In addition, the Court GRANTS Wham—O's Motion for

Attorneys’ Fees because this case is “exceptional.” The

2
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case is exceptional because SLB’s conduct was willful and

_ deliberate.

SLB deliberately and willfully infringed and diluted

Wham—O's famous trademark by using the YELLOW mark on SLB’s

slide products and packaging, even after it received

multiple cease and desist letters.

In addition, SLB deliberately and willfully-made false

representation to the consuming public by putting a picture

of a yellow water slide on packaging boxes that actually

contained_orange.water slide products,

Wham~O seeks attorneys’ fees in the amount of

$1,648,195 and expenses in the amount of $125,%37.74, for.a

total award of $1,’?'7'3,63.2.74.

In addition to.awarding attorneys’ fees for work done

in pursuing Wham~O’s claims under the YELLOW mark, the-Court

awards attorneys’ fees for work done regarding SLB's

declaratory judgment claims regarding noninfringement and

invalidity of Wham—O's trademarks because the theories

underlying the declaratory relief claims are also

affirmative defenses to Wham—O's claims against SLB.

Accordingly, the work done in defense of SLB’s declaratory

relief claims and work done in pursuit of 'Wham—O’s trademark

3
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claims are exactly the same work. Therefore, apportionment

is not appropriate.

Moreover, the Court awards attorneys’ fees for work

a done in pursuing the unsuccessful claim under the

YELLOW/BLUE mark because the claim under the YELLOW/BLUE

mark was asserted to remedy the same course of conduct that

brought about Wham+O's claims under the YELLOW mark. Also,

the discovery, legal research, and motion practice related

to the YELLOW/BLUE mark are related and inseparable to the

ework done for the-claims under the YELLOW mark.. Therefore,

apportionment is not appropriate.

However, the following items from the Howard Rice

eilling should not be.awarded because they do not represent

-work related to Wham—O's Lanham Act claims:

'6/6/O6 J. Faucette entry (50%) $1935.50

6/6/O6. S. Given entry $25

6/7/06 J. Faucette entry $1215

6/8/O6 J. Faucette entry $1.575

T'OtE.il: -$4,750.50

All other items billed are reasonable.
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In conc.l;usion, the Court. awards $1,643,444.50 in

att:orn'eys' fees and -$'125,43'7.74 in expenses, for a total of

$1, '768',882..24—..

“IT IS so ORDERED. . j._ _

R'0N2'&LD S.W. LEW‘

senior U.S. District Judge

DATED: February 26, 2008
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BETH ANN R. YOUNG (SBN 143945)
br lnbrb.com

HOI. Y ROARK (SBN 234638)
hr lnbrb.com

LE NE, NEALE, BENDER, RANKIN & BRILL L.L.P.
10250 Constellation Blvd., Suite 1700
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Telephone: 8310) 229-1234Facsimile: ( 10) 229-1244

ROD S. BERMAN (SBN 105444)
RXB 'mbm.com

MAT

MH2 jmbm.com
w D. HINKS (SBN 200750)

JEFFE , MANGELS, BUTLER & MARMARO, L.L.P.
1900 Avenue of the Stars, 7th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067

Telephone: g310) 203-8080Facsimile: ( 10) 203-0567

Attome s for Defendants Aquawood,
Computer Holdlngs, LLCand A

LLC,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

WHAM—_O, INC. .3 Delaware
corporation,

Plaintiff,

v.

MANLEY TOYS, LTD., a
Hon Kon corporation; IZZY
HOL IN , LLC, a California
limited liability company;
A UAWOOD, LLC, a
Ca ifornia limited liabilit

com an ; AW COMPUTE
HO DI GS, LLC, a California

limited liability comgan ,BRIAN DUBIN K

SAMSON CHAN, LISA LIU,
WAL-MART STORES, INC., a
Delaware co oration;
TARGET CORP., a innesota
co oration, TOYS ‘R’ US,
IN ., a Delaware co oration,
and KMART CORPO TION,
a Michigan corporation,

Defendants.

 

Case No. 2:08-cv-01281-RSWL-CW

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION OF

DEFENDANTS A UAWOOD, LLC AND
AW COMPUTER OLDINGS, LLC TO
DISMISS THE SEVENTH CLAIM FOR

RELIEF IN THE SECOND AMENDED

COMPLAINT BASED UPON A) LACK
OF SUBJECT MATTER JURI DICTION

UNDER RULE 12(bl)]g1) AND B THEFAILURE TO STA A CLAI UPON

WHICH RELIEF CAN BE GRANTED

UNDER RULE 1%? , AND TO STRIKEPORTIONS OF T YER UNDER

RULE 12 F); MEMORANDUM OF
POINTS AUTHORITIES AND

DECLARATION OF HOLLY ROARK IN

SUPPORT THEREOF

The Honorable Ronald S.W. Lew, presiding

Date: June 18, 2008
Time: 9:00 a.m.

Place: Courtroom “21”
312 N. Spring Street
Los Angeles, California 90012

Action filed: February 25, 2008
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TO THE HONORABLE RONALD S.W. LEW, UNITED STATES

DISTRICT JUDGE AND TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on June 18, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. in

Courtroom 21, of the above entitled Court located at 312 N. Spring Street, Los

Angeles, California 90012, Defendants Aquawood, LLC (“Aquawood”) and

AW Computer Holdings, LLC (“AW”) will move the Court for an Order

Dismissing the Seventh Claim for Relief and the prayer for successor liability as

to AW and Aquawood, pursuant to Rules 12(b)(l), 12(b)(6), and 12(f) of the

i Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on the following grounds:

The Second Amended Complaint (“SAC”) filed by Plaintiff Wham-O,

Inc. (“Wham—O”) as to AW and Aquawood lacks subject matter jurisdiction

since as to the Seventh Claim for Relief (founded exclusively upon California

_ Code of Civil Procedure §708.2l0) there is no federal question, and no basis for

supplemental jurisdiction; and Wham-O is not entitled to declaratory relief

absent traditional subject matter jurisdiction which does not exist here.

As set forth in the Memorandum of Points and Authorities annexed

hereto, the Seventh Claim for Relief in the SAC as to AW and Aquawood is

factually insupportable and deficient as a matter of law and should be dismissed.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that pursuant to Local Rule 7-9,

if any party wishes to oppose this Motion, it shall do so in writing not less than

: fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the hearing.

The Motion is based upon this Notice, the attached Memorandum of

Points and Authorities, the attached Declaration of Holly Roark, and all

documents in the Court’s file herein, and on such arguments as may be

L presented at or before the hearing on this Motion.

This Motion is made following the meeting and conference of counsel

pursuant to Local Rule 7-3, which timely took place, but did not result in a
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1 resolution of the issues presented in the Motion. _S£C_ Declaration of Holly Roark

submitted herewith.

WHEREFORE, Aquawood and AW respectfiilly request that the Court

enter an order (i) dismissing as to AW and Aquawood the Seventh Claim for

2 Relief in the SAC, as well as striking the prayer for “successor liability”

although not pled in the form of a claim for relief; and (ii) granting such other

i and further relief as is just and proper under the circumstances.

Dated: May 16, 2008 A UAWOOD LLC AND AW

co PUTER 1-‘10LDiNGs, LLC

n—n>-

#-©VDOO'-JONLA-Ii‘-UJIQ
 

12 _ L 2
13 2 Ti

14 _ ‘em‘W5.’
15 JEFFER MANGELS, 12’; LER &

MARMARO, L.L.P.:
16

Attome 3 for Defendants

17 ASEIA OOD, LLC AND AWC PUTER HOLDINGS, LLC
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

23
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The SAC represents Plaintiff’s third unsuccessfiJl attempt to allege a

federal claim for relief against AW and Aquawood to satisfy a money judgment.

Indeed, there is no question that the Seventh Claim for Relief (which is the only

claim alleged against AW) is founded exclusively upon state law. Although the

SAC, unlike its predecessor pleadings, now attempts to state a federal claim

against Aquawood unrelated to satisfying the money judgment, the Seventh

Claim for Relief against Aquawood is still a state law claim for which there is

no subject matter jurisdiction and for which no relief can be granted in this

federal court. Accordingly, the Seventh Claim for Relief against AW and

Aquawood, should be dismissed pursuant to FRCP 12(b)(1) and 12(b)(6), and

the prayer for a finding of successor liability should be stricken under FRCP

120’).

What is readily evident from the face of the SAC is that there are no

federal claims for relief alleged against AW, and thus there is no subject matter

jurisdiction. Indeed, there is no supplemental jurisdiction for the state law claim

because it is not so related to the other federal claims against other defendants or

even the newly alleged federal claims against Aquawood as to form a single
59

“case or controversy. Accordingly, dismissal of the Seventh Claim for Relief

as to both AW and Aquawood under FRCP 12(b)(1) is warranted.

Finally, even assuming arguendo that Wham—O could get past the blatant

subject matter jurisdiction defects, the SAC also fails to state any claim upon

which relief can be granted under both California Code of Civil Procedure

(“CCP”) section 708.210, e_t s_eq., or for successor liability because Wham-O has

not (and cannot) meet a crucial element of those claims, namely, that either
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1 Aquawood or AW is in possession of property belonging to SLB Toys USA,

Inc., a New York corporation ("SLB"). As set forth more fully in the

Discussion, this is not a factual determination, but an indisputable legal one.

Accordingly, dismissal of these claims under FRCP 12(b)(6) is proper.

II.

STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS

In a separate action, SLB filed a lawsuit against Wham—O for, inter alia,

trademark infringement, in connection with the use of yellow coloring in the

\DOO--JONU1-I‘:-L»-Jl\J
production of water slides.1 In response, Wham-O countersued SLB, claiming,

10 among other things, willful infringement by SLB in connection with the same

11 use of the yellow coloring in the production of water slides. That case went to

12 trial and a judgment was entered in favor of Wham—O against SLB, although that

13 judgment is presently on appeal (the "Judgment").

14 Through the SAC, initially filed on or about February 25, 2008, Wham—O

15 seeks to impose liability upon AW and Aquawood based upon quintessential

16 state law claims for putative successor liability for the Judgment against SLB.2

17 In this regard, the SAC is no different than the First Amended Complaint

18 (“FAC”) filed by Wham—O, and suffers from the same defects outlined in AW’s

19 and Aquawood’s first Motion to Dismiss filed in response to the FAC. In

20 response to the Motion, Wham-O requested that the parties stipulate to permit

21 Wham-O to file its SAC, which was supposed to cure these (and other) blatant

22 pleading defects. Remarkably, none of these defects noted herein were

23 corrected, thus necessitating this renewed Motion to Dismiss.

24

25

26 ' SLB Toys USA, Inc. v. Wham-O, Inc., et al., Case No. 2:06-cv-01382-RSWL-CW,
filed on March 6, 2006, in the Central District of California.

27

2 AW acquired certain assets of SLB pursuant to that Asset Purchase Agreement
28 (“APA”) dated November 19, 2007. Thereafter, Aquawood leased from AW certain assets

which AW acquired through the APA.

4
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III.

DISCUSSION

A. The District Court Lacks Subject Matter Jurisdiction Over the State

Law Claims Against Both AW and Aguawood.

In order for this Court to maintain subject matter jurisdiction, there must

be either (1) complete diversity of the parties, or (2) a federal question. (28

U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332; gee ali, Lincoln Property Co. v. Roche, 546 U.S. 81, 82

[126 S.Ct. 606, 163 L.Ed.2d 415] (2005)(complete diversity required for subject

matter jurisdiction); Empire Healthchoice Assur., Inc. V. McVeigh, 547 U.S.

677, 678 [126 S.Ct. 2121, 165 L.Ed.2d 131] (2006)(federal question required for

subject matter jurisdiction.) Wham-O has pleaded subject matter jurisdiction

under 1331 (federal question), 1338 (actions relating to trademarks), and 1367

(supplemental). Wham—O does not allege diversity jurisdiction (which would

fail in any event), and there is no federal question as to AW and Aquawood with

regard to the Seventh Claim for Relief. Therefore, the SAC should be dismissed

under Rule l2(b)(l) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

(1)

Although not alleged in the SAC, to be clear, there is no basis for this

Wham—O, Aguawood, and AW Are All Citizens of California.

Court to exercise subject matter jurisdiction based upon diversity. Wham—O is a

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, but

has its principal place of business in California. (SAC, 11 8). Aquawood is a

limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of

California. (E SAC, 1] 11.) Similarly, AW is a limited liability company

organized and existing under the laws of the State of California. (See SAC, 1]

12.) Given these facts, diversity is absent. 28 U.S.C. § 1332.

On the face of the SAC it is clear that subj ect matter jurisdiction does not

lie because Wham-0, Aquawood, and AW are all citizens of California. Thus, it

is readily evident that the District Court does not have subject matter jurisdiction

5
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1 based on diversity since there is no diversity between the parties. (Lincoln
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Property Co., 546 U.S. at 82. See, Gould Elecs. Inc. v. United States, 220 F.3d

169 [51 ERC 1014, 31 Envtl. L Rep. 20,001] (3d Cir. 2000); and Wolfe V.

Strankman, 392 F.3d 358, 362 (9th Cir. 2004)(Rule l2(b)(1) motion may be

treated as either a facial or factual challenge to the court's subject matter

jurisdiction).

(2) Subject Matter Jurisdiction Does Not Exist Under Either 28

U.S.C. Section 1331, Or Section 1338.

As stated fig, the SAC alleges only the Seventh Claim for Relief

against AW based upon CCP section 708.210, and indirectly, a claim for

successor liability, although questionably only in the prayer for relief. Absent a

federal question, no subject matter jurisdiction exists. Empire Healthchoice

547 U.S. at 678. Thus, Wham—O has stated no federal claim for

relief in the SAC against AW. With regard to Aquawood, although Plaintiff

Assur. Inc., 

alleges several federal claims for relief against Aquawood for the first time, that

does not automatically confer subject matter jurisdiction over the alleged state

law claim set forth in the Seventh Claim for Relief. (Wisconsin Dept. of

Corrections v. Schacht, 524 U.S. 381, 387 (1998) (Federal court must find basis

for supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims. Supplemental

jurisdiction allows federal courts to hear and decide state-law claims along with

federal—law claims when they “are so related to claims in the action within such

original jurisdiction that they fonn part of the same case or controversy,” citing

28 U.S.C. § l367(a).) See discussion Q.

28 U.S.C. § 1331 provides:

Sec. 133 1. Federal question

The district courts shall have original jurisdiction of all

civil actions arising under the Constitution, laws, or

treaties of the United States.

6
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As a matter of law, the claims under CCP section 108.210, and for

successor liability are not claims for relief arising under the Constitution, federal

laws, or treaties of the United States. Neither are they trademark claims under

28 U.S.C. § 1338. Therefore, this Court has no subject matter jurisdiction based

upon a federal question.

B. Supplemental Jurisdiction Under 28 U.S.C. Section 1367 Does Not

Apply Since the State Law Claims Are Not So Related to the Federal

Claims as to Form Part of the Same Case or Controversy.

Wham-O erroneously alleges that this Court has supplemental jurisdiction

over the CCP § 708.210 claims against all Defendants (SAC, 111] 123 — 133), and

over the successor liability claims against AW and Aquawood (SAC, Prayer, 1]

l.) E all SAC, 1] 21. However, Wham-O has failed to meet its burden under

28 U.S.C. section 1367 to establish how either the collection action under CCP §

708.210 or the successor liability claims are so related to the new federal claims

asserted against Aquawood in this action such that they “form part of the same

case or controversy under Article III of the United States Constitution.” It is

axiomatic that where there is no other claim for relief asserted against AW, this

cannot be correct as a matter of law.

To this end, 28 U.S.C. § 1367 specifically provides that:

Sec. 1367. Supplemental jurisdiction

(a) Except as provided in subsections (b) and (C) or as

expressly provided otherwise by Federal statute, in any

civil action of which the district courts have original

jurisdiction, the district courts shall have supplemental

jurisdiction over all other claims that are so related to

claims in the action within such original

jurisdiction that they form part of the same case or
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controversy under Article III of the United States

Constitution . . . . (Emphasis added.)

(c) The district courts may decline to exercise

supplemental jurisdiction over a claim under

subsection (a) if —

(l) the claim raises a novel or complex issue of State

law,

(2) the claim substantially predominates over the claim

or claims over which the district court has original

jurisdiction,

(3) the district court has dismissed all claims over

which it has original jurisdiction, or

(4) in exceptional circumstances, there are other

compelling reasons for declining jurisdiction.

In the SAC, Plaintiff attempts to assert several federal claims against

Aquawood (although none were previously alleged against Aquawood in either

the initial Complaint or the FAC), including, but not limited to trademark

infringement. Notably, there are no factual allegations that would explain how

the collection action relative to the Judgment in a different case or the successor

liability claims are so related to these arguably new federal claims that they form
53

part of the “same case or controversy. Clearly, whether some Defendants are

infringing or diluting Wham—O’s mark has nothing to do with whether Wham-O

can satisfy the Judgment through a creditor’s suit against Aquawood and AW, or

whether Aquawood and AW are successors to SLB. There is no nexus between

the nature of these distinct claims.

to exerciseMoreover, to declinethere are compelling reasons

supplemental jurisdiction over the state law—based claims. First, the creditor’s

8
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1 suit under CCP § 708.210 can only be construed to raise a “novel or complex

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

issue of State law,” since it is based entirely upon a California state statute.

Second, there can be no finding other than that the state-law based claim

substantially predominates over the federal claims, because (1) as to AW, there

are E federal claims alleged, and (2) as to Aquawood, the federal claims against

it appear to be pretextual, simply to obtain federal jurisdiction. (The Supreme

Court has held that “a suit may sometimes be dismissed for want of jurisdiction

where the alleged claim under the Constitution or federal statutes clearly appears

to be immaterial and made solely for the purpose of obtaining jurisdiction or

where such a claim is wholly insubstantial and frivolous.” Molski V. Mandarin

Touch Restaurant, 359 F.Supp.2d 924, 936 (C.D.Cal. 2005), citing Bell V. Hood

327 U.S. 678, 682-83, 66 S.Ct. 773, 90 L.Ed. 939 (1946).) Finally, the

 

appropriate Vehicle to seek a finding of successor liability upon AW or

Aquawood for the Judgment against SLB would be to file a motion to amend the

(Odnil Music Ltd. V. Katharsis LLC, 2007 WL 3308857, * 10

(E.D.Cal. 2007) (judgment amended to add successor and alter ego entities).)

C. The SAC Should Be Dismissed Because Wham-O Has Failed to State

Judgment.

A Claim Upon Which Relief Can Be Granted.

(I) No Relief Can Be Granted Under CCP § 708.210.

Assuming arguendo that the CCP § 708.210 claim is somehow proper in

federal court, which it is not, then in any event, Wham-O has not pleaded, and

cannot plead that either AW or Aquawood meet the requirements set forth in

CCP § 708.210. The statute explicitly requires that any third party being sued

for recovery of property in satisfaction of a judgment against the judgment

debtor must be (1) in “possession or control” of (2) “property in which the

judgment debtor has an interest or is indebted to the judgment debtor.” (CCP §

708.210.) Here, although in paragraph 132 of the SAC Wham-O attempts to

plead that AW and Aquawood are in possession SLB’s property, a valid cause of

9
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1 action cannot be stated as a matter of law because through the APA, AW
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purchased the certain of SLB’s property. Simply buying assets does not create

successor liability, and eliminates the judgment debtor’s continuing interest in

the property which is the subject of the APA. (Acheson v. Falstaff Brewing

Corp, 523 F.2d 1327, 1329-30 (9th Cir. 1975) (Under the law of California and

most other jurisdictions, where one company sells or otherwise transfers all its

assets to another company, the latter is not liable for the debts and liabilities of

the transferor, except where: (1) the purchaser expressly or impliedly agrees to

assume such debts; (2) the transaction amounts to a consolidation or merger of

the seller and purchaser; (3) the purchasing corporation is merely a continuation

of the selling corporation; or (4) the transaction is entered into fraudulently in

order to escape liability for such debts.)

Wham—O does not allege that the APA should be set aside, nor does

Wham—O allege that the APA reflects a fraudulent transfer. Therefore, without

an initial determination that the assets now held by AW belong to SLB rather

than AW, AW is the legal owner of the assets it purchased from the assignee.

(See, e_.g,, Simons V. Hill Street Fireproof Bldg. Co., 69 Cal.App. 129, 134

(1924) (Title to personal property, sold or exchanged, passes to the buyer

whenever the parties agree upon a present transfer, and the thing itself is

identified).

Similarly, Aquawood is simply the lessee of the assets which lawfully

belong to AW and therefore are not in “possession” of SLB’s property as a

matter of law, since title already passed to AW. Simons, 69 Cal.App. at 134.

Thus, there is no claim under CCP § 708.210 for which relief can be granted

because, as a matter of law, a critical element of that cause of action simply

cannot be met. Therefore, the Seventh Claim for Relief should be dismissed

under FRCP l2(b)(6).

10
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(2) No Relief Can Be Granted With Regard to Successor Liabiligg.

It is entirely unclear whether a claim can even be stated in the prayer for

relief, where there is no corresponding claim for relief seeking to impose the

liability sought in the prayer for relief. (Weber v. Superior Court of Yolo

County, 26 Cal.2d 144, 148 (1945) (Prayer for relief does not necessarily

establish the character of an action.) Moreover, with regard to successor

5 liability, no claim has been stated for which relief can be granted for at least four

reasons: (1) there is no subject matter jurisdiction over that claim as set forth

supra; (2) CCP § 708.210 is not the proper vehicle to impose successor liability

upon AW or Aquawood for the Judgment against SLB (E supra — appropriate

I remedy is to file motion to amend SLB Judgment); (3) the SAC does not allege

facts to satisfy the elements of successor liability; and (4) Wham-O is not

, entitled to declaratory relief absent jurisdiction.

A successor corporation has legal responsibility for a predecessor

corporation's debts and liabilities iii‘: ( 1) the successor corporation expressly

or impliedly agreed to assume the liabilities of the predecessor corporation; (2)

the alleged transactions between the two companies amounted to a consolidation

or merger of the corporations; (3) the successor corporation is a mere

continuation or reincarnation of the predecessor corporation; or (4) clear and

convincing evidence shows that the transfer of assets from the predecessor

corporation to the successor corporation was for the fraudulent purpose of

escaping debt liability. Fisher v. Allis—Chalmers Copp. Product Liability Trust,

' 95 Cal.App.4th 1182, 1188 (2002).

Here, the SAC does not allege that (1) Aquawood and AW agreed to

assume the liabilities of SLB; or (2) that transactions between the two

companies amounted to a consolidation or merger of the corporations. The SAC

attempts to allege that AW and Aquawood are “mere continuations” of SLB

(SAC, 1] 132), however, it provides no factual allegations to support such a

ll
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1 conclusion. Indeed, there are no such facts in existence since (1) AW does not
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do any business whatsoever, other than as a lessor, and (2) Aquawood is not

involved in any of the activities for which the Judgment against SLB was

imposed.

Finally, although the SAC alleges that the Assignment for the Benefit of

Creditors (“ABC”) was “fraudulent” (SAC, 1] 37), there are no facts in the SAC

to support such a legal conclusion. An Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors

is a statutorily legal means to resolve issues relating to debt without resorting to

bankruptcy. E California Code of Civil Procedure § 493.010. SLB did

nothing more than exercise its rights under § 493.010, and as a matter of law, the

SAC fails to allege facts that would indicate otherwise. Therefore, the claim for

successor liability necessarily fails, and should be dismissed against Aquawood

and AW.

Additionally, as a matter of law, Wham—O is not entitled to a declaration

that Aquawood and AW are successors of SLB. The Declaratory Judgment Act,

found at 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-2202, sets forth the authority for federal courts to

provide declaratory relief; however, such a remedy cannot be created absent

jurisdiction, and as set forth fly, there is no subject matter jurisdiction over

the state law—based claims against AW and Aquawood. E Schilling v. Rogers,

363 U.S. 666, 677 [80 S.Ct. 1288, 4 L.Ed.2d 1478] (1960)(commenting that the

Declaratory Judgment Act is not an independent source of federal jurisdiction).

Therefore the claim for successor liability necessarily fails.

28 U.S.C. § 2201 provides the following:

Sec. 2201. Creation of remedy

(a) In a case of actual controversy within its

jurisdiction . . . any court of the United States, upon

the filing of an appropriate pleading, may declare the

rights and other legal relations of any interested party

12
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seeking such declaration, whether or not further relief

is or could be sought. Any such declaration shall have

the force and effect of a final judgment or decree and

shall be reviewable as such. (Emphasis added.)

The Declaratory Judgment Act does not expand the court’s jurisdiction; this

provision only provides a declaratory remedy in cases properly brought in

federal court. Schilling, 363 U.S. at 677.

As can be seen from the plain language of this statute, although federal

courts can fashion remedies for declaratory relief, they cannot do so absent

jurisdiction. E. Here, as outlined above, Wham—O has not established an

independent basis for the district court’s subject matter jurisdiction over the

either the § 708.210 claim or the successor liability claim (e.g. diversity of

citizenship, federal question, or supplemental jurisdiction). Accordingly,

Wham-O is not entitled to a declaratory remedy against Aquawood and AW in

federal court. Schilling, 363 U.S. at 677. E ali Skelly Oil Co. v. Phillips

339 U.S. 667, 671 [70 S.Ct. 876, 94 L.Ed. 1194]

(l950)(jurisdiction requirements not altered by the Declaratory Judgment Act).

III

III

III

///

///

III

III

///

///

III

III

Petroleum Co.,

13
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Dated: -May _16, 2008

IV.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Aquawood and AW respectfully request that the Court

enter an order (i) dismissing the Seventh Claim for Relief in the SAC entirely as

to AW and Aquawood; (ii) dismissing the state law-based claims for successor

liablity against both AW and Aquawood; and (iii) granting such other and

fl.l1‘thBI' relief as is just and proper under the circumstances.

A UAWOOD LLC AND AW

CO PUTER H0LD’INGs, LLC

  
JEFFER, MANGE S,
MARMARO, L.L.P.:

I

I

Attorne s for Defendants
A UA OOD, LLC AND AW
co PUTER HOLDINGS, LLC
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DECLARATION OF HOLLY ROARK

1, Holly Roark declare as follows:

1. I am an associate of the law firm Levene, Neale, Bender, Rankin &

Brill L.L.P., counsel for defendants Aquawood, LLC (“Aquawood”), and AW

Computer Holdings, LLC (“AW”). I have personal knowledge of the facts

stated herein and if called upon as a witness I would testify competently as to

the following:

2. On Tuesday May 6, 2008, in order to resolve a potential Motion to

Dismiss and to comply with Local Rule 7-3, I faxed and mailed a “meet and

confer” letter to Annette Hurst, Elizabeth Brown, John Ulin, and Anna Zusman,

at Heller Ehrman LLP, counsel of record for plaintiff Wham—O, Inc. (“Wham-

O”). The letter sets forth Aquawood’s and AW’s legal positions and indicates

that dismissal of AW completely, and of the state law claims against both AW

and Aquawood, would be appropriate for (1) lack of subject matter jurisdiction,

and (2) for failure to state claims upon which relief can be granted. Attached

hereto as Exhibit “l” and incorporated herein by this reference is a true copy of

that letter.

3. On May 8, 2008, I emailed counsel for Wham—O requesting a

response to our meet and confer letter, and attached a copy of the same to the

email. Attached hereto as Exhibit “2” and incorporated herein by this reference

is a true copy of that email.

4. On Friday, May 9, 2008, at about 3:57 p.m. I received a voicemail

from Anna Zusman indicating that counsel for Wham—O believes that AW and

Aquawood have made a good faith attempt to meet and confer, but that Wham-

O does not intend to dismiss AW or any claims against AW or Aquawood, and

that counsel for Wham—O looks forward to AW’s and Aquawood’s Motion to

Dismiss.

15
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5. Therefore, we are proceeding to file the Motion to Dismiss on

behalf of Aquawood and AW.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of

America that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 16th day of May, 2008 at Los Angeles, California.

1 4 :
HOLLY ROARK

16
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LEVENE, NEALE, BENDER, RANKIN & BRILL LLP

LAW OFFICES

May 6, 2008

Via Facsimile and Mail

Heller Ehrman LLP

Annette L. Hurst, Esq.

Elizabeth R. Brown, Esq.
333 Bush St.

San Francisco, CA 94104

Facsimile: (415) 772-6268

Heller Ehrman LLP

John C. Ulin, Esq.

Anna R. Zusman, Esq.

333 South l-lope Street, 39”‘ floor
Los Angeles, CA 90071

Facsimile: (213) 614-1868

Re: Wham-O, Inc. v. Manley Toys, Ltd., et al.

7 ___Dear M3-..HE.T'3i=.M5:?€F.9T'¥T¥l:._.1lf1F:...i4iii§lr..%“I¥F1_M$.r 74u..Srnan.» . _.

As you know, we are counsel to AW Computer Holdings, LLC (“AW”) and Aquawoo-d,

LLC (“Aquawood”). This letter will serve to initiate the meet and confer process pursuant to

Local Rule 7-3 regarding our response to Wl1am—O’s Second Amended Complaint (“SAC”).

Despite the federal claims now alleged against Aquawood, the SAC still does not cure many of

the defects of the First Amended Complaint, and therefore, Aquawooclancl AW intend to file a
motion to dismiss the SAC.

-The only claims against AW are for liability under California Code of Civil Procedure T
(“CCP”) section 708.210, and for successor liability. Once again, there is no subject matter
jurisdiction over AW because (1) AW and Wham—O are both citizens of California; (2) there is

no federal question between these parties; and (3) supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C.1

1367 does not exist because the attempted collection action unde1' CCP section 708.210 pursuant

- to the judgment against SLB Toys USA, Inc.) dba Toyquest (“SLB”) is in no way related to the
federal claims asserted in this actionsucli that they “form pan of the same case or controversy 1

under Article III of the United States Constitution". See 28 U.S,C. § 1367. -Likewise, there is no

113250 EDNSTELLATIUN Er:iuLEvAi=iD. SUITE 1700 L135 ANBELE, C-ALIFDRNIA 913067-E:2DEI

TEL‘. 31El.229.1234 I-‘Ax: 31D.229..1244 WEB: WW'W.LNBRE.E|ZIM E'h-IAILZ INFo@L~ein.H.I::I:IM
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subject matter jurisdiction over the successor liability claims for the same reasons above.

Accordingly, the claims against AW cannot stand. Similarly, these state law-based claims cannot

stand against Aquawood.

Assuming an-guendo that the CCP section 708.210 claim is proper in federal court, which

it is not, Wham-O has not plead, and cannot plead that either AW or Aquawood meet the

requirements set forth in CCP section 708.210. The statute explicitly states that the third party

being sued for recovery of property in satisfaction of a judgment against the debtor must be (1) i.n

“possession or control” of (2) “property in which the judgment debtor has an interest or is

indebted to the judgment debtor". (CCP §'708.2l0.) Here, although in paragraph 132 of the

SAC Wham-O attempts to plead that AW and Aquawood are in possession of SLB‘s property, a

valid cause of action cannot be stated as a matter of law because there was an assignment and

sale of SLB’gs assets, and neither transaction has been set aside. Moreover, Wham-O does not
allege that the transactions have been set aside, nor does Wham-O allege a causeof action for
fraudulent transfer, or anywhere in the pleading ask for the assignment and sale to be set aside.

Therefore, without an initial determination that the assets belong to SLB rather than to AW, as of

the date of the instant pleading AW is the legal owner of the assets it purchased from the

assignee. Accordingly, whether the property belongs to SLB or to AW is not a factual inquiry,

but a legal one, and the answer has already been determined: AW is the legal owner of the

property. Additionally, Aquawood is simply the lessee of the assets which lawfully belong to

AW. Thus, there is no claim under CCP section 708.210 for which reliefcan be granted because,

as a matter of law, a critical element of that cause of action simply cannot be met. _

Moreover, the allegation of successor liability similarly does not arise under federal law,

and fl.1l'lZl’1CI'I11OI'6, CCP section 708.210 is not the proper vehicle to impose successor liability

uponAW or‘ Aquawood for the judgment against SLB. As set forth above, Wham-O cannot set

forth a proper claim under CCP section 708.210 in any event. Thus, Wham-O has stated no

causes of action whatsoever in the SAC under which AW can be found liable, and all claims

against AW should therefore be dismissed under FRCP l2(b)(6). -As well, the claims against

Aquawood under CCP section 708.210 and for successor liability should be dismissed.

Due to the foregoing, we again request that Wham—O immediately and completely

dismiss AW from this action, and dismiss the CCP section 708.210 and successor liability claims

18
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against Aquawood. Accordingly, we invite your response to this letter so we can resolve this

matter informally, rather than having to file a motion to dismiss. We are available to meet and

confer via telephone this week to discuss these issues further.

Very truly yours,

flaéé»/242%.
HOLLY ROARK, ESQ.

cc: Rod Bennan, Esq.
Matt Hinks, Esq.

Beth Ann Young, Esq. (1/0)
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Holly Roark

From: Holly Roark

Sent: Thursday, May 08, 2008 5:11 PM

To: 'annette.hurst@heI|erehrman.com'; 'e[isabeth.brown@he||erehrman.com';
‘john.u|in@he||erehrman.com'; ‘anna.zusman@heIIerehrman.com'

Cc: Beth R. Young
Subject: Wham—O - AWlAquawood

"
Meet and Confer

Le&eLpdf(12".
Counsel,

We previously forwarded to you the attached meet and confer letter on May 6, 2008. Our
deadline to meet and confer with you on this matter before we file our motion to dismiss
is tomorrow, May 9, 2008. Accordingly, please contact us as soon as possible so that we
may attempt to resolve this matter informally. If we do not hear from you by the end of
business May 9, 2008, we will proceed to file our motion to dismiss next week.

Thanks,

Holly Roark, Esq.
Levene, Neale, Bender, Rankin & Brill L.L.P.
10250 Constellation Blvd., Suite 1700
Los Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: (310) 229-1234
Facsimile: (310) 229-1244
Direct: (310) 229-3399
Email: hr@lnbrb.com
Website: www.lnbrb.com

Note: This email and all documents attached hereto are subject to the firm's email policy.
By viewing this email and the attachments, you acknowledge that you have read and
understand the disclaimers located at the following website address:
http://www.lnbrb.com/disclaimers.htm

I 13??» fig
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the age of
18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is 10250 Constellation Boulevard

Suite 1700, Los Angeles, California 90067.

On May 16, 2008, I served the foregoing document described as

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION OF DEFENDANTS AQUAWOOD, LLC AND AW
COMPUTER HOLDINGS, LLC TO DISMISS THE SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF IN

THE SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT BASED UPON (A) LACK OF SUBJECT

MATTER JURISDICTION UNDER RULE 12(b)(1) AND (B) THE FAILURE To STATE A
CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF CAN BE GRANTED UNDER RULE 12(b)(6), AND TO
STRIKE PORTIONS OF THE PRAYER UNDER RULE 12(F); MEMORANDUM OF
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES AND DECLARATION OF HOLLY ROARK IN SUPPORT
THEREOF

on the interested parties in this action by placing true copies thereof enclosed in sealed
envelopes addressed as follows:

See Attached Service List:

IZI (By Mail) I caused such envelope with postage thereon, fully prepaid to be placed in the
United States mail. Executed on May 16, 2008, at Los Angeles, California.

III (By E-mail) I caused said document to be sent via email to the Office(s) of the
addressee(s) so designated on the attached list. Executed on , at Los Angeles,
California.

El (By Federal Express/Overnight Mail) I caused such envelope to be delivered by Federal

Express (or Express Mail), next business day delivery to the offices of the addressee. Executed

on , at Los Angeles, California.

El (By Facsimile) I caused said document to be sent via facsimile. Executed on

, at Los Angeles, California.

(FEDERAL) I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct,

and that I am employed at the office of a member of the bar of this Court at whose direction the
service was made.

Lourdes Cruz _,'/”
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Counsel for Plaintiff Wham-O Inc.
Anna R ZusmanlJohn C Ulin

Heller Ehrman LLP

333 South Hope Street, Suite 3900

Los Angeles, CA 90071-3043

 

Counsel for Plaintiff Wham-O lnc. 

Elisabeth R. BrownfAnnette L. Hurst
Heller Ehrman LLP

333 Bush Street

San Francisco, CA 94104

Defendant

Izzy Holdings, LLC

Authorized Agent: Brian Dubinsky
521 South Bentley Avenue

Los Angeles, CA 90049

Counsel for Wal—Mart Stores Inc.

Michael J. Sma||t'Jeanne M. Gills

Jennifer L. Gregor
FOLEY 8t LARDNER LLP

321 North Clark Street, Suite 2800

Chicago, Illinois 60610-4764

 

Counsel for Defendant Brian Dubinsky

Stephen L Raucher
Reuben Raucher and Blum

1100 Glendon Avenue, 10th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90024

Defendant

Target Corp.

CT Corporation, Attn: Margaret Wilson
818 West 7"“ Street, 2'“ Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90017

Defendant

Kmart Corporation
Authorized Agent: Kristen Oliver

30600 Telegraph Road

Bingham Farms, Ml 48025

Counsel for Wal—Mart Stores Inc.

Lori V. Minassian
FOLEY 8. LARDNER LLP

555 South Flower, Suite 3500

Los Angeles, California 90071-241 1
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Defendant

Brian Dubinsky

521 South Bentley Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90049

Defendant

Toys "R" Us, Inc.

Authorized Agent: Becky DeGeorge
2730 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 100
Sacramento, CA 95833

Defendant

Kmart Corporation

Authorized Agent: Dave Shoovey
3000 West 14th Mile Road

Royal Oak, MI 48068


